
 
   CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
                                      865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277          
June 16, 2015              6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
Excuse Absent Councilmembers 

 
 
2.  HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

a.   Proclamation in Recognition of Pride Month – June 2015 
 
 

3. PRESENTATIONS 
 a.   Whidbey Playhouse - Rusty Hendrix (President) 
 b.   2015 Whidbey Island Marathon Report – Elks Lodge – Theresa Reed 
  
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 
5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held on June 2, 2015 
b.   Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 

 c.   Ordinance 1736:  Amending OHMC, Section 3.72.030 to Prohibit Claim Payments when  
       Payments would cause a fund level deficiency  

d.   Request to Authorize a Storm Drain Intern Position 
 
 

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
a. City Administrator – Wastewater Treatment Plant Staff Update 
b. Mayor 
c. Councilmembers 

 
 

8. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
 a.   Ordinance 1737:  LOCAL Series 2015B – Authorization Ordinance  
 b.   Resolution 15-20:  County-wide Planning Policies  
 c.   Ordinance 1735: Amending OHMC 3.63 Traffic Impact Fees  
  
 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 a.   Ordinance 1733: Amending OHMC Chapter 19.36 entitled ‘Sign Code’ 
 
 

1



 
   CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
                                      865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277          
June 16, 2015              6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 
 a.   Goldie Road, LLC Annexation Agreement Amendment 
 b.   WWTP – General Contractor Construction Manager GMP Amendment No. 3 

c.   WWTP – Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consultants  
      International (ERCI), Amendment No. 5 
d. Special Event Permit for Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce – 4th of July Beer Garden   

 
 
12.       EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a. Discussion of Potential Property Acquisition – Discussion and potential action in Open Public 
Session may follow the Executive Session  

 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

2



3



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 1 of 6 
 

Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

June 2, 2015 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
City Council Present:    Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley    City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao  Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Rick Almberg  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Jim Campbell  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Bob Severns   Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns   City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill  

Chief of Police Ed Green 
Parks Manager Hank Nydam 
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 

      Executive Assistant to Police Chief Meg Massey 
Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 

      City Clerk Anna Thompson 
           
Councilmember Hizon was absent.  
              

CALL TO ORDER 
 

Cesar Muego, Pastor of the Filipino Christian Fellowship Church gave the invocation, and 
Mayor Dudley led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to Excuse Councilmember Hizon.  Motion seconded by  

   Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  
 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
Employee Recognition 
 
Parks Manager Hank Nydam recognized Employee John Wollschlager for 15 years of service.  
Mr. Wollschalger accepted a fleece and pin from Mr. Nydam on behalf of the City’s appreciation 
for his services. 
 
Proclamation for Pride Month 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to move the Proclamation in Recognition for Pride  

Month to June 16th [Council Meeting.]  Motion seconded by Councilmember     
Severns, unanimously approved.  

4



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Barbara Wilson, President of the Whidbey Island Nordic Lodge provided a brief presentation 
about the Nordic Lodge of Whidbey Island. 
 
Police Chief Ed Green presented the 2014 Police Department Annual Report along with a  
power point presentation. Meg Massey, the Executive Assistant to the Police Chief, accompa-
nied him during the presentation. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented.  Motion  

   seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Dudley opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:38 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 
 Susan Myers, 651 SE Bayshore Drive, E-301, Oak Harbor 
 Hal Hovey, 2765 SW Scenic Heights, Oak Harbor 
            Bob Olsen, 1370 SE 7th Place, Oak Harbor 
 
The Citizen Comment Period ended at 6:47 p.m. 
   

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a.   Minutes of the Special Workshop and Regular City Council meetings held on May 
19, 2015 

b.   Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c.   Ordinance 1729: Amending OHMC Ch. 13.36 entitled "Fire Protection Systems"   
      and Resolution 15-17: Amending Schedule F of the Master Fee Schedule  

            d.   Ordinance 1734: Adoption of Official Zoning Map  
            e.   Resolution 15-18: Island County Hazard Mitigation Plan  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to amend Consent Agenda Item 6.a: the May 19th   
    Special Workshop Minutes to reflect that Mr. Almberg was present at the meeting,  
    second from Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  
 
Motion:  Mayor Pro Tem Paggao moved to approve the Consent Agenda as amended,  

   seconded by Councilmember Severns, unanimously approved. 
 

STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
City Administrator 
 
 Wastewater Treatment Plant Staff update 
 Presented by City Engineer Joe Stowell  

5



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Councilmembers asked City Engineer Mr. Stowell questions on the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. 
 
Dr. Cort announced that following the regularly scheduled Workshop at 3:00 p.m. on June 17, 
2015, the Council will hold a Special Workshop Meeting to update the public on the Charrette 
Design Workshop and the Wastewater Treatment Plant design in general.  
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Dudley spoke to discussion relating to the RV Park Relocation that occurred at the last 
Council meeting on May 19, 2015.  He informed the Council that there was no intent to keep 
such requested information from the Council on May 19th.  
 
Mayor Dudley then spoke on an economic situation in the downtown area where a business 
owner is planning to open a bicycle shop.  
 
Mayor Dudley called a 5-minute recess at 7:28 p.m., and reconvened the meeting at 7:34 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao commented that he is in favor of the American Democratic form of our 
government as the foundation of our Country. 
 
Councilmember Campbell provided updates from the Northwest Clean Air Agency and Island 
County Tourism Board. 
  
Councilmember Almberg opined that he is committed to ensure that both the cost aspect and 
the social benefits related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant project are balanced.  
 
Councilmember Munns thanked Chief Merrill for the successful Oak Harbor Fire Department 
graduation for Paid on Call Fire Fighter recruits. 
 
Councilmember Severns commented on the success of the Paid on Call graduation at the Fire 
Department. Mr. Severns provided updates from the Economic Development Council (EDC) and 
also informed the community that the EDC has announced a large amount of job openings in 
the City.  Mr. Severns spoke in support of economic development and small business in the City 
of Oak Harbor. 
 
Councilmember Servatius responded to some of the Mayor’s comments made during the 
Mayor’s Comment period.  
 

ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

Ordinance 1720:  Amendment to Site Plan Review Procedures Code (OHMC 19.48) 
Development Services Director Steve Powers presented the staff report.  
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for the Public Hearing at 7:53 p.m., no comments, closed the 
hearing at 7:53 p.m. 
 

6



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Ordinance 1720:  Amendment to Site Plan Review Procedures Code (OHMC 19.48) 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Ordinance No. 1720.  Motion seconded  

   by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 
Ordinance 1733:  Amending OHMC Chapter 19.36 entitled ‘Sign Code’  
Steve Powers, Director of Development Services presented the staff report.  
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 7:58 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 

Martha Yount 
Barbara Berry Jacobs, 1385 SE 9th 
Sandi Peterson, 964 NW Longview Drive 

 
After comments ended, Mayor Dudley closed the comment period at 8:01 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions to Development Services Director Steve Powers.  
 
Ordinance 1733:  Amending OHMC Chapter 19.36 entitled ‘Sign Code’  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Severns moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1733, motion seconded by  

   Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved.  
 
Resolution 15-19:  Adopting Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza provided the staff report.  
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:16 p.m., no comments, closed the 
comment period at 8:16 p.m. 
 
Resolution 15-19:  Adopting Oak Harbor City Street Light Pole Banner Policy  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 15-19.  Councilmember Camp 

   bell seconded the motion, unanimously approved.    
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer Way 
near Pasek Street 
 
Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works, presented the staff report. 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:22 p.m. 
 
 

7



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Citizens Speaking 
 
 Phelps McIlvaine 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Dudley closed public comment period at 8:24 p.m. 
 
Proposal to allow placement of the Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on E Pioneer 
Way near Pasek Street 
 
Councilmembers spoke in favor of the Prowler Memorial. 
 
Motion: Councilmember Severns moved to approve the proposal to allow placement of the  
   Prowler Memorial at the Marina lookout on East Pioneer Way near Pasek Street,  
   seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
 
Report on the possible relocation of the RV Park to the Marina during the Wastewater Treat-
ment Plant Construction  
 
Dr. Cort introduced the item. 
Cathy Rosen, Director of Public Works, presented the staff report. 
 
Ms. Rosen provided a cost estimate of $85,000.00 for installation of temporary water and power 
service to potentially 20 RV sites between the RV fence and Navy Base at the Oak Harbor  
Marina site.  Ms. Rosen suggested moving this item to the Marina Advisory Committee if  
Council is interested in moving forward with the temporary relocation at the Marina. 
 
Mayor Dudley opened the meeting for public comment at 8:32 p.m.  
 
Citizens Speaking 
  
 Bob Olsen 
 
Mayor Dudley closed the public comment period at 8:34 p.m. 
 
Discussion and questions among Councilmembers and staff regarding the possible temporary 
relocation of the RV Park. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to suspend the Council Rules and extend the  
    meeting to 9:30 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Severns, unanimously approved. 
 
Report on the possible relocation of the RV Park to the Marina during the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Construction  
 
 
Main Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to study all three options for the RV Park 
move.  Motion seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao.   
 
 
 

8



  
 
Regular Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 
 

Motion to Amend Main Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to consider the following  
three options: 1) on the base at former Navy Lodge location, 2) Carl Freund property across 
from RV Park as lay down area, and 3) Carl Freund’s property in between 7-Eleven and the 
Bank Property.  Councilmember Almberg seconded the motion.  Majority of the Council op-
posed the motion and motion failed.  
 
 Councilmember Campbell voted in favor of the motion. 
 

Councilmembers Almberg, Munns, Severns, Servatius and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao  
voted in opposition to the Motion. 

 
Action on Main Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to study all three options for the RV 
Park move.  Motion seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Paggao.  Majority of the Council opposed the 
motion and motion failed. 
 
 Councilmember Campbell voted in favor of the motion,  
 

Councilmembers Almberg, Munns, Severns, Servatius and Mayor Pro Tem Paggao  
voted in opposition to the Motion. 
 

 
Councilmember Campbell invited the Council to make a commitment to restore the RV Park  
once construction of the Wastewater Treatment Plant is complete. 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Severns,  

   unanimously approved.  
 

Meeting adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 
     

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

9



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.b
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

- Voucher Numbers 162597 through 162767 in the amount of $811,139.86.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 34786 through 34914.    

- EFT check numbers 717 through 719.

- Payroll check numbers 98087 through 98099.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

- Voucher Numbers 162597 through 162767 in the amount of $811,139.86.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 34786 through 34914.    

- EFT check numbers 717 through 719.

- Payroll check numbers 98087 through 98099.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

10



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

11

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1434034405_at.pdf


06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162597 6/9/2015 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 060915 PREMIUMS  5,746.16

Total :  5,746.16

 162598 6/9/2015 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 053115 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,437.43

Total :  4,437.43

 162599 6/10/2015 0000004  A+ AUTO GLASS & RADIATOR 44750 WINDSHIELD INSTALLATION  302.08

Total :  302.08

 162600 6/10/2015 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 22783 JANITORIAL SERVICES  320.32

 3,066.58JANITORIAL SERVICES22857

 704.14STRIPPER/WAX22881

 56.14EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT22896

Total :  4,147.18

 162601 6/10/2015 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 534801 BATTERIES  341.04

 95.87BATTERIES72242603

 81.53BATTERY BUCKET872950

 83.05RECYCLING SERVICES872954

Total :  601.49

 162602 6/10/2015 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 24871 PADLOCKS  71.16

 26.88KEYS24877

Total :  98.04

 162603 6/10/2015 0007320  ALLIED 100 498772 DEBRIBILLATION PADS  472.00

Total :  472.00

 162604 6/10/2015 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 MAY 2015/WATER PURCHASED  118,345.00

 1,128.35MAY 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 9,620.53MAY 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  129,093.88

 162605 6/10/2015 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36155 MAY 2015/WEB HOSTING  15.95

Total :  15.95

 162606 6/10/2015 0007606  ANDREWS, KIM TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  59.75

1Page:

12



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  59.75 162606 6/10/2015 0007606 0007606  ANDREWS, KIM

 162607 6/10/2015 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 060415 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

Total :  300.00

 162608 6/10/2015 0002655  ASPHALT ZIPPER, INC 31853 CAP  95.00

Total :  95.00

 162609 6/10/2015 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0748566-IN FUEL  8,204.28

 27,025.67FUEL0751153-IN

Total :  35,229.95

 162610 6/10/2015 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 36513 REGISTRATION/2015 ANNUAL CONFERENCE  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 162611 6/10/2015 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0524201 AIRCARDS  487.97

Total :  487.97

 162612 6/10/2015 0007688  AUTOZONE 3385691211 RESISTOR BLOCK  68.13

Total :  68.13

 162613 6/10/2015 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1501599-IN TESTING  122.00

 105.00TESTING1501759-IN

Total :  227.00

 162614 6/10/2015 0000077  BARGE, JA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  921.36

Total :  921.36

 162615 6/10/2015 0000081  BAY PRINTING 23581 RECEIPTS  343.49

Total :  343.49

 162616 6/10/2015 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162617 6/10/2015 0000084  BEBEE, STEVE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  25.00

Total :  25.00

 162618 6/10/2015 0000088  BELLINGHAM LOCK & SAFE 185624 BOX LOCKER  121.04

2Page:

13



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  121.04 162618 6/10/2015 0000088 0000088  BELLINGHAM LOCK & SAFE

 162619 6/10/2015 0007862  BELLIVEAU, MICHAEL 060515 CPL FEE REFUND  32.00

Total :  32.00

 162620 6/10/2015 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 261091 CHEMICAL INJECTOR  90.49

Total :  90.49

 162621 6/10/2015 0001473  BESS, KAREN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  68.00

Total :  68.00

 162622 6/10/2015 0000097  BEST WESTERN HARBOR PLAZA 24 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  1,948.21

Total :  1,948.21

 162623 6/10/2015 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 160132 PUMP KIT  59.41

Total :  59.41

 162624 6/10/2015 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 140529 BOOTS/SEIM  168.66

Total :  168.66

 162625 6/10/2015 0007859  BOATLIFTANDDOCK.COM 6788 HEAVY CHAIN PILE GUIDE  1,121.80

Total :  1,121.80

 162626 6/10/2015 0002551  BOS, BRYON 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162627 6/10/2015 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162628 6/10/2015 0000131  BROADVIEW APPLIANCE 34137 WASHER/DRYER REPAIR  97.78

 48.92SILVERWARE BASKET34179

Total :  146.70

 162629 6/10/2015 0006215  CAROLLO 0141420 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WASTEWATER TREATMENT 229,147.77

Total :  229,147.77

 162630 6/10/2015 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 052815 PUBLIC DEFENSE  600.00

Total :  600.00

3Page:

14



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162631 6/10/2015 0005889  CASCADE RECREATION, INC 6788 ROLL CASES  252.71

Total :  252.71

 162632 6/10/2015 0004819  CHERRY, KIMBERLY 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162633 6/10/2015 0000169  CHEYENNE LIVESTOCK & PRODUCTS 29359 METAL BEARINGS  120.66

Total :  120.66

 162634 6/10/2015 0000170  CHIEF SUPPLY 287033 ADJUSTABLE STOR  141.96

Total :  141.96

 162635 6/10/2015 0007666  CHILDERS, JOE 7468 MOORAGE REFUND  43.13

Total :  43.13

 162636 6/10/2015 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 28107 TOWING SERVICES  135.88

 81.53TOWING SERVICES29642

Total :  217.41

 162637 6/10/2015 0003005  COAST WENATCHEE CENTER HOTEL 18273 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BRAUNSTEIN  281.88

Total :  281.88

 162638 6/10/2015 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 49936 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  104.67

Total :  104.67

 162639 6/10/2015 0007860  COLUMBUS SUPPLY X21132 VESTS  222.55

Total :  222.55

 162640 6/10/2015 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  115.39

 13.47XFINITY8498300270032028

 235.93INTERNET8498300271046803

Total :  364.79

 162641 6/10/2015 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 130103 R/M PRODUCTS  22.50

 542.9611CDA20130389

Total :  565.46

 162642 6/10/2015 0001126  COSTCO WHOLESALE MEMBERSHIP 000301615977000 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  165.00

4Page:

15



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  165.00 162642 6/10/2015 0001126 0001126  COSTCO WHOLESALE MEMBERSHIP

 162643 6/10/2015 0007074  COX, GENEVIEVE 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162644 6/10/2015 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-41 PORTABLES  49.95

 49.95PORTABLES1-500619-41

 49.95PORTABLES1-509920-25

 49.95PORTABLES1-515826-16

 49.95PORTABLES1-521401-8

 99.90PORTABLES1-521402-8

 49.95PORTABLES1-522682-7

 174.95PORTABLES1-525642-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-525643-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-525644-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-525645-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-525646-2

 49.95PORTABLES1-525647-2

 233.71SCISSOR LIFT1-527019

 88.55GASKETS/ELEMENTS1-527020

Total :  1,146.56

 162645 6/10/2015 0006724  DIEKMAN POLYGRAPH SERVICES 15-15 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXAMINATION  200.00

Total :  200.00

 162646 6/10/2015 0001109  DOUBLETREE  HOTEL 42172 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/GREEN  514.24

Total :  514.24

 162647 6/10/2015 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 053115 MAY 2015/LAUNDRY SERVICES  324.46

 11.69LAUNDRY SERVICES1089

Total :  336.15

 162648 6/10/2015 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 418063 UNIT REPAIRS  374.47

Total :  374.47

 162649 6/10/2015 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 15-10176 TESTING  300.00

 18.00TESTING15-10294

5Page:

16



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  318.00 162649 6/10/2015 0000273 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC

 162650 6/10/2015 0000283  ENTENMANN-ROVIN COMPANY 0108537-IN BADGES  65.50

Total :  65.50

 162651 6/10/2015 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT 4909565 ELBOW/HOSE  252.40

 133.57ELBOW/BRACKETS4918355

Total :  385.97

 162652 6/10/2015 0007863  ERPS, CHARLES 1689 MOORAGE REFUND  55.00

Total :  55.00

 162653 6/10/2015 0007864  EXCAL VISUAL, INC 249 TRAINING KIT  509.75

Total :  509.75

 162654 6/10/2015 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK20119 STRAPS/PIN/ROPE  16.27

 7.11EYESNAPWAOAK20120

Total :  23.38

 162655 6/10/2015 0007861  FIRST IMPRESSIONS 360164 CHILD ID KITS  272.00

Total :  272.00

 162656 6/10/2015 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 063015 JUN 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 162657 6/10/2015 0004971  FREEMAN, DENISE L 2015-340 JUMPSUIT/CLEMENTS  496.39

Total :  496.39

 162658 6/10/2015 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,337.69

 71.24CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 245.18CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 69.48CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669

 47.31CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 64.16CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858

 75.27CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500

 64.33CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640

 64.16CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

 64.33CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

6Page:

17



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162658 6/10/2015 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER

 69.48CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 400.29CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628

 70.07CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902

 90.39CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,733.38

 162659 6/10/2015 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 109178 LUMBER  34.66

Total :  34.66

 162660 6/10/2015 0000329  GALLS 003549931 BADGES  641.33

Total :  641.33

 162661 6/10/2015 0006977  GEOLINE, INC 331396 HURRICANE ANTENNA KIT/TRIBLE GIS CF POLE 1,095.58

Total :  1,095.58

 162662 6/10/2015 0000340  GIFFORD, KATHY 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162663 6/10/2015 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 30190 MAY 2015 OPERATIONS  8,333.34

 1,500.00ANNUAL CITY OF OAK HARBOR GRANT 201530192

Total :  9,833.34

 162664 6/10/2015 0007109  GREEN, EDGAR EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  20.00

 188.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  208.50

 162665 6/10/2015 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 577833 ALARM MONITORING  846.00

Total :  846.00

 162666 6/10/2015 0006284  GUNDIE'S 359378 FRONT SEAT  271.00

Total :  271.00

 162667 6/10/2015 0007236  HAMMOND, JACOB 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162668 6/10/2015 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 42862/2 FLG PACK W RR FULL FACE GSKT  67.13

7Page:

18



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  67.13 162668 6/10/2015 0005311 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC

 162669 6/10/2015 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3929538 SADDLE  166.59

Total :  166.59

 162670 6/10/2015 0007856  HILLCREST ELEMENTARY 052015 MARATHON PRIZE  500.00

Total :  500.00

 162671 6/10/2015 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  21.50

 62.00TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

 94.50TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  178.00

 162672 6/10/2015 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 052815 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FAC  40,007.73

Total :  40,007.73

 162673 6/10/2015 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3571669 ELBOWS/TEES  13.01

 19.11ENDCAP5025433

 62.39CFM CEIL7713466

Total :  94.51

 162674 6/10/2015 0006520  HOPKINS, CAMERON 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162675 6/10/2015 0000394  HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 2015-6 JUN 2015/UNEMPLOYMENT SERVICES  110.00

Total :  110.00

 162676 6/10/2015 0000396  I-COM 15-UFQ3-7 3RD QTR 2015/USER FEES  7,321.90

 90,346.113RD QTR 2015/USER FEES15-UFQ3-8

Total :  97,668.01

 162677 6/10/2015 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 051115 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

Total :  166.67

 162678 6/10/2015 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 588849-1 TIE WRAPS  583.58

Total :  583.58

 162679 6/10/2015 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 3047984 MEMBERSHIP DUES  135.00

8Page:

19



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  135.00 162679 6/10/2015 0001469 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

 162680 6/10/2015 0005884  ISLAND COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES 1ST QTR 2015 1ST QTR 2015/PROFIT/EXCISE TAX  1,253.00

 1,600.012ND/3RD/4TH QTR 2014/EXCISE/PROFIT TAX2014

Total :  2,853.01

 162681 6/10/2015 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 053115 MAY 2015/TIPPING FEES  74,514.58

Total :  74,514.58

 162682 6/10/2015 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 060115 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  211.40

Total :  211.40

 162683 6/10/2015 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 060115 MAY 2015/RECYCLING  5,122.05

Total :  5,122.05

 162684 6/10/2015 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508221937 EPI  52.92

Total :  52.92

 162685 6/10/2015 0007604  JANSEN, JOSH 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162686 6/10/2015 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 22335 MINI EXC RENTAL  652.20

Total :  652.20

 162687 6/10/2015 0007412  KATY ISAKSEN ASSOCIATES OAKFUND5-15 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR PURSUIT OF WWTP FUND 910.00

Total :  910.00

 162688 6/10/2015 0007537  KESSELRING TACTICAL SUPPLY 1205 AMMUNITION  7,936.51

Total :  7,936.51

 162689 6/10/2015 0004458  KETCHUM, NEIL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  300.00

Total :  300.00

 162690 6/10/2015 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF175150 ANNUAL OPERATING CERTIFICATE  129.00

Total :  129.00

 162691 6/10/2015 0002227  LABORATORY CORPORATION OF 48128313 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  48.50

Total :  48.50

9Page:

20



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162692 6/10/2015 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5103017MB ASPHALT  1,327.49

Total :  1,327.49

 162693 6/10/2015 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162694 6/10/2015 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGE 1404645-20150531 MAY 2015/MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35

Total :  54.35

 162695 6/10/2015 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  87.00

Total :  87.00

 162696 6/10/2015 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 100030 YARD WASTE  231.95

 216.55YARD WASTE100079

 131.50YARD WASTE100342

 178.05YARD WASTE100402

 20.00YARD WASTE100453

 214.80YARD WASTE100467

 20.00YARD WASTE100468

 256.80YARD WASTE100547

 40.00YARD WASTE100588

 341.15YARD WASTE100624

 25.00YARD WASTE100813

 344.65YARD WASTE100862

 213.05YARD WASTE100920

 239.65YARD WASTE100985

 825.91GARRY OAK TREES101001

 20.00YARD WASTE101048

 267.30YARD WASTE101055

 20.00YARD WASTE101061

 397.85YARD WASTE99037

 223.90YARD WASTE99307

 199.05YARD WASTE99372

 236.85YARD WASTE99449

 301.95YARD WASTE99543

 150.40YARD WASTE99887

 160.20YARD WASTE99982

10Page:

21



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  5,276.56 162696 6/10/2015 0000530 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY

 162697 6/10/2015 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 998764 GROCERIES  226.92

 378.85GROCERIES998813

Total :  605.77

 162698 6/10/2015 0007306  MASSEY, MEG EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  85.12

Total :  85.12

 162699 6/10/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P39971 MAY 2015/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  470.54

Total :  470.54

 162700 6/10/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 39971 MAY 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  277.19

Total :  277.19

 162701 6/10/2015 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  168.04

Total :  168.04

 162702 6/10/2015 0007858  MCCLAINE, JOHN 266 MOORAGE REFUND  35.54

Total :  35.54

 162703 6/10/2015 0007722  MERRIMAN, RYAN 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162704 6/10/2015 0007778  MITCHELL, LORA 060415 TRAVEL REFUND  10.00

Total :  10.00

 162705 6/10/2015 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162706 6/10/2015 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162707 6/10/2015 0002671  NATIONAL BARRICADE CO, LLC 539855 SIGN STAND/SIGNS/BARRICADE  8,139.67

Total :  8,139.67

 162708 6/10/2015 0000958  NATURAL RESOURCES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF060315 FOREST PRACTICE APPLICATION  100.00

Total :  100.00

11Page:

22



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162709 6/10/2015 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0552208-IN FUEL  775.04

Total :  775.04

 162710 6/10/2015 0000621  NIIRO, CEDRIC 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162711 6/10/2015 0000623  NITCHER, WENDY 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162712 6/10/2015 0002200  NORTH WHIDBEY SPORTSMAN'S 146 2015 RANGE RENTAL  850.00

Total :  850.00

 162713 6/10/2015 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 255660 OIL/DRILL BIT  127.60

 10.85SPRAY PAINT255684

 8.12TISSUE255773

 48.43LOOM/BULBS255846

 9.30SCRUBBER PAD/SPRAY PAINT255883

 108.65APRON CHAPS255900

-5.39APRON CHAPS255901

 14.11GLUE255948

 10.29COUPLE/PRIMER/CEMENT255950

 1.72ADAPTER255971

 15.20WASP SPRAY/QUICK CONNECT255977

 1.62NIPPLE256005

 4.33WALL ANCHOR/FILTERS256019

 3.89SEAL256026

 34.82BUSHING/COUPLE/CEMENT/ELBOW/TEE256073

 22.79SPOOL/COUPL256166

 14.12SCDR256194

 10.86FLAG256228

 8.14EXTENDER KIT256255

 19.54BAGS256256

 15.29CAR WASH/RSTP/PAINT BRUSH256289

 19.53SQUEEGE256305

 9.76WASP SPRAY256326

 11.64FASTENERS256342

 34.24PAINT/FASTENERS256390

12Page:

23



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  559.45 162713 6/10/2015 0000672 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 162714 6/10/2015 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-239950 SPARK PLUG  4.47

 14.61FUSE HOSE001-240223

 11.34HOSE CONN001-240241

 5.60FILTERS001-240246

 34.43COOLANT HOSE001-240250

 15.74INT DOOR HAN001-240401

 8.99UTILITY CLOTH001-240418

 8.82FILTERS001-240541

-6.13HOSE CONN001-240835

 26.89U-JOINT001-240840

 91.37FILTERS001-240845

 1.59MINI LAMP001-241029

Total :  217.72

 162715 6/10/2015 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000140120 MARATHON SHUTTLE  229.37

 9,660.00MAY 2015/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT0000140142

Total :  9,889.37

 162716 6/10/2015 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 98310 CONTRACT SERVICES  282.62

 380.45INSTALLATION98311

Total :  663.07

 162717 6/10/2015 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 771883191001 CHAIRMATS  118.59

Total :  118.59

 162718 6/10/2015 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 393365 PRE-EMPLOYMENT/ANEMA  75.00

 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT/NEWHOUSE394492

 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT/FLOWERS395205

 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT/WOODS395606

 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT/SANDERS395682

 75.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT/ANDERSON395820

Total :  450.00

 162719 6/10/2015 0006007  O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2532-324674 HANDLE  31.13

Total :  31.13

13Page:

24



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162720 6/10/2015 0007027  ORSWELL EVENTS, LLC 2015027 PRODUCTION EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT  123.00

Total :  123.00

 162721 6/10/2015 0006386  PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO, LP C050399511 VEHICLE RENTAL  328.77

 347.85VEHICLE RENTALC050399637

Total :  676.62

 162722 6/10/2015 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162723 6/10/2015 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 242915 SHIPPING  50.00

Total :  50.00

 162724 6/10/2015 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162725 6/10/2015 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0026421-IN GLOVES  391.32

 18.66COVERALLS WRAPAROUND0026534-in

Total :  409.98

 162726 6/10/2015 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  12.96

 12.96ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,332.86ELECTRICITY/FT NUGENT RD300000007421

Total :  13,358.78

 162727 6/10/2015 0003047  QUALA-TEL ENTERPRISES 33190 HEADSET  306.04

Total :  306.04

 162728 6/10/2015 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1506 TAPING SERVICES  2,213.71

Total :  2,213.71

 162729 6/10/2015 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162730 6/10/2015 0000964  SHERIFFS & POLICE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OFINV026451 REGISTRATION/GREEN  300.00

Total :  300.00

 162731 6/10/2015 0003783  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO 9491-1 STRAINER ELASTI  6.07

14Page:

25



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  6.07 162731 6/10/2015 0003783 0003783  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO

 162732 6/10/2015 0005003  SILVEIRA, MANUEL TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  94.50

Total :  94.50

 162733 6/10/2015 0003685  SIMS, NEAL 5473 MOORAGE REFUND  115.84

Total :  115.84

 162734 6/10/2015 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-303324-1 LENS  14.09

 56.18LAMPS14-304469

Total :  70.27

 162735 6/10/2015 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 426424 MALATHION CONC  86.92

 20.61GLOVES426470

 5.42GLOVES428629

 14.12FENCE POST428800

Total :  127.07

 162736 6/10/2015 0000876  SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 37401 REGISTRATION/DIRIG  54.00

Total :  54.00

 162737 6/10/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW634379 SUMM OF ORDINANCE 1730  34.89

 143.29NOA WORD LIFE CHURCHWCW634787

Total :  178.18

 162738 6/10/2015 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 052115 LIFE/POCFF  358.13

Total :  358.13

 162739 6/10/2015 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3259682871 DUCT TAPE  46.62

 99.78USB3259682872

 203.89PENS/3 HOLE PUNCH/TONER3259682873

 92.39DOCUMENT HOLDER3259682875

 17.62APPT BOOK3259682876

 233.23TONER3259682877

 87.85TONER3260195026

 32.31PENS3260195028

 169.51LAUNDRY DETERGENT3260195029

 140.14INK3264201584

15Page:

26



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162739 6/10/2015 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 47.44TAPE DISPENSER/STAPLER/PENS/FASTENERS3264201588

 16.40IPHONE JCKT3265307926

 68.42CERTIFICATE HOLDER3265307929

 19.13SIGN HOLDER3265833345

 19.13SIGN HOLDER3265833346

 269.48TONER3265833351

 52.76FILE POCKETS3265833352

 86.63TONER3265833353

 147.79CASH BAG3266920333

 33.30ENVELOPES/PENS3266920336

 41.01PENCILS/FOLDERS/SCISSORS3266920337

 326.08APC BACK UPS3266920338

 133.36THERMAL ROLLS3266920340

 48.60NCR ROLLS3266920341

 29.63PADS/CARD STOCK3266920342

Total :  2,462.50

 162740 6/10/2015 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1057641 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1057643

 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1057644

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1057647

 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1057650

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1057659

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1058471

 97.83PEST EXTERMINATION1058476

Total :  376.12

 162741 6/10/2015 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 060115 COURT/BC FEES  11,001.43

Total :  11,001.43

 162742 6/10/2015 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W225 SHIPPING  19.06

Total :  19.06

 162743 6/10/2015 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 051815 LONG TERM CARE  269.78

Total :  269.78

16Page:

27



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162744 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000611990 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  3,475.26

Total :  3,475.26

 162745 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,012.10

Total :  1,012.10

 162746 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  912.20

Total :  912.20

 162747 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  535.02

Total :  535.02

 162748 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  525.00

Total :  525.00

 162749 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  510.49

Total :  510.49

 162750 6/10/2015 0004903  US BANK 4485591001286149 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  12.33

Total :  12.33

 162751 6/10/2015 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 648535 EFFLUENT PUMP  1,133.82

Total :  1,133.82

 162752 6/10/2015 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 5050174 MAY 2015/LOCATES  138.60

Total :  138.60

 162753 6/10/2015 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2251490097 SWITCH  31.65

Total :  31.65

 162754 6/10/2015 0007388  WALSTAD, TIM 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162755 6/10/2015 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I15007928 BACKGROUND CHECKS  619.50

Total :  619.50

 162756 6/10/2015 0000245  WASTEQUIP 14614319 TARP -298.87

 18,853.84RECYCLING CONTAINERS37210406

17Page:

28



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 162756 6/10/2015 (Continued)0000245  WASTEQUIP

 10,558.58RECYCLING CONTAINERS37210417

Total :  29,113.55

 162757 6/10/2015 0001055  WATERWORX DIVE SERVICE 060315 UNDERWATER SERVICES  2,250.10

Total :  2,250.10

 162758 6/10/2015 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF36 PROF SVC/GENERAL  24,385.36

Total :  24,385.36

 162759 6/10/2015 0003897  WELSHANS, KINDLE 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162760 6/10/2015 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC K760516 ASSY  269.13

Total :  269.13

 162761 6/10/2015 0006151  WHIDBEY MARKETPLACE & NEWS,LLC 3845 BROCHURES  576.00

Total :  576.00

 162762 6/10/2015 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 47709 BUSINESS CARDS/CAUFFMAN  117.12

 362.42AP CHECKS47767

Total :  479.54

 162763 6/10/2015 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3859499 CURRENT NET CHARGES  42.07

 63.68ALARM MONITORING3862449

Total :  105.75

 162764 6/10/2015 0001014  WHITNEY EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC 78528 CHECK VALVE  1,783.00

Total :  1,783.00

 162765 6/10/2015 0007857  WOLFE, MATTIE DAVIS 1141 MOORAGE REFUND  79.08

Total :  79.08

 162766 6/10/2015 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 060415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 162767 6/10/2015 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701862736 APR 2015/COPIER RENTAL  4,584.91

18Page:

29



06/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 2:01:16PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  4,584.91 162767 6/10/2015 0001061 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION

Bank total :  811,139.86 171 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 811,139.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 171

19Page:

30



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No 1736: Claims 
payment prohibition code 
amendment

FROM: Doug Merriman, Director of Finance

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1736

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
OHMC 3.72.030 currently prohibits payments of claims (the payment of invoices in the City's ordinary 
course of business) when such payment causes a singular budget line item to be shown as a deficit.  
Under generally accepted budgeting practices, and within the City's budget ordinance, the budget

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.c
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No 1736: Claims 
payment prohibition code 
amendment

FROM: Doug Merriman, Director of Finance

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1736

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
OHMC 3.72.030 currently prohibits payments of claims (the payment of invoices in the City's ordinary 
course of business) when such payment causes a singular budget line item to be shown as a deficit.  
Under generally accepted budgeting practices, and within the City's budget ordinance, the budgetUnder generally accepted budgeting practices, and within the City's budget ordinance, the budget 
accountability for expenditures resides at the fund level. 

Managers charged with budget authority are required to charged expenditures to the proper BARS 
expenditure code based on the nature of the expense.  To allow flexibility while holding managers 
accountable for their budget, managers are allowed to "flex their budgets" between budget line items as 
long as their total fund budget is not exceeded.  For example, if a training opportunity arises that was not
anticipated in the original adopted budget, a manager has the authority to expend funds from his/her 
training budget line item, but will be required to reduce a budget line item somewhere else to compensate 
for the increase in training costs.  As long as the manager's total fund budget is not exceeded, budget 
compliance is maintained.

OHMC 3.72.030 contains outdated language which denies the payment of claims if line item budgets are 
exceeded.  The wording should properly state that the payment of claims is denied if the payment of such
claims causes the fund appropriation level to be exceeded.  Ordinance 1736 corrects this language.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact to this action.

Under generally accepted budgeting practices, and within the City's budget ordinance, the budget 
accountability for expenditures resides at the fund level. 

Managers charged with budget authority are required to charged expenditures to the proper BARS 
expenditure code based on the nature of the expense.  To allow flexibility while holding managers 
accountable for their budget, managers are allowed to "flex their budgets" between budget line items as 
long as their total fund budget is not exceeded.  For example, if a training opportunity arises that was not 
anticipated in the original adopted budget, a manager has the authority to expend funds from his/her 
training budget line item, but will be required to reduce a budget line item somewhere else to compensate 
for the increase in training costs.  As long as the manager's total fund budget is not exceeded, budget 
compliance is maintained.

OHMC 3.72.030 contains outdated language which denies the payment of claims if line item budgets are 
exceeded.  The wording should properly state that the payment of claims is denied if the payment of such 
claims causes the fund appropriation level to be exceeded.  Ordinance 1736 corrects this language.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact to this action.

31



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No 1736

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No 1736

32

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433972459_at.pdf


Claims Approval Threshold Ordinance 
OHMC 3.72.030 
Page - 1 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1736 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING SECTION 3.72.030 OF 
THE OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE ENTITLED "CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL – 
REQUIRED WHEN" TO PROHIBIT CLAIM PAYMENTS WHEN SUCH PAYMENTS 
WOULD CAUSE A FUND DEFICIT 

 
WHEREAS, OHMC 3.72.030 prohibits the payment of claims when such payment would cause 
a deficit in the budgeted line item against which it is drawn; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor appropriation authority for budgetary purposes resides at 
the fund level; and 

 
WHEREAS, OHMC 3.72.030 should be amended to reflect that no claim should be paid where 
such payment would cause a deficit in the fund from which it is drawn; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

 
Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 entitled "City Council Approval – 
required When" adopted by Ord. 1265 (2001) and Ord. 764 (1986) is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
3.72.030 City council approval – Required when. 
 
No claim shall be paid prior to council approval where payment of the claim would cause a 
deficit in the budgeted line item fund level appropriation of the fund against which the claim is 
drawn.  At the end of each quarter, the Finance Department will perform an analysis of 
individual budget line items to ascertain if any have exceeded the corresponding budget 
authority.  If a deficit exists, the responsible department head will provide a written explanation 
for the overage, including a plan to reallocate budget appropriation, through amendment or 
adjustment, to eliminate the deficit budget position. 

 
Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 
 

Section Three.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after publication. 

 
PASSED by the City Council this day of , 2015. 

 

 Veto ( ) 
Approve ( ) 

33



Claims Approval Threshold Ordinance 
OHMC 3.72.030 
Page - 2 

 

 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 

By    Scott Dudley, Mayor 

 
Dated:    

 

Attest: 
 
 
 

 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

 
 

 

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Request to Authorize a Storm 
Drain Intern Position

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the creation of an intern position in the Storm Drain Division to assist with compliance of the 
City's NPDES Phase II Stormwater Permit.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City’s NPDES Phase II Stormwater Permit requires the City to perform community outreach and 
education, create stewardship and/or partnership opportunities to encourage residents to participate in 
activities that promote the reduction of stormwater pollution and to measure the effectiveness of the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.d
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Request to Authorize a Storm 
Drain Intern Position

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the creation of an intern position in the Storm Drain Division to assist with compliance of the 
City's NPDES Phase II Stormwater Permit.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City’s NPDES Phase II Stormwater Permit requires the City to perform community outreach and 
education, create stewardship and/or partnership opportunities to encourage residents to participate in 
activities that promote the reduction of stormwater pollution and to measure the effectiveness of the activities that promote the reduction of stormwater pollution and to measure the effectiveness of the 
outreach and education efforts.  The budget for the Storm Drain Division includes funding for professional
services to assist the City in some of these efforts.

Skagit Valley College has recently added a program in which students can obtain a Bachelor of Applied 
Science in Environmental Conservation.  A requirement of this program is that students serve an 
internship.  A Skagit Valley College student in this program has recently inquired about internship 
opportunities with the City.  Staff believes that interns will be able to perform some of the work that was 
planned for outside consultants/organizations and would like to create internship opportunities when it is 
deemed to be in the best interest of the City.  Funding for the internships would come from the Storm 
Drain Fund.  Requests for internships will be reviewed on a case by case basis taking into consideration
workload and available budget.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

activities that promote the reduction of stormwater pollution and to measure the effectiveness of the 
outreach and education efforts.  The budget for the Storm Drain Division includes funding for professional 
services to assist the City in some of these efforts.

Skagit Valley College has recently added a program in which students can obtain a Bachelor of Applied 
Science in Environmental Conservation.  A requirement of this program is that students serve an 
internship.  A Skagit Valley College student in this program has recently inquired about internship 
opportunities with the City.  Staff believes that interns will be able to perform some of the work that was 
planned for outside consultants/organizations and would like to create internship opportunities when it is 
deemed to be in the best interest of the City.  Funding for the internships would come from the Storm 
Drain Fund.  Requests for internships will be reviewed on a case by case basis taking into consideration 
workload and available budget.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

35



ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS

36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1737: LOCAL Series 
2015B - Authorization 
Ordinance

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No 1737

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor intends to obtain long-term financing for its Energy Efficiency project through the 
us of the State of Washington's Local Option Capital Asset Lending (LOCAL) program. 

As part of the documentation process, the State requires participants to execute an Ordinance addressing

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance 1737: LOCAL Series 
2015B - Authorization 
Ordinance

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No 1737

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor intends to obtain long-term financing for its Energy Efficiency project through the 
us of the State of Washington's Local Option Capital Asset Lending (LOCAL) program. 

As part of the documentation process, the State requires participants to execute an Ordinance addressing As part of the documentation process, the State requires participants to execute an Ordinance addressing
the following:

1) That the signers of the documents are officially authorized;

2) That the City Council approves of the financing agreement.

Ordinance No 1737 outlines the purpose of the project, the equipment to be utilized, and authorizes 
certain individuals to be the official signers of the loan documents.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct fiscal impact from this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1737

As part of the documentation process, the State requires participants to execute an Ordinance addressing 
the following:

1) That the signers of the documents are officially authorized;

2) That the City Council approves of the financing agreement.

Ordinance No 1737 outlines the purpose of the project, the equipment to be utilized, and authorizes 
certain individuals to be the official signers of the loan documents.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no direct fiscal impact from this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1737

8.a

37

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=1335ad42426e9deb06de0da0ca913187&aName=1434405213_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=1335ad42426e9deb06de0da0ca913187&aName=1434405478_at.pdf


1. Ordinance 1737
2. Annex 1
3. Annex 2
4. Annex 3

1. Ordinance 1737
2. Annex 1
3. Annex 2
4. Annex 3

38

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=1335ad42426e9deb06de0da0ca913187&aName=1434405478_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=1335ad42426e9deb06de0da0ca913187&aName=1434405493_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=1335ad42426e9deb06de0da0ca913187&aName=1434405507_at.pdf


Ordinance 1737: LOCAL Program Authorizing Ordinance 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  1737 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY AND 
EXECUTION OF A FINANCING CONTRACT (LOCAL 2015B) AND RELATED 
DOCUMENTATION RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION OF SAID PERSONAL 
PROPERTY. 

WHEREAS, the City of  Oak Harbor (the “Local Agency”) has executed a Notice of Intent to the 
Office of State Treasurer, in the form attached hereto as Annex 1 (the “NOI”), in relation to the 
acquisition of and the financing of the acquisition of the Property, as defined below, under the 
provisions of RCW Ch 39.94; and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the City Council of the Local Agency that 
the Local Agency acquire the equipment and/or personal property identified on Annex 1 attached 
hereto (“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable by the City Council of the Local Agency that 
the Local Agency enter into a Local Agency Financing Contract with the Office of the State 
Treasurer, in the form attached hereto as Annex 2 (the “Local Agency Financing Contract”), in 
an amount not to exceed $525,000, plus related financing costs, in order to acquire the Property 
and finance the acquisition of the Property; 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency will undertake to acquire the Property on behalf of and as agent 
of the Washington Finance Officers Association (the “Corporation”) pursuant to the terms of the 
Local Agency Financing Contract, and in accordance with all applicable purchasing statutes and 
regulations applicable to the Local Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency desires to appoint the individuals set forth in Annex 3 as the 
representatives of the Local Agency in connection with the acquisition of the Property and 
execution of the Local Agency Financing Contract (each an “Authorized Agency 
Representative”);  

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section 1.  The individuals holding the offices or positions set forth in Annex 3 are each 
hereby appointed as a representative of the Local Agency in connection with the acquisition of 
the Property and execution of the Local Agency Financing Contract and all other related 
documents.  A minimum of 2 Authorized Agency Representatives shall be required to execute 
any one document in order for it to be considered duly executed on behalf of the Local Agency.  

Section 2.  The form of the Local Agency Financing Contract attached hereto as Annex 2 
is hereby approved and the Authorized Agency Representatives are hereby authorized and 
directed to execute and deliver the Local Agency Financing Contract, in an amount not to exceed 
$525,000, plus related financing costs, and in substantially the form attached hereto with such 
changes as may be approved by the Authorized Representatives for the acquisition of the 
Property and financing of the acquisition of the Property.  

39



Ordinance 1737: LOCAL Program Authorizing Ordinance 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Section 3.  The Local Agency hereby authorizes the acquisition of the property as agent 
of the Corporation in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Local Agency Financing 
Contract. 

 Section 4.  The Authorized Representatives are hereby authorized to execute and deliver 
to the Office of State Treasurer all other documents, agreements and certificates, and to take all 
other action, which they deem necessary or appropriate in connection with the financing of the 
Property, including, but not limited to, any amendment to the NOI and agreements relating to 
initial and ongoing disclosure in connection with the offering of securities related to the 
financing. 

Section 5.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after publication. 
 

PASSED by the City Council this 16th day of June, 2015. 
 
 

Veto (
 ) 
Approve ( ) 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 

By     
Scott Dudley, Mayor 

 
Dated:    

 
Attest: 

 
 
  
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

 
  
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 
Published:     

40



Notice of Intent
State of Washington LOCAL(Local Option Capital Asset Lending)

Local Government Information
County: Island

Legal Name: City of Oak Harbor MCAGNo.: 0361

Contact Person: Tallie Boyer Title: Accountant

Address: 865 SE Barrington Dr, Oak Harbor WA Zip: 98277

Phone: (360) 279-4536 Fax: (360) 279-4507 E-mail: tboyer@oakharbor.org

Would you prefer to receive financing documents (check one): Already have financing documents

IXI E-mail LI Hard copy by U.S. mail

Property (Real Estate or Equipment)
Property description (include quantity, if applicable): Upgrading indoor lighting to fluorescent and LED fixtures and

street lighting to LED lighting.

Total cost: $847,705 Maximum amount to finance: $525,000
Finance term: 10 years Useful life: 12 years Desired financing date: August 2015
Purpose of property (Please be syecific and include dept. of use): The City will be upgrading existing lighting at City
Hall, Fire Station, Marina, Police Department, Public Works Building, Senior Center, and Parks with energy efficient
fixture and converting all high intensity discharge street lighting to energy efficient LED lighting

If real estate, the Real Estate Worksheet: LI Is attached LI Will be provided by (date) —

If equipment, will the property purchase price be paid with: program proceeds or general funds to be reimbursed
from program proceeds? If general funds are to be used, include a copy of the local agency’s reimbursement resolution with
the financing documents.

Security Pledge
LI Voted general obligation of local government.. Non-voted general obligation of local government

Other Information
Approximate population: 22,000 (not required for cities and counties).

If any of the following apply, please provide a complete discussion on a separate page:

LI Yes No Does the local government use registered warrants, interfund loans or other cash flow borrowing?

LI Yes No Is the local government a party to significant litigation?

LI Yes LI No Is this a reimbursement? If yes, date funds spent_ —

Has local government received a bond rating in the last two years? LI Yes No Bond rating(s): — —

(attach rating agency letter)

By executing this Notice of Intent, the local agency acknowledges, agrees to and accepts its designation and appointment as the agent of the
nominal lessor in connection with the acquisition of the project. By executing this Notice of Intent, the local agency further acknowledges
and agrees that certificate counsel and any other special counsel to the state in connection with the authorization, issuance and delivery of
the certificates and the related financing documents shall not be acting, and shall not be deemed to act, as counsel to the local agency, nor
shall any attorney-client relationship exist or be deemed to exist between such counsel and any participating local agency in connection
with such matters.

Submitted b : Douglas A. Merriman, Ph.D. Title: Finance Director

Signature:______________________________ Date: 3/4/20 15

ANNEX 1

41



1 

Transaction No._  __ Annex 2 to Authorizing Resolution (Equipment) 

LOCAL AGENCY FINANCING CONTRACT, SERIES 2015B 

 (EQUIPMENT) 

This Local Agency Financing Contract, Series 2015B (the “Agency Financing Contract”) is entered into by and between the state of Washington (the “State”), 

acting by and through the State Treasurer (the “State Treasurer”), and the City of Oak Harbor, a municipal corporation of the State (the “Local Agency”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, certain State agencies (as defined in Appendix I hereto, “State Agencies”) are authorized to acquire real and personal property used or needed by 

such State Agencies through Agency Financing Contracts entered into pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of Washington, 1989, codified as Chapter 39.94 of the Revised 

Code of Washington (the “RCW”), as supplemented and amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 291, Laws of Washington, 1998 supplemented and amended the Act to authorize the State to enter into Agency Financing Contracts on 

behalf of certain local agencies (as described therein, “Local Agencies”), including the Local Agency, to finance the acquisition of real and  personal property by such 

Local Agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer has established a consolidated program providing for the execution and delivery of certificates of participation in such Agency 

Financing Contracts, or in Master Financing Contracts with respect thereto, in series from time to time in order to provide financing or refinancing for the costs of 

acquisition of real and personal property by State Agencies and Local Agencies; and 

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delivery hereof, the State is entering into a Master Financing Contract, Series 2015B, dated as of the Dated 

Date (the “Master Financing Contract”) with the Washington Finance Officers Association, a nonprofit corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue 

of the laws of the state of Washington (the “Corporation”), to provide financing for the costs of acquisition of certain items of personal property by certain State 

Agencies and Local Agencies, including the Local Agency, under the terms set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer and the Local Agency have determined that it is necessary and desirable to enter into this Agency Financing Contract to provide 

financing or refinancing for the costs of acquisition of certain items of personal property, described in Exhibit B hereto (the “Property”), by the Local Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the State Finance Committee has authorized the execution and delivery of this Agency Financing Contract pursuant to Resolution No. 987 adopted 

on October 7, 2003; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the 

execution and delivery of this Agency Financing Contract do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by 

law, and the Parties hereto are now duly authorized to execute, deliver and perform their respective obligations under this Agency Financing Contract; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein and for other valuable consideration, the Parties hereto mutually 

agree as follows: 

Section 1.1 Defined Terms. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Agency Financing Contract shall have the respective meanings given 

such terms in Appendix I hereto.

Section 1.2 Notice of Intent; Personal Property Certificate; Certificate Designating Authorized Local Agency Representative. The Local Agency has 

delivered a Notice of Intent to the State Treasurer in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. In order to evidence its 

acceptance of the Property financed and acquired pursuant hereto, the Local Agency has executed and delivered herewith, or will execute and deliver within 60 days 

from the Dated Date to the State Treasurer, a Personal Property Certificate in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The 

Local Agency has delivered a Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives to the State Treasurer in the form of Exhibit C attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. Said Certificate is currently in force and has not been amended, withdrawn or superseded, and the signatures shown thereon 

are true and correct originals of the signatures of the persons who hold the titles shown opposite their names. The signature of any one of the individuals shown on 

said Certificate is sufficient to bind the Local Agency under this Agency Financing Contract with respect to any of the undertakings contemplated herein. The terms 

and provisions set forth in Appendix II hereto are incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference.

Section 1.3 Installment Sale and Purchase of Property. The State hereby agrees to sell, assign and convey, and does hereby sell, assign and convey to the 

Local Agency, and the Local Agency hereby agrees to purchase, acquire and assume, and does hereby purchase, acquire and assume, from the State, all of the State’s 

right, title and interest in and to the Property and all proceeds and profits thereof and therefrom, subject to the security interest created pursuant to Section 2.5 of 

Appendix II hereof, and the Local Agency agrees to pay in consideration thereof the Purchase Price therefor and interest thereon and the Additional Costs in 

accordance with Section 1.4 hereof, and all other amounts required to be paid by the Local Agency hereunder, all in accordance with the provisions of this Agency 

Financing Contract.

Section 1.4 Agency Installment Payments. In consideration of the sale of the Property and the covenants and agreements of the State in this Agency 

Financing Contract, the Local Agency hereby promises to pay to the State the following amounts at the following times: (a) On each Agency Installment Payment 

Date, the Agency Installment Payment set forth in Exhibit D hereto, consisting of a Principal Component and/or an Interest Component as set forth in such Exhibit; 

and (b) All Additional Costs incurred by the State in connection with the sale of the Property to the Local Agency, the execution and delivery of the Certificates, and 

the observance and performance of the Series 2015B Agreements, within thirty (30) days following receipt of an invoice from the State with respect thereto which 

includes (i) a brief description of each such Additional Cost, (ii) the party to whom payment is due, (iii) the amount thereof, and (iv) such additional information as 

the Local Agency may reasonably request.

Section 1.5 Term. The term of this Local Agency Financing Contract shall commence on the Dated Date and shall terminate on the date on which all 

amounts due hereunder shall have been paid or the payment thereof duly provided for pursuant to Section 4.3 of Appendix II hereof.

STATE OF WASHINGTON City of Oak Harbor 

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER as Local Agency 

By __________________________________________ By __________________________________________ 

Designated Treasurer Representative Authorized Agency Representative 

By __________________________________________ 

Authorized Agency Representative 

ANNEX 2

42



1 

Certificate Designating Authorized Agency Representatives 

I, the Mayor, of the City of Oak Harbor (the “Local Agency”), hereby certify that, as of the date hereof, pursuant to 

Ordinance No. 1737, the following individuals are each an “Authorized Agency Representative,” as indicated by the title 

appended to each signature, that the following individuals are duly authorized to execute and deliver the Local Agency 

Financing Agreement to which this Certificate is attached as Exhibit C, and all documentation in connection therewith, 

including but not limited to the Personal Property Certificate(s) attached thereto as Exhibit B, that the signatures set forth 

below are the true and genuine signatures of said Authorized Agency Representatives and that pursuant to such ordinance, the 

two following signature are required on each of the aforementioned documents in order to consider such documents executed 

on behalf of the Local Agency: 

________________________________________ 

Douglas A. Merriman, Finance Director 

________________________________________ 

Larry Cort, City Administrator 

Dated this __ __ day of _ _, 20 . 

Scott Dudley, Mayor, City of Oak Harbor 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this _ __ day of __ _, 20 . 

By: _______________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 

Washington, residing at: 

___________________________ 

Printed Name: _______________ 

My Commission Expires: ______ 

ANNEX 3

43



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-20:  Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 15-20

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) for the City Council’s initial, 
formal consideration and comment.  The Council is asked to officially forward the City’s comments on 
the CWPP to Island County.

BACKGROUND

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.b
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-20:  Countywide 
Planning Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 15-20

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies (CWPP) for the City Council’s initial, 
formal consideration and comment.  The Council is asked to officially forward the City’s comments on 
the CWPP to Island County.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210; Attachment 1). The countywide planning 
policies (CWPP) are policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which
county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  At a minimum the policies address the 
following:

(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110[urban growth areas] (Attachment 2);

(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to such
development;

(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, including transportation
facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140;

(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies;

(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all economic segments of 
the population and parameters for its distribution;

BACKGROUND

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are required to 
adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210; Attachment 1). The countywide planning 
policies (CWPP) are policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which 
county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  At a minimum the policies address the 
following:

(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110[urban growth areas] (Attachment 2);

(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to such 
development;

(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, including transportation 
facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140;

(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies;

(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all economic segments of 
the population and parameters for its distribution;

44



(f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas;

(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include consideration of 
the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and

(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact.

Under GMA, counties take the lead in coordinating the drafting of the CWPP.  Staffs from Island 
County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor met approximately 15 times between March 2013 and 
February 2015 to discuss revisions to the CWPP and to create a unified methodology for analyzing the 
quantity of buildable land in Island County’s UGAs. 

THE DRAFT

The CWPP provide a framework for the adoption of comprehensive plans and are intended to help guide 
and coordinate issues of regional significance.  They address a wide variety of topics including, but not 
limited to, joint planning areas, urban growth areas, urban development and land capacity analysis. 

County staff took the lead in preparing the initial version of the draft CWPP.  The format of the draft is 
significantly different than that of the existing CWPP.  Where policies within the existing CWPP are 
general, the proposed policies are generally more detailed.  Greater attention is also paid to how certain 
aspects of the policies will be implemented (e.g. how a land capacity analysis is to be completed). 

City staff played an active role in discussing the implications of the proposed policies and in advocating 
for amendments to the draft.  The majority of Oak Harbor’s suggested amendments have already been 
incorporated.  As one might expect, there was not one-hundred percent agreement on all items by all 
parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 

(f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas;

(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include consideration of 
the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and

(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact.

Under GMA, counties take the lead in coordinating the drafting of the CWPP.  Staffs from Island 
County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor met approximately 15 times between March 2013 and 
February 2015 to discuss revisions to the CWPP and to create a unified methodology for analyzing the 
quantity of buildable land in Island County’s UGAs. 

THE DRAFT

The CWPP provide a framework for the adoption of comprehensive plans and are intended to help guide 
and coordinate issues of regional significance.  They address a wide variety of topics including, but not 
limited to, joint planning areas, urban growth areas, urban development and land capacity analysis. 

County staff took the lead in preparing the initial version of the draft CWPP.  The format of the draft is 
significantly different than that of the existing CWPP.  Where policies within the existing CWPP are 
general, the proposed policies are generally more detailed.  Greater attention is also paid to how certain 
aspects of the policies will be implemented (e.g. how a land capacity analysis is to be completed). 

City staff played an active role in discussing the implications of the proposed policies and in advocating 
for amendments to the draft.  The majority of Oak Harbor’s suggested amendments have already been 
incorporated.  As one might expect, there was not one-hundred percent agreement on all items by all 
parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 
polices. 

In addition to the staff work, the draft CWPP have gone through an extensive briefing and review process 
with the Planning Commission and City Council.  The completed their work by conducting a public 

hearing on March 24th and April 28th and recommending approval of the draft CWPP (see section 
below).  The staff reports (without attachments) and the minutes from the Commission’s public hearing 
dates are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, respectively.

A question regarding the proposed language of one portion of the CWPP has come up since the time of 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  This question pertains to one of the thresholds used to 
determine the development potential of partially vacant lots within the UGA.  In short, staff is concerned 
that as drafted the language may lead to an overstatement of the practical land capacity within the UGA.  
Staff has added a comment to the appropriate section of the draft for the Council’s consideration (UGA 
Capacity – Single Family Zones, No. 2; page 31of draft).  Staff has also preliminarily raised this topic 
with Island County staff.

ISLAND COUNTY REVIEW AND REQUEST

The Island County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners have both taken action on 
the draft CWPP.  The Planning Commission voted on March 9, 2015 to recommend the County 

parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the proposed 
polices. 

In addition to the staff work, the draft CWPP have gone through an extensive briefing and review process 
with the Planning Commission and City Council.  The completed their work by conducting a public 

hearing on March 24th and April 28th and recommending approval of the draft CWPP (see section 
below).  The staff reports (without attachments) and the minutes from the Commission’s public hearing 
dates are attached to this agenda bill as Attachments 3 and 4, respectively.

A question regarding the proposed language of one portion of the CWPP has come up since the time of 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  This question pertains to one of the thresholds used to 
determine the development potential of partially vacant lots within the UGA.  In short, staff is concerned 
that as drafted the language may lead to an overstatement of the practical land capacity within the UGA.  
Staff has added a comment to the appropriate section of the draft for the Council’s consideration (UGA 
Capacity – Single Family Zones, No. 2; page 31of draft).  Staff has also preliminarily raised this topic 
with Island County staff.

ISLAND COUNTY REVIEW AND REQUEST

The Island County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners have both taken action on 
the draft CWPP.  The Planning Commission voted on March 9, 2015 to recommend the County 

45



Commissioners begin the process of adopting the revised CWPP.  On April 21, 2015 the County 
Commissioners approved Resolution C-34-15, updating the CWPP, and beginning a sixty day comment 
period.  The resolution requests Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor provide formal comments to Island 
County no later than July 1, 2015.  The resolution, CWPP and other materials were transmitted to the 
City via a letter dated April 28, 2015.  The cover letter and attached materials are included with this 
agenda bill as Attachment 5. 

The County requests that the City’s comments be in the form of a City Council resolution.  Staff has 
drafted a resolution (Resolution No. 15-20) to meet this purpose (Attachment 6).  The most straight 
forward way to transmit the City’s comments to the County is to attach an annotated version of the 
CWPP to the resolution.  The CWPP attached to the resolution are as recommended by the Planning 
Commission on April 28, 2015, plus staff’s additional comment as referenced earlier.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.210
RCW 36.70A.110

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 

Commissioners begin the process of adopting the revised CWPP.  On April 21, 2015 the County 
Commissioners approved Resolution C-34-15, updating the CWPP, and beginning a sixty day comment 
period.  The resolution requests Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor provide formal comments to Island 
County no later than July 1, 2015.  The resolution, CWPP and other materials were transmitted to the 
City via a letter dated April 28, 2015.  The cover letter and attached materials are included with this 
agenda bill as Attachment 5. 

The County requests that the City’s comments be in the form of a City Council resolution.  Staff has 
drafted a resolution (Resolution No. 15-20) to meet this purpose (Attachment 6).  The most straight 
forward way to transmit the City’s comments to the County is to attach an annotated version of the 
CWPP to the resolution.  The CWPP attached to the resolution are as recommended by the Planning 
Commission on April 28, 2015, plus staff’s additional comment as referenced earlier.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.210
RCW 36.70A.110

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 
October 28th, November 19th, November 25th and December 9th.  2015 meeting dates included 

January 27th and February 24th.  On March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission opened a public hearing 
on the CWPP.  They closed the hearing on April 28, 2015 and recommended approval of the draft 
CWPP to the City Council. 

 The Council was briefed on this item at their December 17, 2014 workshop.  In 2015, the Council was 
briefed on January 28th, February 11th, April 22nd, and May 27th workshops.

ATTACHMENTS
1. RCW 36.70A.210, Countywide planning policies
2. RCW 36.70A.110, Urban growth areas
3. Planning Commission report and minutes, March 24, 2015
4. Planning Commission report and minutes, April 28, 2015
5. Island County, CWPP 60-day comment period letter plus attachments, April 28, 2015
6. Resolution No. 15-20, with attached CWPP (PC recommended plus one staff comment)

The Planning Commission was briefed a number of times on the CWPP.  Meeting dates in 2014 included 
October 28th, November 19th, November 25th and December 9th.  2015 meeting dates included 

January 27th and February 24th.  On March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission opened a public hearing 
on the CWPP.  They closed the hearing on April 28, 2015 and recommended approval of the draft 
CWPP to the City Council. 

 The Council was briefed on this item at their December 17, 2014 workshop.  In 2015, the Council was 
briefed on January 28th, February 11th, April 22nd, and May 27th workshops.

ATTACHMENTS
1. RCW 36.70A.210, Countywide planning policies
2. RCW 36.70A.110, Urban growth areas
3. Planning Commission report and minutes, March 24, 2015
4. Planning Commission report and minutes, April 28, 2015
5. Island County, CWPP 60-day comment period letter plus attachments, April 28, 2015
6. Resolution No. 15-20, with attached CWPP (PC recommended plus one staff comment)

46

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866787_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866827_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866865_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866897_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433866963_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433867023_at.pdf


1 
 

RCW 36.70A.210 
Countywide planning policies. 

 

(1) The legislature recognizes that counties are regional governments within their boundaries, and cities 
are primary providers of urban governmental services within urban growth areas. For the purposes of 
this section, a "countywide planning policy" is a written policy statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are developed 
and adopted pursuant to this chapter. This framework shall ensure that city and county comprehensive 
plans are consistent as required in RCW 36.70A.100. Nothing in this section shall be construed to alter 
the land-use powers of cities. 
 
     (2) The legislative authority of a county that plans under RCW 36.70A.040 shall adopt a countywide 
planning policy in cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within the county as follows: 
 
     (a) No later than sixty calendar days from July 16, 1991, the legislative authority of each county that 
as of June 1, 1991, was required or chose to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall convene a meeting with 
representatives of each city located within the county for the purpose of establishing a collaborative 
process that will provide a framework for the adoption of a countywide planning policy. In other 
counties that are required or choose to plan under RCW 36.70A.040, this meeting shall be convened no 
later than sixty days after the date the county adopts its resolution of intention or was certified by the 
office of financial management. 
 
     (b) The process and framework for adoption of a countywide planning policy specified in (a) of this 
subsection shall determine the manner in which the county and the cities agree to all procedures and 
provisions including but not limited to desired planning policies, deadlines, ratification of final 
agreements and demonstration thereof, and financing, if any, of all activities associated therewith. 
 
     (c) If a county fails for any reason to convene a meeting with representatives of cities as required in 
(a) of this subsection, the governor may immediately impose any appropriate sanction or sanctions on 
the county from those specified under RCW 36.70A.340. 
 
     (d) If there is no agreement by October 1, 1991, in a county that was required or chose to plan under 
RCW 36.70A.040 as of June 1, 1991, or if there is no agreement within one hundred twenty days of the 
date the county adopted its resolution of intention or was certified by the office of financial 
management in any other county that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 36.70A.040, the 
governor shall first inquire of the jurisdictions as to the reason or reasons for failure to reach an 
agreement. If the governor deems it appropriate, the governor may immediately request the assistance 
of the *department of community, trade, and economic development to mediate any disputes that 
preclude agreement. If mediation is unsuccessful in resolving all disputes that will lead to agreement, 
the governor may impose appropriate sanctions from those specified under RCW 36.70A.340 on the 
county, city, or cities for failure to reach an agreement as provided in this section. The governor shall 
specify the reason or reasons for the imposition of any sanction. 
 
     (e) No later than July 1, 1992, the legislative authority of each county that was required or chose to 
plan under RCW 36.70A.040 as of June 1, 1991, or no later than fourteen months after the date the 
county adopted its resolution of intention or was certified by the office of financial management the 
county legislative authority of any other county that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 
36.70A.040, shall adopt a countywide planning policy according to the process provided under this 
section and that is consistent with the agreement pursuant to (b) of this subsection, and after holding a 

47

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.100
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.340
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.340
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040


2 
 

public hearing or hearings on the proposed countywide planning policy. 
 
     (3) A countywide planning policy shall at a minimum, address the following: 
 
     (a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110; 
 
     (b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban services to 
such development; 
 
     (c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, including 
transportation facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140; 
 
     (d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies; 
 
     (e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all economic segments 
of the population and parameters for its distribution; 
 
     (f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas; 
 
     (g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include 
consideration of the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and 
 
     (h) An analysis of the fiscal impact. 
 
     (4) Federal agencies and Indian tribes may participate in and cooperate with the countywide planning 
policy adoption process. Adopted countywide planning policies shall be adhered to by state agencies. 
 
     (5) Failure to adopt a countywide planning policy that meets the requirements of this section may 
result in the imposition of a sanction or sanctions on a county or city within the county, as specified in 
RCW 36.70A.340. In imposing a sanction or sanctions, the governor shall specify the reasons for failure 
to adopt a countywide planning policy in order that any imposed sanction or sanctions are fairly and 
equitably related to the failure to adopt a countywide planning policy. 
 
     (6) Cities and the governor may appeal an adopted countywide planning policy to the growth 
management hearings board within sixty days of the adoption of the countywide planning policy. 
 
     (7) Multicounty planning policies shall be adopted by two or more counties, each with a population of 
four hundred fifty thousand or more, with contiguous urban areas and may be adopted by other 
counties, according to the process established under this section or other processes agreed to among 
the counties and cities within the affected counties throughout the multicounty region. 
 

48

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.110
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=47.06.140
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.340


1 
 

RCW 36.70A.110 

Comprehensive plans — Urban growth areas. 

 

(1) Each county that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall designate an urban 

growth area or areas within which urban growth shall be encouraged and outside of which growth can 

occur only if it is not urban in nature. Each city that is located in such a county shall be included within 

an urban growth area. An urban growth area may include more than a single city. An urban growth area 

may include territory that is located outside of a city only if such territory already is characterized by 

urban growth whether or not the urban growth area includes a city, or is adjacent to territory already 

characterized by urban growth, or is a designated new fully contained community as defined by RCW 

36.70A.350. 

 

     (2) Based upon the growth management population projection made for the county by the office of 

financial management, the county and each city within the county shall include areas and densities 

sufficient to permit the urban growth that is projected to occur in the county or city for the succeeding 

twenty-year period, except for those urban growth areas contained totally within a national historical 

reserve. As part of this planning process, each city within the county must include areas sufficient to 

accommodate the broad range of needs and uses that will accompany the projected urban growth 

including, as appropriate, medical, governmental, institutional, commercial, service, retail, and other 

nonresidential uses. 

 

     Each urban growth area shall permit urban densities and shall include greenbelt and open space 

areas. In the case of urban growth areas contained totally within a national historical reserve, the city 

may restrict densities, intensities, and forms of urban growth as determined to be necessary and 

appropriate to protect the physical, cultural, or historic integrity of the reserve. An urban growth area 

determination may include a reasonable land market supply factor and shall permit a range of urban 

densities and uses. In determining this market factor, cities and counties may consider local 

circumstances. Cities and counties have discretion in their comprehensive plans to make many choices 

about accommodating growth. 

 

     Within one year of July 1, 1990, each county that as of June 1, 1991, was required or chose to plan 

under RCW 36.70A.040, shall begin consulting with each city located within its boundaries and each city 

shall propose the location of an urban growth area. Within sixty days of the date the county legislative 

authority of a county adopts its resolution of intention or of certification by the office of financial 

management, all other counties that are required or choose to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall begin 

this consultation with each city located within its boundaries. The county shall attempt to reach 

agreement with each city on the location of an urban growth area within which the city is located. If 

such an agreement is not reached with each city located within the urban growth area, the county shall 

justify in writing why it so designated the area an urban growth area. A city may object formally with the 

department over the designation of the urban growth area within which it is located. Where 

appropriate, the department shall attempt to resolve the conflicts, including the use of mediation 

services. 

49

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.350
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040


2 
 

 

     (3) Urban growth should be located first in areas already characterized by urban growth that have 

adequate existing public facility and service capacities to serve such development, second in areas 

already characterized by urban growth that will be served adequately by a combination of both existing 

public facilities and services and any additional needed public facilities and services that are provided by 

either public or private sources, and third in the remaining portions of the urban growth areas. Urban 

growth may also be located in designated new fully contained communities as defined by RCW 

36.70A.350. 

 

     (4) In general, cities are the units of local government most appropriate to provide urban 

governmental services. In general, it is not appropriate that urban governmental services be extended to 

or expanded in rural areas except in those limited circumstances shown to be necessary to protect basic 

public health and safety and the environment and when such services are financially supportable at 

rural densities and do not permit urban development. 

 

     (5) On or before October 1, 1993, each county that was initially required to plan under RCW 

36.70A.040(1) shall adopt development regulations designating interim urban growth areas under this 

chapter. Within three years and three months of the date the county legislative authority of a county 

adopts its resolution of intention or of certification by the office of financial management, all other 

counties that are required or choose to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall adopt development 

regulations designating interim urban growth areas under this chapter. Adoption of the interim urban 

growth areas may only occur after public notice; public hearing; and compliance with the state 

environmental policy act, chapter 43.21C RCW, and under this section. Such action may be appealed to 

the growth management hearings board under RCW 36.70A.280. Final urban growth areas shall be 

adopted at the time of comprehensive plan adoption under this chapter. 

 

     (6) Each county shall include designations of urban growth areas in its comprehensive plan. 

 

     (7) An urban growth area designated in accordance with this section may include within its 

boundaries urban service areas or potential annexation areas designated for specific cities or towns 

within the county. 

 

     (8)(a) Except as provided in (b) of this subsection, the expansion of an urban growth area is prohibited 

into the one hundred year floodplain of any river or river segment that: (i) Is located west of the crest of 

the Cascade mountains; and (ii) has a mean annual flow of one thousand or more cubic feet per second 

as determined by the department of ecology. 

 

     (b) Subsection (8)(a) of this section does not apply to: 

 

     (i) Urban growth areas that are fully contained within a floodplain and lack adjacent buildable areas 

outside the floodplain; 

 

50

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.350
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.21C
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.280


3 
 

     (ii) Urban growth areas where expansions are precluded outside floodplains because: 

 

     (A) Urban governmental services cannot be physically provided to serve areas outside the floodplain; 

or 

 

     (B) Expansions outside the floodplain would require a river or estuary crossing to access the 

expansion; or 

 

     (iii) Urban growth area expansions where: 

 

     (A) Public facilities already exist within the floodplain and the expansion of an existing public facility is 

only possible on the land to be included in the urban growth area and located within the floodplain; or 

 

     (B) Urban development already exists within a floodplain as of July 26, 2009, and is adjacent to, but 

outside of, the urban growth area, and the expansion of the urban growth area is necessary to include 

such urban development within the urban growth area; or 

 

     (C) The land is owned by a jurisdiction planning under this chapter or the rights to the development 

of the land have been permanently extinguished, and the following criteria are met: 

 

     (I) The permissible use of the land is limited to one of the following: Outdoor recreation; 

environmentally beneficial projects, including but not limited to habitat enhancement or environmental 

restoration; storm water facilities; flood control facilities; or underground conveyances; and 

 

     (II) The development and use of such facilities or projects will not decrease flood storage, increase 

storm water runoff, discharge pollutants to fresh or salt waters during normal operations or floods, or 

increase hazards to people and property. 

 

     (c) For the purposes of this subsection (8), "one hundred year floodplain" means the same as "special 

flood hazard area" as set forth in WAC 173-158-040 as it exists on July 26, 2009. 

51

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=173-158-040


  

1 

 

 

Date:  March 24, 2015    

Subject: Countywide Planning Policies  

 

 

 

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP 

  Development Services Dept. Director 

   

 

PURPOSE 

This report presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies to the Planning Commission.   

 

BACKGROUND 

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act (GMA) are 

required to adopt countywide planning policies (RCW 36.70A.210; Attachment 1). The 

countywide planning policies (CWPP) are policy statements used solely for establishing a 

countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are developed and 

adopted.  At a minimum the policies address the following: 

 

(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110
 
[urban growth areas] (Attachment 2); 

(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of urban 

services to such development; 

(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, 

including transportation facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 47.06.140; 

(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies; 

(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all 

economic segments of the population and parameters for its distribution; 

(f) Policies for joint county and city planning within urban growth areas; 

(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must include 

consideration of the future development of commercial and industrial facilities; and 

(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact. 

 

Under GMA, counties take the lead in coordinating the drafting of the CWPP.   

 

Staffs from Island County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor have met multiple times over 

many months to review drafts of the revised CWPP.  The version attached to this staff report is 

considered a final draft by Island County. 

 

BRIEFINGS 

City staff has briefed both the Planning Commission and the City Council on this project.  In 

2014 the Planning Commission was briefed on October 28
th

, November 19
th

, November 25
th

 and 

City of Oak Harbor 
Report to the Planning 
Commission 
 

52

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.110
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=47.06.140


  

2 

 

December 9
th

.  The Commission received briefings in 2015 on January 27
th

 and February 24
th

.  In 

2014 the City Council was briefed on December 17, 2014, January 28, 2015 and February 11, 

2015. 

 

THE DRAFT 

The CWPP provide a framework for the adoption of comprehensive plans and are intended to 

help guide and coordinate issues of regional significance.  The draft CWPP includes the 

following sections: 

 

1. General Provisions 

1.1 Purpose 

1.2 Applicability 

1.3 Definitions 

2. Countywide Planning Goals 

3. Countywide Planning Policies 

3.1 General Provisions 

3.2 Joint Planning Area Policies 

3.3 Urban Growth Areas 

3.4  Urban Development 

3.5 Rural Development 

3.6 Public Facilities and Services 

3.7 Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance 

3.8 Transportation 

3.9 Housing 

3.10 Land Use and Public Health 

3.11 Economic Development and Employment 

4. Administration and Implementation 

4.1 Countywide Planning Group 

4.2 Procedures for Adopting or Amending Countywide Planning Policies 

4.3 Population Projections and Land Capacity Analysis 

4.5 Monitoring and Reporting Procedures 

 

Appendix A: Buildable Lands Procedures 

Abbreviations & Definitions 

Assumptions 

Rural Analysis Steps 

RAID Analysis Steps 

UGA Analysis Steps 

 

County staff took the lead in preparing the initial version of the draft CWPP.  The format of the 

draft is significantly different than that of the existing CWPP.  Where policies within the existing 

CWPP are general, the proposed policies are generally more detailed.  Greater attention is also 

paid to how certain aspects of the policies will be implemented (e.g. how a land capacity analysis 

is to be completed).   

 

City staff played an active role in discussing the implications of the proposed policies and in 

53



  

3 

 

advocating for amendments to the draft.  Many of Oak Harbor’s suggested amendments were 

incorporated.  As one might expect, there was not one-hundred percent agreement on all items by 

all parties.  Overall, however, it is fair to say that City staff is reasonably comfortable with the 

proposed polices.  There remain just a few areas where staff has additional questions or will 

suggest further revision. 

 

For the purpose of this meeting staff presents a track changes version of the document to the 

Planning Commission (Attachment 3).  This version shows additional, suggested revisions to the 

policies and includes comments for the Planning Commission’s information. 

 

COUNTY PROCESS 

Island County staff has completed their review of the draft CWPP with their Planning 

Commission.  On February 26, 2015 the Island County Planning Commission recommended 

approval of the draft CWPP to the Board of Island County Commissioners.  County staff is fully 

aware of the fact that the City of Oak Harbor may still propose revisions to the draft policies.   

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. Open the public hearing 

2. Provide feedback and direction to staff 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1: RCW 36.70A.210, Countywide planning polices 

Attachment 2: RCW 36.70A.110, Urban growth areas 

Attachment 3: Draft countywide planning policies 
 

 

 

54



PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
March 24, 2015 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Bruce Freeman, Sandi Peterson, Ana Schlecht, Mike Piccone, Cecil 

Pierce and Jes Walker-Wyse 
 Absent:  Greg Wasinger 

Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planner, 
Cac Kamak and Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Vice Chairman Bruce Freeman called the meeting to order at 7:32 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. SCHLECHT MOVED, MR. PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE FEBRUARY 24, 2015 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None.  
 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES (CWPP) – Public Hearing  
Mr. Powers reported that the Planning Commission is moving into the public hearing phase and 
should open the public hearing, accept comments, provide feedback and direction to staff.  
Planning Commission is not expected to take action at this meeting but should continue the 
hearing to the April meeting. Mr. Powers displayed a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 
1) and summarized the Growth Management Act requirements, the draft CWPP sections, and 
the City/County work that has lead to the current draft. Mr. Powers pointed out highlighted 
comment sections of the draft and elaborated on those comments. Mr. Powers noted that city 
staff will be meeting with county staff next Thursday and will discuss the highlighted comment 
sections of the draft as well as any other comments from the Planning Commission. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
There was discussion about the 50% threshold in Section 3.3.3.a., b. and c. Planning 
Commissioners believed 50% was too high and 30% was more reasonable since it could take 
12 to18 months to increase the UGA.   
 
The public hearing was opened at 8:05 p.m.  There were no comments. 
 
MOTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO 

AMEND SECTION 3.3 3. A., B. AND C TO CHANGE 50% TO 30%.   
 
Discussion: 
There was discussion about employment growth versus population growth and whether the 
employment growth should be reduced to 30% as well.  Mr. Powers pointed out that there is a 
large amount of land designated Planned Industrial Park and Industrial in the unincorporated 
portions of the UGA that hasn’t been absorbed yet.  At the conclusion of the discussion 
Commissioners agreed that there was enough land to absorb employment growth. 
 
MOTION WITHDRAWN BY MS. WALKER-WYSE 
SECOND WITHDRAWN BY MS. PETERSON 
 

Planning Commission 
March 24, 2015 

Page 1 of 3 
55



MOTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION 
CARRIED TO AMEND SECTION 3.3 3. A AND C TO CHANGE 50% TO 30%.   

 
MOTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING TO THE APRIL 28, 2015 MEETING. 
 
Mr. Powers asked if there was anything else staff could provide to help the Planning 
Commission with their review.  Ms. Schlecht asked staff to provide a copy of the map shown in 
the PowerPoint presentation in a larger form or e-mail the map to them. 
 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 
Mr. Kamak displayed a PowerPoint presentation (PC Attachment 2) and reported that the 
update began in 2013.  The process was initiated by reviewing the Comprehensive Plan against 
a checklist provided by the Department of Commerce to identify elements that need updates.   
This process provided the scope of work to complete the update.  Mr. Kamak detailed the 
sections to be updated. 
 
Mr. Kamak reported that the Planning Commission and the City Council are working on the vision 
statement in the Comprehensive Plan that was first crafted in 1993. Planning Commission and the City 
Council had a joint meeting and revisions were presented at a second joint meeting held to discuss the 
refinements to the vision statements.  Since then staff has generated two more versions of the vision 
statement that are shorter and general that create visual images of the City to the reader.  Mr. Kamak 
asked the Planning Commission to consider the two options for the Comprehensive Plan vision 
statement. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commission discussed the structure of the option 1 and option 2. There was 
agreement that culture should be first, education second, economy third and recreation last. Mr. 
Kamak indicated that eventually he would like to show the vision statement as a circle which 
has no real order. Most of the Commissioners preferred option 2.  There was discussion about 
including access to quality medical care in the economy section.  Commissioners discussed the 
fact that Coupeville already has the Island’s major medical facility so idea to include a medical 
facility may not be logical. Commissioners also discussed placement of the marina in the 
economy section or the recreation section. There was a suggestion to add language that 
clarifies the marina as an economic driver.  Commissioners suggested revising the sentence in 
the culture section that talks about citizens on active community policing.  
 
Mr. Kamak said that staff would come back next month with revisions.  
 
HOMELESS ENCAMPMENT CODE AMENDMENT – Public Meeting 
Mr. Powers reported staff provided code sections from other cities that addressed questions 
raised at the February meeting.  Mr. Powers also handed out a page with revised language 
regarding Island County Health Department (PC Attachment 3). 
 
Mr. Powers reported that staff has reached out to the Police Department, Island County and the 
Opportunity Council for their expertise in crafting the ordinance. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners asked what the appeal process would look like if there were concerns 
from community and to whom would the appeal be made? Mr. Powers indicated that Mercer 
Island’s ordinance left that up to the Code Official if the sponsor and the neighbors agree there 

Planning Commission 
March 24, 2015 

Page 2 of 3 
56



is an impact but don’t agree on how to address the impact. Most administrative decisions that 
staff makes are appealable to the Hearing Examiner so if that model holds true then that is how 
the appeal will be handled. 
 
Mr. Powers said staff will be working on more revisions and potentially the Planning 
Commission could open the public hearing next month. 
 
Mr. Powers also mentioned that the City Council will be holding a workshop on the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant on April 7th and invited the Planning Commission to attend or watch the video 
with it is available. 
 
ADJOURN: 9:02 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

Planning Commission 
March 24, 2015 

Page 3 of 3 
57



  

1 

 

 

Date:  April 28, 2015    

Subject: Countywide Planning Policies  

 

 

 

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP 

  Development Services Dept. Director 

   

 

PURPOSE 

This report presents the draft Countywide Planning Policies to the Planning Commission.  Staff 

requests the Commission conclude the public hearing on this item and recommend approval of 

the draft to the City Council. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission has been briefed a number of times on the draft Countywide Planning 

Policies (CWPP).  A list of those briefings was included in the March 24
th

 Planning Commission 

report (Attachment 1).  At that meeting the Commission opened a public hearing on the CWPP, 

accepted testimony from staff and then continued the hearing to the April meeting.   

 

During the public hearing the Planning Commission recommended a revision to the draft CWPP.  

The relevant portion of the March 24
th

 meeting minutes is shown below: 

 

Planning Commission Discussion 
There was discussion about the 50% threshold in Section 3.3.3.a., b. and c. Planning 
Commissioners believed 50% was too high and 30% was more reasonable since it could take 12 
to 18 months to increase the UGA.   

 
The public hearing was opened at 8:05 p.m.  There were no comments. 

 
MOTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO 

AMEND SECTION 3.3 3. A., B. AND C TO CHANGE 50% TO 30%.   
 

Discussion: 
There was discussion about employment growth versus population growth and whether the 
employment growth should be reduced to 30%.  Mr. Powers pointed out that there is a large 
amount of land designated Planned Industrial Park and Industrial in the unincorporated portions 
of the UGA that hasn’t been absorbed yet.  At the conclusion of the discussion Commissioners 
agreed that there was enough land to absorb employment growth. 

 
MOTION WITHDRAWN BY MS. WALKER-WYSE 
SECOND WITHDRAWN BY MS. PETERSON 

 
MOTION: MS. WALKER-WYSE MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED, MOTION 

CARRIED TO AMEND SECTION 3.3 3. A AND C TO CHANGE 50% TO 30%.   
 

MOTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 
CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING TO THE APRIL 28, 2015 MEETING. 

City of Oak Harbor 
Report to the Planning 
Commission 
 

58



  

2 

 

Staff made the necessary revision to the draft CWPP per the Planning Commission’s 

recommendation.  No other revisions have been made.   

 

Staff met with Island County staff subsequent to the March 24
th

 meeting.  One topic of 

discussion was the fifty percent threshold noted above.  During this meeting staff learned more 

about how that threshold is intended to work from the County’s viewpoint.  The explanation 

involves the 20-year population projection and planning period and how the two jurisdictions 

should respond if a significant amount of that projection was to occur within the eight (8) year 

periodic update cycle.  Staff will speak to this topic during the meeting.  In light of the clarified 

information to be presented, the Planning Commission may wish to revisit this topic. 

 

At the conclusion of the March 24
th

 meeting the Planning Commission noted requested that 

copies of the presentation aerial photographs and maps be included with the staff report.  

Attachment 3 depicts the North Whidbey Urban Growth Area and Joint Planning Area.  

Attachment 4 is the Oak Harbor North Side UGA and JPA.  Attachment 5 shows Oak Harbor 

Southwest Quadrant UGA and JPA. 

 

KEY CONCEPT: LAND CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

As the City continues working on the 2016 Comprehensive Plan update the question most 

frequently asked staff is when the City will start the process to expand the urban growth area 

(UGA).  Staff is always careful to respond that the City must first determine if additional 

capacity in the urban growth area is warranted.  If so, then the community may consider how to 

create it through expansion of the UGA, changing the land use pattern or increasing the 

allowable residential densities (or a combination of these methods).  

 

The process for determining if additional capacity is necessary is known as a land capacity 

analysis or as a buildable lands analysis.  Staff from the various jurisdictions in Island County 

spent a significant amount arriving at a suitable land capacity analysis.  Our collective goals for 

the process were that it would be uniform, data based, reproducible, objective and defensible.  

The land capacity analysis methodology is one of the key concepts in the draft CWPP. 

 

The proposed land capacity analysis methodology
1
 seeks to determine the total development 

capacity for four different categories of land use (single-family, multi-family, commercial/mixed 

use and industrial).  It excludes lands which are undevelopable and factors in the effect critical 

areas have on development capacity.  Once these steps are complete it is necessary to calculate 

the development capacity for each of the four land use categories.  From there the total number 

of possible dwelling units is determined.  Working with average household size it is then 

possible to determine the total population that can be accommodated in the existing UGA.   

 

                                                           
1
 Please see CWPP, Sections 3.3, 4.3 and Appendix A, for additional discussion of the policies and methodology. 

59



  

3 

 

If the 20-year population projection can be accommodated then no change is required to the 

UGA.  If it cannot, then some form of change is necessary.  The community may consider how 

to create additional capacity through expansion of the UGA, changing the land use pattern or 

increasing the allowable residential densities. 

 

CONCLUSION 

Counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management Act are required to 

adopt CWPP. The CWPP are policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide 

framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  The 

draft policies address a variety of topics including those related to population projections, land 

capacity analysis and the sizing of the urban growth area, provision of urban services and joint 

city/county planning within urban growth areas.  The proposed CWPP address these topics in a 

manner that will assist Oak Harbor in completing its 2016 Comprehensive Plan update. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. Conclude the public hearing 

2. Recommend approval of the draft CWPP to the City Council 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment 1: March 24, 2015 Planning Commission Report (w/o attachments) 

Attachment 2: Draft countywide planning policies 

Attachment 3: North Whidbey Urban Growth Area and Joint Planning Area 

Attachment 4: Oak Harbor North Side UGA and JPA 

Attachment 5: Oak Harbor Southwest Quadrant UGA and JPA 

 

 

 

60



 

Planning Commission 
April 28, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
April 28, 2015 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Greg Wasinger, Sandi Peterson, Mike Piccone, Cecil Pierce and Jes 

Walker-Wyse 
 Absent:  Bruce Freeman and Ana Schlecht 

Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Cac Kamak and Dennis Lefevre; Associate Planner Ray Lindenburg  

 
Chairman Wasinger called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE MARCH 24, 2015 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
None.  
 
DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES (CWPP) – Public Hearing  
Mr. Powers reported that the public hearing is a continuation of the public hearing that was 
opened at the March business meeting. Mr. Powers displayed the map depicting the Joint 
Planning Area, Urban Growth Area and the city limits.   Mr. Powers noted that the staff report 
includes a section of the March 24th meeting minutes describing the Planning Commission 
recommendation for a revision to the draft CWPP, specifically policy 3.3.3a and c.  Planning 
Commission recommended reducing the threshold triggering a UGA study from 50% to 30% 

population increase. Mr. Powers indicated that since last month staff has learned more about 
this policy and the 50% threshold may be more appropriate.  Mr. Powers displayed a graphic 
(Attachment 1) to help explain why the 50% threshold is more appropriate.  The 50% threshold 
acknowledges the 20-year planning period versus the 8-year periodic update cycle.  A 30% 
threshold may prematurely trigger a review of the UGA.  A study of the UGA at year 5 or 6, for 
example, based upon a 30% increase in population would be premature, knowing that in 2 
years the regular UGA review would start since we would be at the beginning of another 8-year 
cycle.   
 
Mr. Powers also pointed out the portion of the staff report that focuses in on the Land Capacity 
Analysis. 
 
Mr. Powers concluded stating that staff’s recommendation is to conclude the public hearing, 
consider some additional discussion on Policy 3.3.3a and c, and recommend approval of the 
draft CWPP to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Wasinger asked for public comment seeing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion  
Planning Commission discussed the expected military population increase over the next few 
years.  Mr. Powers explained that staff worked with the Navy and included that expected 
increase in the population projection.  Commissioners asked what the UGA review would look 
like.  Mr. Powers explained that staff would perform the review, go through the public process 
and then get on the County’s comprehensive plan annual review docket and go through the 
public process with the County.  The entire review process can take 18 – 24 months.  Planning 

61



 

Planning Commission 
April 28, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

Commissioners asked if there had been a time in the past where the City had experienced a 
significant increase in population.  Mr. Powers indicated that we have experienced the opposite.  
Population projections were not realized.  At the conclusion of the discussion the Planning 
Commission agreed that the 50% threshold was more appropriate.  
 
MOTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. WALKER-WYSE SECONDED, MOTION 

CARRIED TO AMEND SECTION 3.3 3. A AND C, CHANGING 30% TO 50%.  
 
MOTION: MR. PIERCE MOVED, MR. PICCONE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE DRAFT 
COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES AS AMENDED. 

 
ADOPTION OF OFFICIAL ZONING MAP – Public Hearing 
Mr. Lindenburg reported that this is a regular update to the zoning map.  The update includes 
only one zoning change to 1000 SE City Beach Street, changing the zoning from R4, multifamily 
residential to PF, public facilities.   
 
Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing, seeing none the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION: MR. PICCONE MOVED, MR. PIERCE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP AS PRESENTED. 

 
2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak reviewed background regarding the review of the Comprehensive Plan 20-year 
vision statement.   
 
Mr. Kamak stated that staff believes that the latest version of the vision incorporates the spirit of 
the original vision but reflects the times of the early 21st century.  Since the Planning 
Commission indicated a preference for the categorized version of the Vision at its last meeting 
staff is moving that format forward.  The categorized version of the Vision highlights four primary 
values within the community – Culture, Education, Economy, and Recreation. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Mr. Pierce stated that he shared the Vision with some of his coworkers and received positive 
feedback. Mr. Piccone recommended reformatting the sentence that starts “Home of Naval Air 
Station Whidbey Island…” to make it a separate statement similar to the top statement. 
Planning Commissioners agreed that the Vision and the survey were ready to forward to the 
City Council and the public for comment. 
 
Mr. Kamak said staff would distribute the survey and collect feedback from the community over 
the next two months. 
 
ADJOURN: 8:02 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: Katherine Gifford 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



 RESOLUTION NO. 15-20 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSMITTAL TO ISLAND COUNTY OF THE 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR’S FORMAL COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT 
COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES AND RESERVING CERTAIN RIGHTS 

WHEREAS, counties and the cities within them planning under the Growth Management 
Act (GMA) are required to adopt countywide planning policies (CWPP); and 

WHEREAS, staffs from Island County, Coupeville, Langley and Oak Harbor met 
approximately 15 times between March 2013 and February 2015 to discuss revisions to 
the CWPP and to create a unified methodology for analyzing the quantity of buildable 
land in Island County’s UGAs; and  

WHEREAS, the Oak Harbor Planning Commission was briefed on the project and draft 
CWPP on October 28th, November 19th, November 25th and December 9th in 2014 and on 
January 27th and February 24th in 2015; and  

WHEREAS, on March 24, 2015 the Planning Commission opened a public hearing on 
the draft CWPP and continued it to April 28, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2015 the Commission closed the hearing and recommended 
approval of the draft CWPP to the City Council; and  

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2015 Island County formally transmitted draft CWPP to the 
Oak Harbor City Council for review and comment; and  

WHEREAS, the Council was briefed on the project and the draft CWPP on the following 
dates: December 17, 2014 and January 28, February 11, April 22, and May 27, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council duly held a public meeting on June 16, 2015, wherein the 
City Council considered the draft CWPP, as transmitted to the City by Island County on 
April 28, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, having reviewed the Planning Commission’s recommendation of April 28, 
2015 and staff’s additional area of comment on UGA Capacity – Single Family Zones, 
No. 2, as found in the attached CWPP; and  

WHEREAS, now, therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that the CWPP 
attached to this resolution, dated June 16, 2015, contains the City’s official comment on 
the draft CWPP and that they be transmitted to Island County, PROVIDED HOWEVER, 
that the City Council reserves unto itself the right to provide additional comment to 
Island County on the current or future versions of the CWPP as the Council may deem 
fit. 

109



PASSED and approved by the City Council this 16th day of June 2015 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

__________________________ 
Scott Dudley, Mayor 

Attest: 

___________________________ 
City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

___________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

110



ATTACHMENT 6 

1 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

 
Countywide Planning Policies  
 
 
1. General Provisions 
 
1.1 Purpose  
 
The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that cities and counties 
adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further requires that counties adopt Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs) (RCW 36.70A.210 & WAC 365-196-305) to guide and 
coordinate issues of regional significance. The following goals and policies are intended 
to guide intergovernmental planning efforts, fully implement the planning goals identified 
in the GMA, and ensure that the actions of government agencies within Island County 
are coordinated and consistent with one another.  
 
1.2 Applicability 
 
These policies are intended to apply countywide. Any Government Agency or Special 
Service District within Island County that conducts planning activities or provides Public 
Services shall be subject to the goals and policies identified in these CWPPs; 
specifically:  
 

1. Planning Policies and Development Regulations adopted or enforced by 
Government Agencies and Special Service Districts shall be consistent with 
these goals and policies. 
 

2. All decisions by Government Agencies and Special Service Districts regarding 
the provision or construction of Public Services and facilities shall be consistent 
with these goals and policies.   
 

3. These goals and policies should not be construed to otherwise reduce, diminish, 
or supersede those planning and land use powers reserved exclusively for the 
Municipalities or the County by Washington State law.  
 

1.3 Definitions 
 
The following definitions shall be used in the interpretation and application of the 
CWPPs.  
 

1. Agency, Government: The County government of Island County, a Municipality 
within Island County, or a department or agency of the State of Washington.  
 

2. County: The County government of Island County. This term is used throughout 
this document to differentiate between the jurisdictional limits of the government 

111



ATTACHMENT 6 

2 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

of Island County, and the geographic area encompassed by Island County. See 
“Island County”.  
 

3. Development Regulation: Controls placed on development or land use activities 
by the County or Municipalities, including, but not limited to, zoning ordinances, 
critical areas ordinances, shoreline master programs, official controls, planned 
unit development ordinances, platting regulations, subdivision and short 
subdivision ordinances, and binding site plan ordinances together with any 
amendments thereto.  
 

4. Facility of Statewide or Countywide Significance: Those facilities that are typically 
difficult to site, such as airports, state education facilities and state or regional 
transportation facilities as defined in RCW 47.06.140, regional transit authority 
facilities as defined in RCW 81.112.020, state and local correctional facilities, 
solid waste handling facilities, and inpatient facilities including substance abuse 
facilities, mental health facilities, group homes, and secure community transition 
facilities as defined in RCW 71.09.020. Public school facilities and municipal 
sewage treatment facilities shall also be considered Facilities of Statewide or 
Countywide Significance. Throughput transmission facilities and major utilities, as 
defined in Island County Code, shall not be considered Facilities of Statewide or 
Countywide Significance. This definition is intended to be used synonymously 
with the term “essential public facilities”. 
 

5. Future Planning Area (FPA): An area immediately outside of, and adjacent to, a 
Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area. Future Planning Areas are designated by the 
County to reserve areas which may be necessary for future Urban Growth and to 
protect land which has been identified as having long term rural significance such 
as critical areas, key entrance roads, and areas of historical significance. 
Broadly, such areas are intended to provide an opportunity for long term planning 
beyond the normal twenty year planning horizon. 
 

6. Joint Planning Area (JPA): Areas immediately outside of, and adjacent to, 
Municipal Urban Growth Areas. JPAs are jointly designated by the County and 
Municipalities to reserve areas which may be necessary for future Urban Growth 
and to protect land which has been identified as having long term rural 
significance such as critical areas, key entrance roads, and areas of historical 
significance. Broadly, such areas are intended to provide an opportunity for long 
term planning beyond the normal twenty year planning horizon.  
 

7. Municipality or Municipal: A legally incorporated or duly authorized association of 
inhabitants of a limited area for local government or other public purposes. For 
purposes of interpreting this document, “Municipality” or “Municipal” is intended 
to refer to the current incorporated jurisdictions in Island County (Coupeville, 
Langley, and Oak Harbor) as well as any city or town incorporated after the 
establishment of these CWPPs.   
 

112

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=47.06.140
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=81.112.020
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=71.09.020


ATTACHMENT 6 

3 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

8. Planning Area: Four Planning Areas have been established in Island County for 
purposes of long term planning, population forecasting, and data analysis. The 
four Planning Areas include: Camano Island, North Whidbey, Central Whidbey, 
and South Whidbey. The specific boundaries of these areas are delineated on 
maps maintained by, and on file with, the County Planning Department.  
 

9. Planning Goals or Planning Policies: Statements, goals, and specific policies 
expressed in the Growth Management Act, Countywide Planning Policies, or a 
comprehensive plan adopted by the County or a Municipality.   
 

10. Rural Area(s): As used in this document the term “Rural Area” is intended to refer 
to all of the land area in Island County outside of Urban Growth Areas. Generally 
(with the exception of RAIDs) Rural Areas are intended to facilitate agriculture, 
forestry, and other resource dependent uses and activities which depend on rural 
resources and lands. Other uses may be permitted in the Rural Area when 
consistent with the County’s definition of Rural Character.  
 

11. Rural Area of Intense Development (RAID): Areas of existing more intense rural 
development designated by the County pursuant to RCW 36.70A.070(5)(d)(i) and 
WAC 365-196-425(6)(c)(i). This term is synonymous with, and intended to be 
used interchangeably with, the term “Limited Area of More Intense Rural 
Development” (Type 1 LAMIRD) as used in the GMA. The County 
comprehensive plan contains a more complete definition as well as designation 
criteria for RAIDs. 
 

12. Rural Character: Refers to patterns of land use and development established by 
the County in the Rural Element of the Island County Comprehensive Plan. For 
purposes of interpreting this document, the definition of Rural Character shall be 
the definition contained in the Island County Comprehensive Plan.  

 
13. Service, Public: Includes fire protection and suppression, law enforcement, public 

health, education, recreation, environmental protection, public utilities (e.g. water, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer) and other services or facilities provide by 
Government Agencies or Special Service Districts. This term is synonymous 
with, and is intended to be used interchangeably with, the term “public facilities”. 
 

14. Service, Rural: Those Public Services and public facilities historically and 
typically delivered at an intensity usually found in rural areas, and may include 
domestic water systems, fire and police protection services, transportation and 
public transit services, and other public utilities associated with rural development 
and normally not associated with urban areas. Rural services are those services 
necessary to support development which is consistent with the definition of Rural 
Character and do not include storm or sanitary sewers, except as otherwise 
authorized by RCW 36.70A.110(4).  
 

Comment [p1]: Added reference to other types 
of public utilities 

113

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.110


ATTACHMENT 6 

4 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

15. Service, Urban: Those Public Services and public facilities at an intensity 
historically and typically provided in cities, specifically including storm and 
sanitary sewer systems, domestic water systems, transportation and public 
transit services, street cleaning services, fire and police protection services, 
public transit services, and other public utilities associated with urban areas and 
normally not associated with Rural Areas. Urban Services are intended to 
accommodate and facilitate Urban Development consistent with the policies 
expressed in the comprehensive plans adopted by County and Municipalities.   
 

16. Special Service District: Independent governmental units that exist separately 
from local governments to provide public services to limited areas using public 
funds, including but not limited to sewer and water districts, fire districts, and 
school districts. 
 

17. Sprawl, Sprawling: Scattered, poorly planned Urban Development that often 
occurs in urban fringe and Rural areas. Generally sprawl is neither reflective of 
Urban Character nor Rural Character. Sprawl occurs at densities too high to 
maintain Rural Character, but too low to provide the full range of social, 
economic, and cultural amenities typically associated with cities and towns. 
Sprawl is also characterized by forms of development which are difficult or costly 
to serve with high quality Urban Services 
 

18. Urban Character, Urban Form: Refers to a pattern of Urban Growth 
characterized by a high concentration of economic, social, and cultural amenities, 
as well as a full range of housing types and densities. Each Municipality in Island 
County has adopted a Comprehensive Plan which is expressive of their desired 
Urban Form and Character. 
 

19. Urban Development, Urban Growth: A pattern of growth that makes intensive use 
of land for the location of buildings, structures, and impermeable surfaces to such 
a degree as to be incompatible with the primary use of land for the production of 
food, other agricultural products, or fiber, or the extraction of mineral resources, 
rural uses, rural development, and natural resource lands designated pursuant to 
RCW 36.70A.170. Additionally, the term Urban Development includes all forms of 
development that are inconsistent with the County’s adopted definition of Rural 
Character.  
 

20. Urban Growth Area (UGA): Areas within which Urban Growth is encouraged and 
outside of which growth can occur only if it is consistent with Rural Character and 
not Urban Development or urban in nature. In Island County UGAs have been 
established around each Municipality. In addition, a UGA has been established 
around Freeland in recognition of its existing pattern of Urban Development.  
 

21. Urban Growth Area, Municipal (MUGA): Each Municipality in Island County has 
been included in an Urban Growth Area and is responsible for developing a 
comprehensive plan in compliance with the GMA and the County Wide Planning 

Comment [p2]: Added reference to other types 
of urban services. 

114

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.170


ATTACHMENT 6 

5 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

Policies developed jointly by the County and Municipalities. For purposes of 
interpreting this document, the term “Municipal Urban Growth Area” shall mean 
an Urban Growth Area associated with an incorporated Municipality.  
 

22. Urban Growth Area, Non-Municipal (NMUGA): An area characterized by an 
extensive pattern of Urban Development which was established prior to the 
adoption of the GMA and which does not include an incorporated Municipality.  In 
Island County, a Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area has been established around 
the unincorporated area of Freeland in recognition of an existing pattern of Urban 
Development. The Freeland Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area is subject to the 
Planning Goals and Policies set forth in the County’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the Freeland Subarea Plan. 
 

23. Urban Growth Boundary (UGB): The line separating Urban Growth Areas from 
surrounding Rural Areas. The UGB is intended to preserve Rural Character in 
Rural Areas and prevent low-density Sprawling development by focusing and 
encouraging Urban Growth in designated Urban Growth Areas.  

 
2. Countywide Planning Goals 
 
Island County and the municipalities have identified the following goals as being of 
countywide concern. These goals are intended to establish a foundation for, and guide 
the interpretation of, the policies contained in this document.  
 

1. Intergovernmental coordination: The County, the City of Langley, the Town of 
Coupeville, the City of Oak Harbor, State Agencies, and Special Service Districts 
will work together to address issues of regional, or countywide importance in a 
coordinated fashion. Proactive communication and coordination will improve the 
quality of planning activities and reduce the likelihood of disputes.  
 

2. Joint City and County Planning: Decisions regarding Joint Planning Areas, Urban 
Growth Areas, areas for future UGA expansions, and areas of Long Term Rural 
Significance will be made by the County and Municipalities in a cooperative 
fashion.  

 
3. Public Participation: Island County citizens will be involved in the planning 

process and public comments will be considered by the County and 
Municipalities before making planning decisions involving issues of countywide 
concern. 

 
4. Urban Growth Areas: All decisions regarding the designation of new Urban 

Growth Areas, adjustments to existing Urban Growth Areas, population 
forecasting, and the allocation of population to Urban Growth Areas will be made 
using clearly stated and rational criteria.   

 

Comment [p3]: Reference to working together is 
good; difficult to compel participation since they will 
not be signatories to the document. 

115



ATTACHMENT 6 

6 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

5. Urban Development: The social and economic vitality of Island County’s cities 
and towns will be reinforced by ensuring that Urban Growth Development occurs 
only within designated Urban Growth Areas.  

 
6. Rural Development: Island County’s unique rural atmosphere and lifestyle will be 

protected from Sprawling low density development and inappropriate uses; also, 
rural land use plans will ensure that permitted development is consistent with the 
availability of Rural Services and resources. 

 
7. Public Services: Adopted land use and economic development plans will be 

reinforced and supported by Public Service and infrastructure investments. 
Decisions on infrastructure investments and the provision of Public Services will 
be made in a way which strengthens and reinforces adopted Planning Goals and 
Policies. 

 
8. Urban Services: In order to protect and enhance the quality of life enjoyed by the 

residents of Island County’s Municipalities and Urban Growth Areas, Urban 
Development will be provided with high quality Urban Services. The 
Municipalities will work to provide services at a level that promotes and fosters 
Urban Development in a manner consistent with their adopted Planning Goals 
and Policies. Urban Services will not be provided outside of Urban Growth Areas 
to protect Island County’s Rural Character and prevent scattered Sprawling 
development patterns which are inefficient and costly to serve.  

 
9. Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance: In recognition of the fact that 

some uses are difficult to site, but may be regionally significant or essential, the 
County, Municipalities, and State agencies will work together to develop 
consistent policies and regulations governing, but not prohibiting these facilities.  

 
10. Transportation: Island County should be served by an efficient, well connected, 

multimodal transportation system. Transportation plans, spending decisions, and 
regulations will be consistent with, and reinforce adopted land use and economic 
development plans.  

 
11. Affordable Housing: Opportunities for affordable housing will be provided 

throughout Island County and a full range of housing types and densities will be 
permitted in Island County’s Urban Growth Areas and Municipalities in order to 
ensure that the supply of new housing is consistent with demand.  

 
12. Economic Development: Develop a coordinated and diverse economic base that 

provides employment opportunities and improves the wellbeing of all economic 
segments of Island County’s population. The County and Municipalities will 
consider economic development broadly by incorporating Planning Policies 
throughout their planning documents that are supportive of a coordinated 
economic development strategy.  
 

116



ATTACHMENT 6 

7 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

13. Critical Areas: The County and Municipalities will work together to ensure that 
Planning Policies, and Development Regulations designed to protect Island 
County’s natural resources and critical areas are consistent with one another.  
 

14. Historic Preservation: Preserve and protect cultural resources as well as lands, 
sites, and structures that have historic or archaeological significance.  
 

15. Water Resources: Protect the long term viability of Island County’s drinking water 
supply and the rights of Island County’s existing residents, by ensuring that 
allowed densities and land uses are consistent with known and /or verifiable 
water supplies. 
 

16. Climate & Natural Disasters: In order to avoid unnecessary and costly 
infrastructure and to avoid exposing Island County residents to unnecessary risk, 
the County and municipalities Municipalities will work proactively to prepare for, 
and if necessary, adapt to the impacts of changing climate patterns and natural 
disasters.  
 

17. Public Health: Promote the health of people of all ages and abilities by adopting 
policies and regulations that encourage safe, healthy habits through the 
communities we plan, build, and preserve. 

 
3. Countywide Planning Policies 
 
The following policies are intended to facilitate the realization of the countywide goals 
identified above. These policies are further intended to guide the development of 
County and Municipal comprehensive plans and Development Regulations where such 
plans and regulations involve issues of countywide concern.  
 
3.1 General Provisions 
 

1. Except as otherwise stated, Municipalities shall be responsible for establishing 
long range plans and Planning Policies for Municipal Urban Growth Areas. The 
Municipalities shall also be exclusively responsible for regulating land use and 
development within the incorporated portions of Municipal Urban Growth Areas.  
 

2. The County shall be responsible for regulating land use and development 
activities within unincorporated portions of Municipal Urban Growth Areas; 
however, the County must coordinate with the associated Municipality to ensure 
that any new uses authorized by a County permit or Development Regulations 
are consistent with the Municipality’s Planning Goals and Policies, as well as any 
applicable Countywide Planning Policies.     
 

3. Growth and development within Non-Municipal Urban Growth Areas shall be 
planned for, managed, and regulated by the County.  

 

Comment [p4]: This is an important point of the 
document.  The CWPP do not affect the City’s 
planning efforts in other areas. 

Comment [p5]: Another important point.   The 
City retains its autonomy in these areas. 

117



ATTACHMENT 6 

8 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

4. The County and the Municipalities should coordinate where appropriate, the 
development and implementation of long-range plans for youth services, senior 
services, fire protection, police services, air quality,  transportation, solid waste, 
public and private utilities, watershed and storm-water planning, and 
environmental plans for the protection of critical areas.  
 

5. Growth and development outside of Urban Growth Areas shall be planned for, 
managed, and regulated by the County, except that planning within Joint 
Planning Areas shall be subject to the joint planning area policies described 
below in section 3.2. 

 
3.2 Joint Planning Area Policies 
 

1. For each Municipal UGA, the County and the Municipality associated with the 
UGA shall collaboratively designate a Joint Planning Area (JPA). The County and 
Municipality shall also collaboratively produce a long term conceptual plan for the 
Joint Planning Area as follows:  
 

a. Two broad overlay designations shall apply within JPAs as follows; 
Potential Growth Area (PGA) and Long Term Rural Significance (LRS). 
These designations need not be applied to all land within the JPA, land 
may be left undesignated; however, sufficient quantities of both PGA and 
LRS land should be designated to guide and control future development 
and UGA expansions.  
 

b. Designate areas appropriate for future Urban Growth Area expansions. 
Land shall be assigned a JPA overlay designation of Potential Growth 
Area (PGA) if it is already characterized by Urban Development, served by 
Urban Services, particularly sanitary sewer, or is determined by the 
Municipality and the County to be the most logical and cost effective 
location to accommodate future Urban Growth Area expansions. Land 
which meets the criteria for an LRS designation shall not be assigned a 
Joint Planning Area overlay designation of PGA.  
 

c. Designate areas of Long Term Rural Significance (LRS) which have been 
designated for agricultural or forestry uses. Lands which are extensively 
constrained by critical areas, flood hazards, or tsunami hazards should 
also be given an LRS designation. Lands which are judged determined by 
the County and/or Municipality to have long term cultural, scenic or 
environmental benefits may also be assigned an LRS designation. At a 
minimum, all lands which have been assigned a County Comprehensive 
Plan designation of Rural Agriculture (RA), Commercial Agriculture (CA), 
or Rural Forest (RF) shall be assigned an LRS designation along with any 
other lands which may be within contiguous blocks of RA, CA, or RF land, 
unless such designation will preclude, forestall or render impractical future 
UGA expansions (see Policy 3.2.1.e).  

 

Comment [p6]: City staff recommends adding 
this language to strengthen the connection between 
policies. 

118



ATTACHMENT 6 

9 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

d. When possible, a buffer of land should be provided between the UGB or 
lands designated as Potential Growth Areas, and lands which have been 
assigned a comprehensive plan designation of Commercial Agriculture 
(CA), Rural Agriculture (RA), or Rural Forest (RF). When such a buffer is 
established it shall be assigned a designation of LRS. A buffer should not 
be established if it would result in highly irregular or impractically 
configured LRS overlay boundaries. 

 
e. With the exception of the Coupeville JPA, Joint Planning Area 

designations shall not be assigned in such a way that future UGA 
expansions are completely precluded, forestalled, or rendered impractical; 
areas must be provided to allow for future UGA expansions.  

 
2. The County shall adopt the LRS and PGA designations as Comprehensive Plan 

overlay designations which will apply in addition to any underlying 
comprehensive plan or zoning designations. 
 

3. The County may adopt a Future Planning Area around the Freeland Non-
Municipal Urban Growth Area and assign overlay designations similar to those 
discussed above.  
 

4. A conceptual JPA plan should be prepared by the County in cooperation with 
each Municipality consistent with the above criteria, the Planning Goals and 
Policies expressed in this document, and any applicable County Planning Goals 
and Policies. The County and Municipalities should then work together to resolve 
any concerns prior to final adoption by the County.  
 

5. Proposals to modify a UGA or Joint Planning Area may be made by a 
Municipality or the County. Modifications to JPA plans shall be subject to the 
procedures and criteria identified above and should generally only be made 
during the periodic update cycle mandated by the GMA.  

 
6. For lands assigned a designation of Potential Growth Area (PGA), the County 

shall adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations which limit or restrict 
development which could interfere with the efficient utilization of such lands for 
future Urban Development.  The County shall also adopt Planning Policies and 
Development Regulations which provide Municipalities notification of significant 
development proposals (such as land divisions, site plan approvals, or major 
transportation projects) within the JPA, and shall provide the affected Municipality 
with the ability to comment on such proposals.  
 

7. For lands assigned a designation of Long Term Rural Significance (LRS), the 
County shall adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations which 
protect the agricultural, environmental, forestry, aesthetic, or cultural values of 
such lands. 
 
 

Comment [p7]: Important point. 

Comment [p8]: Important point. 

119



ATTACHMENT 6 

10 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3.3 Urban Growth Areas 
 
Consistent with the provisions of RCW 36.70A.110, a Municipal Urban Growth Area has 
been established around each Municipality. A Non-Municipal UGA has also been 
established in Freeland in recognition of the fact that Freeland is already characterized 
by Urban Development. Existing UGAs may only be modified when it can be 
demonstrated that the proposed modification is consistent with the following policies. 
These policies are intended to implement countywide planning goals 2.1, 2.2, 2.4, 2.5, 
and 2.11, as well as GMA planning goals one, two, and four. 
 

1. The review of a UGA for possible expansion is a significant undertaking. 
Generally UGAs should only be enlarged or modified during the periodic update 
process; however, UGAs may be modified outside of the periodic update process 
if necessary to accommodate major and unanticipated fluctuations in Island 
County’s population, or if necessary to accommodate a large employer or 
institution which cannot reasonably be accommodated within an existing UGA or 
other circumstances that reduce the availability of sufficient lands to 
accommodate the 20-year population projection. 
 

2. Urban growth areas may be expanded if necessary during the periodic process 
to accommodate a 20 year supply of buildable land as required by RCW 
36.70A.110,. and  
  

2.3. Urban growth areas may be expanded if necessary outside of the periodic 
update process by demonstrating that the expansion is necessary for one of the 
following reasons. For purposes of interpreting these policies “the start of the 
planning period” shall mean the date on which the most recent periodic update 
was completed. 

 
a. Population growth in the UGA since the start of the planning period equals 

or exceeds fifty percent of the population growth allocated to the UGA at 
the start of the planning period; or  
 

b. Employment growth in the UGA since the start of the planning period 
equals or exceeds fifty percent of the employment growth allocated to the 
UGA at the start of the planning period; or 

 
c. Written notification is provided by the Department of Defense, or other 

reliable and verifiable information is obtained, indicating that prior to the 
next periodic update cycle, base Naval Air Station Whidbey Island staffing 
will increase in a manner which would result in population growth equal to 
or exceeding fifty percent of the population growth allocated to the UGA at 
the start of the planning period; or 

 
d. An opportunity is presented to bring a large scale business, industry, 

institution, or other significant employer to Island County, and the County 

Comment [p9]: City staff recommends this word 
be deleted.  Including the word ‘only’ restricts 
considering UGA expansions to just the situations 
listed and potentially limits the County and the 
Municipalities ability to consider other factors.  Also, 
the policies following this section are very specific 
and provide sufficient decision making framework.  
Finally, other policies within this section use ‘may’ 
(Policies 8 and 9). 

Comment [p10]: The CWPP are reviewed very 
infrequently.  Adding this language will allow all 
jurisdictions to address circumstances that cannot 
be foreseen at this time without the need to revise 
the CWPP. 

Comment [p11]: City and County staff have 
spent a significant amount of time on this section.  
The policies are intended to address UGA 
expansions as part of the periodic process and those 
that might be considered outside of that process.  
These concepts were included in a single policy.  
City staff now suggests that the policy be split as 
shown. 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or
numbering

120



ATTACHMENT 6 

11 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

and Municipality agree that due to the facility or institution’s unique 
characteristics there is no suitable land available inside the current UGA.  

 
3.4. Urban Growth Areas shall be sized to include only the land necessary to 

accommodate twenty years of population and employment growth based on the 
methodology included in Appendix “A”.  The methodology is intended to provide 
for a reasonable market factor. 
 

4.5. In considering potential UGA expansion scenarios, Municipalities should 
consider alternative measures such as, increasing the densities allowed within 
their existing UGA or altering the uses allowed by their land use plan and zoning 
regulations. The viability of such measures should then be discussed with the 
County. In determining the viability of such alternative measures, the 
Municipalities may consider a full range of economic, social, and real estate 
market factors. 

 
5.6. If it is determined that an expansion or modification of a UGA is 

necessary, land shall be considered for inclusion within the UGA in the following 
order: 

 
a. Land with a JPA overlay designation of PGA. 

 
b. Land within a JPA which has not been assigned a JPA designation, 

provided such land is not extensively constrained by critical areas or 
located in a significant flood or tsunami hazard area. 

 
c. Land with a JPA overlay designation of LRS and an underlying County 

comprehensive plan designation of Rural (R) which is not extensively 
constrained by critical areas and which does not contain significant flood 
or tsunami hazard areas.  
 

d. Land with a JPA overlay designation of LRS and an underlying County 
comprehensive plan designation of Rural Agriculture (RA) or Rural Forest 
(RF) which is not extensively constrained by critical areas, and which does 
not contain significant flood or tsunami hazard areas.   

 
6.7. Land which is extensively constrained by critical areas, or which is 

designated as resource land of long term significance and is identified by a 
County comprehensive plan designation of “Commercial Agriculture” (CA) shall 
be considered the absolute lowest priority for inclusion within a UGA and shall 
only be included within a UGA upon a demonstration of the following:  
 

a. After a thorough consideration of all other reasonable measures the UGA 
must be expanded in order to relieve a critical shortage of buildable land; 
and,  
 

Comment [p12]: City staff suggest language be 
added to the CWPP explicitly stating a market factor 
is to be included.  Adding such language here 
complements the reference to real estate market 
factors in No. 5 below. 

Comment [p13]: This is an important section.  It 
is intended to demonstrate that Municipalities have 
the lead role in determining possible growth 
scenarios.  
 
Upon further review of this section, City staff 
believes additional conversation with the County is 
warranted as to how this policy will be 
implemented. 

121



ATTACHMENT 6 

12 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

b. No other land exists which can reasonably be added to the UGA. 
 

c. The land being considered can be reasonably served by Urban Services.  
 

7.8. Under no circumstances shall a UGA be expanded into a designated 
tsunami or flood hazard area unless the land is assigned an extremely low 
intensity comprehensive plan designation such as park or open space.   
 

8.9. Urban Growth Areas may be reduced in size if:  
 

a. Revised population estimates or allocations indicate that that the existing 
UGA is larger than necessary to accommodate a 20 year supply of 
buildable land.  
 

b. Densities within the UGA have been increased such that the UGA is larger 
than necessary to accommodate a 20 year supply of buildable land.  

 
c. It is determined that Urban Services including public sewer and water 

cannot reasonably be provided to the area included in the proposed UGA 
reduction. Any UGA reduction proposed on the basis of this criterion shall 
ensure that any population currently allocated to the area included in the 
proposed reduction is redistributed elsewhere within the UGA, or to 
another UGA.   

 
9.10. Urban Growth Areas may be modified by simultaneously including and 

excluding land so that the total area of the UGA is not altered, provided that land 
shall be considered for inclusion based on the criteria expressed in policies 3.3.5, 
3.3.6, and 3.3.7 above. 
 

10.11. Land shall not be removed from a UGA if it is already characterized by 
Urban Development, permits have been issued authorizing Urban Development, 
or Urban Services have been extended into the area. 

 
11.12. UGA modifications outside of the period update cycle may be proposed by 

a Municipality, the County, or an individual. Modifications proposed by 
Municipalities or individuals shall be submitted to the County in a manner 
consistent with the County’s procedures for comprehensive plan amendments 
and placed on the County’s annual review docket. Modifications proposed by 
individuals shall not be approved by the County unless the modification is 
supported by the legislative authority of the affected Municipality. 
 

12.13. For any proposed UGA modification a current land capacity analysis shall 
be prepared and shall utilize the procedures described in Appendix A. The land 
capacity analysis should be performed by the jurisdiction initiating the UGA 
modification, unless the modification is initiated by an individual, in which case 
the land capacity analysis should be completed by the County.  

122



ATTACHMENT 6 

13 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3.4 Urban Development 
 
The following policies have been adopted to ensure that Urban Development occurs 
only within designated Urban Growth Areas, and that Urban Growth is orderly, compact, 
contiguous, and adequately served by Urban Services. These policies are intended to 
implement countywide planning goals 2.4, 2.5, and 2.8 as well as GMA planning goals 
one, two, and twelve.  
 

1. Urban Development shall take place only within municipalities and UGAs. 
 

2. Each Municipality shall prepare land use plans, Planning Policies, and 
Development Regulations for their UGA. These plans, Planning Policies, and 
Development Regulations shall be used to regulate development activities within 
the incorporated boundaries of the Municipality. For land within a Municipal UGA, 
but outside the incorporated boundaries of a Municipality, the County’s Planning 
Policies and Development Regulations shall apply until such time that the land is 
annexed. Upon annexation the Municipality’s Planning Policies and Development 
Regulations shall apply.   
 

3. Urban Development shall be expressive of Urban Character. Planning Policies 
and Development Regulations should be adopted by the County and the 
Municipalities to ensure that Urban Development is not wasteful of land or 
resources, and that Urban Development proceeds in an orderly contiguous 
fashion.   
 

4. Planning Policies and Development Regulations shall be adopted which require 
that new development, including subdivisions, short subdivisions, site plan 
approvals, and building permits for new homes and commercial or industrial 
buildings within UGAs be served by public sewer and water.  
 

5. Development Regulations may be adopted by the Municipalities (or by the 
County in the case of the Freeland NMUGA) which allow variances or waivers to 
be granted from the above requirement in situations where public sewer and 
water cannot be provided economically due to topographical constraints or an 
inability to obtain the approval of intervening land owners. Waivers or variances 
should only be granted to serve existing development or to permit the 
development of single-family homes on existing lots. Waivers or variances shall 
not be used to permit land division or the establishment of new non-residential 
uses.  
 

6. The construction or installation of new private wells and septic systems within 
Urban Growth Areas should be strongly discouraged and only allowed through a 
variance or waiver as described above in policy 3.4.5. When permitted, these 
systems should be considered an interim solution until public sewer or water 
service can be provided.  
 

Comment [p14]: This is a departure from the 
existing Interlocal Agreement with Island County.  
That Agreement requires the use of blended (joint) 
development standards.  If adopted as drafted, the 
Interlocal Agreement will need substantial revision. 

123



ATTACHMENT 6 

14 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

7. The Municipalities and County agree that steps should be taken during each 
periodic update cycle to increase the percentage of Island County’s overall 
growth occurring within UGAs. The Municipalities and the County should work to 
foster, promote, and accommodate additional housing and job growth within 
existing UGAs and shall adopt policies to accomplish this objective.  

 
8. Municipalities shall not annex land outside an Urban Growth Area.  

 
9. Land recently added to a UGA shall not be annexed until any appeal periods or 

proceedings associated with the UGA expansion have lapsed or been resolved. 
 

10. Each Municipality should include specific policies to guide the incorporation 
process in their comprehensive plans. Such policies must ensure that annexation 
ordinances contain language which makes Municipal Planning Policies and 
Development Regulations applicable to the area being annexed immediately 
upon annexation. 

 
11. It is recognized that Urban Growth and Development should be regulated by the 

Municipalities. Accordingly, the following policies are intended to facilitate and 
encourage the annexation of land outside of existing Municipal boundaries but 
within Municipal UGAs. These policies are also intended to ensure that Urban 
Development occurs in a logical, incremental, and rational fashion, and to 
prevent the County from authorizing development within a Municipality’s UGA 
which forestalls or frustrates future Urban Development or the realization of the 
Municipality’s Planning Goals and Policies: 

 
a. Land outside of existing Municipal boundaries but within a Municipal UGA 

shall be assigned a County comprehensive plan and zoning designation of 
Urban Holding “UH” until such time that it is annexed by a municipality. 
Once the annexation process is complete, the Municipality’s Planning 
Policies, zoning designations, and Development Regulations shall be used 
to regulate development.  
 

b. Island County will support the incorporation of Non-Municipal Urban 
Growth Areas and provide technical assistance as needed. 

 
c. In allocating projected growth to UGAs, priority should be given to 

Municipal UGAs over Non-Municipal UGAs within the same planning area.  
 

d. The County shall adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations 
which prohibit Urban Development in areas subject to an Urban Holding 
designation, including land divisions at urban densities and site plan 
approvals for Urban Development, provided that minor redevelopment, 
remodeling, and improvements may be permitted in areas designated UH 
which are characterized by existing Urban Development.  

  

Comment [p15]: Unnecessary.  Topic addressed 
by State law. 

Comment [p16]: This is a significant departure 
from the existing situation as reflected in the 
current Interlocal Agreement.  County staff has 
explained that the main purpose of this text is to 
preclude urban development from occurring outside 
of city limits and to facilitate annexation of these 
properties.  City staff appreciates this perspective.  
City staff believes it may be challenging to 
implement this policy and recommends careful 
study of the practical results of this policy before it 
is adopted. 

124



ATTACHMENT 6 

15 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3.5 Rural Development 
 

1. All development outside of UGAs shall be consistent with the County’s definition 
of Rural Character.  
 

2. Allowed land uses in the Rural Areas should primarily be agricultural or low 
density residential in nature. In order to support the economic and social vitality 
of existing cities and towns, non-residential, non-agricultural uses in Rural Areas 
should be limited to small scale home businesses and non residential uses which 
are directly related to, and supportive of, agricultural uses. Small scale recreation 
and tourist uses may also be appropriate in Rural Areas, and higher density 
housing and certain commercial uses may be permitted in the County’s RAIDs. 
The County shall adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations to 
ensure that the intent of this policy is carried out.  
 

3. In establishing allowed densities and uses in Rural Areas, the County shall 
consider the long term availability of known and /or verifiable water supplies, the 
general suitability of the area for on-site septic systems, the presence of 
geologically unstable areas, and the presence of flood or tsunami hazards.  
 

4. The County shall plan for the timely and efficient provision of Rural Services. 
 

5. In general, public facilities and buildings should not be located in Rural Areas 
unless their function or service area is best served by a location outside of a 
UGA. 
 

6. The Municipalities and the County have agreed that the percentage of growth 
occurring within UGAs should be increased. The County shall adopt Planning 
Policies and Development Regulations in order to achieve this objective.  
 

3.6 Public Facilities and Services 
 

1. New Urban Services and facilities shall not be provided or extended outside of 
Urban Growth Areas. In particular, sanitary sewer systems may not be extended 
outside of existing UGAs unless necessary to respond to a documented public 
health hazard caused by existing development which cannot be remedied in any 
other reasonable way.  
 

2. Public Services and facilities shall be provided in a manner which is consistent 
with, and helps to implement all aspects of locally adopted comprehensive plans 
and Development Regulations.  
 

3. Public Services and facilities shall not be provided in a manner which is contrary 
to locally adopted comprehensive plans and Development Regulations.  
 

125



ATTACHMENT 6 

16 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

4. Within UGAs, provisions must be made to ensure that necessary Urban Services 
are available or in place prior to, or concurrent with, Urban Development.  
 

5. Consistent with GMA requirements, locally adopted comprehensive plans and 
Development Regulations shall specifically identify how Urban Services will be 
provided throughout UGAs. 
 

6. With respect to services or facilities of regional significance, Municipalities and 
the County should coordinate capital facilities planning and funding within UGAs. 
 

7. The County and the Municipalities will work together to implement, enforce, and 
update the Coordinated Water System Plan and any associated Planning 
Policies or Development Regulations.  
 

8. Public Services and facilities should be located in areas which are accessible by 
all modes of transportation. In particular, public services serving low income or 
mobility impaired citizens should be located in close proximity to transit stops and 
in areas with a well developed network of sidewalks and paths.  
 

9. In general, public facilities and buildings should not be located in Rural Areas. In 
evaluating the appropriate location for public buildings and facilities, sites should 
be considered in the following order of preference:  
 

a. Sites within existing Municipalities.  
 

b. Sites outside of existing Municipalities, but within UGAs.   
 

c. Sites outside of an existing Municipality, or UGA, but within a Limited Area 
of More Intense Rural Development (RAID).  

 
d. Sites in Rural Areas, but only when it can be shown that the Public 

Service requires a location in a Rural Area due to its unique operational 
characteristics or service area requirements.  

 
3.7 Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance 
 
The County and the Municipalities are required by the GMA (RCW 36.70A.200) to 
include provisions in their comprehensive plans and Development Regulations 
addressing essential public facilities. The following policies are intended to guide the 
designation, location, expansion, and modification of Facilities of Countywide or 
Statewide Significance and to ensure full compliance with GMA requirements.  
 

1. The County and Municipalities shall ensure that their Planning Policies and 
Development Regulations contain policies and procedures allowing for, and 
governing facilities of statewide or countywide significance.  
 

126



ATTACHMENT 6 

17 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

2. The County and each Municipality should establish a process through their 
comprehensive plans or Development Regulations for identifying and regulating 
the location and development of essential public facilities. These policies and 
regulations should, at a minimum, include:  
 

a. A process for determining whether or not a given facility or service meets 
the definition of an essential public facility.  
 

b. A process, including specific criteria, for evaluating alternative locations.  
 

c. Provisions to ensure that the environment, public health, and safety are 
protected.  

 
d. For facilities outside of UGAs, provisions to ensure, to the extent possible, 

the facility is consistent with the County’s adopted definition of Rural 
Character.  

 
3. To the extent possible, essential public facilities should be located in a manner 

which is consistent with, and supportive of adopted land-use, transportation, and 
economic development plans.  
 

4. Essential public facilities shall be located within a UGA unless it can be 
demonstrated that a rural location is the most appropriate location based on the 
specific characteristics and operational needs of the facility. Mere convenience or 
expediency is not sufficient to demonstrate compliance with this requirement. 
 

5. Essential public facilities located outside of a UGA should be self contained and 
should not require the extension or provision of Urban Services. In the event that 
it is absolutely necessary to extend Urban Services to allow for the establishment 
of an essential public facility that would otherwise be impossible to establish, 
Urban Services shall be provided in a manner which precludes further extension 
or connections in the intervening areas. In such instances, the extension of 
Urban Services shall not be used to service Rural Development or to justify 
future UGA expansions that could not otherwise be supported by the policies of 
this document. 
 

6. The County and Municipalities shall not preclude the establishment or provision 
of an essential public facility when proposals for such services or facilities are 
consistent with these policies, as well as any Planning Policies and Development 
Regulations adopted by the County or Municipalities regulating essential public 
facilities.  
 

7. The County, in collaboration with the affected municipality shall review proposals 
for Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance in unincorporated Municipal 
UGAs, taking into consideration these policies, as well as applicable County and 
Municipal policies and regulations.  

127



ATTACHMENT 6 

18 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

 
3.8 Transportation 
 

1. The transportation element of the County’s comprehensive plan should include 
Urban Growth Area components to ensure consistency among planning 
jurisdictions. All transportation planning, including that of Federal or State 
agencies, and Port Districts, should be jointly and cooperatively developed, 
adopted and implemented through coordinated and collaborative planning efforts.  
 

2. The County and Municipalities should each actively participate in multi-county, 
multi-jurisdiction, regional transportation planning, including planning for 
Washington State Ferries.  
 

3. The County and Municipalities will cooperate in the analysis of, and response to, 
any major industrial, retail, commercial, recreation, or residential development 
proposal that may impact the transportation systems in Island County.  
 

4. The capacity of the transportation system must be planned, built, and managed 
to meet planned land use densities in UGAs.  
 

5. The planned transportation system should be implemented in a coordinated and 
cost effective manner utilizing a fair and sufficient method of funding.  
 

6. The County and Municipalities shall work together in identifying and preserving 
transportation corridors in JPAs and unincorporated UGAs. The location and 
extent of such corridors should be based on the street classifications and/or 
future street maps recommended or identified in the Transportation Elements of 
Municipal Comprehensive Plans.  
 

7. The purchase of right-of-way, or the construction of transportation projects 
necessary to facilitate Urban Development, within unincorporated UGAs shall be 
the responsibility of the Municipality associated with the UGA.  
 

8. The County and Municipalities will coordinate their respective transportation 
plans for consistency and interconnectedness in JPAs and unincorporated 
Municipal UGAs. For developments occurring in a JPA, or an unincorporated 
Municipal UGA, that may impact future transportation corridors, the County will 
notify the Municipality responsibility for the UGA or JPA of the development and  
provide the Municipality with an opportunity to comment on the proposal.  
 

9. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.430, a multi-jurisdiction environmental and permitting 
process should be established for reviewing and coordinating state and local 
permits for transportation projects that cross Municipal or County boundaries. 
This policy may be carried out through the development of inter-local agreements 
with the Municipalities within Island County as well as adjoining County’s 
Counties and Municipalities.  

Comment [p17]: This policy would benefit from 
the addition of clarifying language.  The additional 
language should address what is meant by 
“response to” and which activities are defined as 
“major” (especially those related to residential). 

Comment [p18]: This is an important policy.  
Identifying and preserving future transportation 
corridors is an important step in developing the 
future transportation network. 

128



ATTACHMENT 6 

19 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3.9 Housing 
 
In order to meet the need for affordable housing and to accommodate the housing 
needs for all economic segments of the population, the County and Municipalities will 
consider the following policies in the development of locally adopted comprehensive 
plans:  
 

1. A wide range of housing development types and densities throughout Island 
County should be encouraged and promoted to meet the needs of a diverse 
population and provide affordable housing choices for all; 
 

2. Manufactured home parks at urban densities, should be located within 
Municipalities, UGAs, and/or unincorporated RAIDs; 
 

3. Multi-family housing should be located within Municipalities, UGAs, and/or 
unincorporated RAIDs; 
 

4. The County and Municipalities should provide appropriately zoned lands and/or 
location criteria to assure the inclusion of multi-family housing and manufactured 
home parks within UGAs and should provide for other types of housing for 
individuals with special needs throughout the county. 
 

5.4. In order to maximize economic opportunity and enhance the wellbeing of 
Island County’s low income residents, publicly funded low income housing should 
be located in close proximity to employment centers, transit stops, and other 
public services.  
 

6.5. The comprehensive plans of the County and the Municipalities should 
consider the following housing policies:  
 

a. Development of boarding houses, single-room occupancy housing, 
scattered site housing, and accessory housing such as elder cottages, 
guest houses, and/or attached apartments; 
 

b. Establishment of a public/private housing trust fund to provide loans and 
grants for development of low to moderate income housing and housing 
for persons with special needs;  

 
c. Identification of publicly owned properties within UGAs or RAIDs that 

could serve as possible sites for the development of affordable low income 
housing; and 

 
d. Identification of regulatory relief actions such as inclusionary zoning, 

density bonuses for the development of lower-cost housing or in-lieu 
payments into a housing trust fund, forgiveness of impact or mitigation 
fees for low-income housing as authorized under the GMA or priority 

Comment [p19]: Not necessary with Policies 1-3 
as shown above. 

129



ATTACHMENT 6 

20 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

permit process treatment of housing developments intended for or 
including affordable housing.  

 
7.6. Provisions for affordable housing will be required elements of the 

economic development and comprehensive plans of the County and 
Municipalities.  

 
3.10 Land Use & Public Health 
 
Access to clean air and water, healthy food, affordable housing, adequate 
transportation, and opportunities for physical activity, are all key factors that contribute 
to a positive quality of life. The Growth Management Act (GMA) encourages the 
availability of affordable housing, efficient multimodal transportation systems, retaining 
open spaces, enhancing recreational opportunities and requires communities to plan for 
bicycle and pedestrian transportation and physical activity.  Establishing a deliberate 
connection between land use and public health will assist the County and the 
Municipalities further the GMA in this area.  Therefore, it is the policy of the County and 
the Municipalities that the following policies should be considered when developing or 
revising County or Municipal Planning Policies and Development Regulations: 
 

1. Roadway systems should be planned, built, and managed to encourage 
alternative transportation modes to the single-occupant vehicle.  Transportation 
systems should support active, independent mobility for users of all ages and 
abilities, including children, youth, families, older adults, and individuals with 
disabilities. Each jurisdiction should encourage: 

 
a. Use of public transportation, 

 
b. Development of linked on-street bicycle routes and pedestrian and bicycle 

corridors; 
 

c. Adequate pedestrian facilities; and 
 

d. Provisions for connections between different modes of transportation. 
 

2. Development within UGAs should encourage enhanced community access and 
promote healthy active lifestyles through: 
 

a. A denseAn appropriate mix of land uses and intensities of land uses;  
 

b. Well connected street grids;  
 

c. Non-motorized access to transportation 
 

d. Appropriate pedestrian and bicycle facilities that allow for safe travel; and  
 

130



ATTACHMENT 6 

21 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

e. Regionally connected trail systems 
 

3. A countywide system of non-motorized trails should be established in 
accordance with the Island County Non-Motorized Trails Plan. Trail development 
should be completed through regional collaboration and prioritize linking multi-
modal transportation, schools, urban development, places of employment, and 
recreational facilities.  
 

4. Residents should have adequate access to “open space” areas. Open spaces 
include land which contains natural areas, habitat lands, natural drainage 
features, and/or other environmental, cultural and scenic resources. Such land 
should be preserved and provided to residents for recreational use when 
appropriate. Open spaces should be linked to non-motorized transportation and 
public transportation. 
 

5. Residents should have access to healthy food choices. Consideration should be 
given to establishing land use patterns and Development Regulations that 
support such access. Land use and Development Regulation amendments 
should consider the potential to remove existing barriers to healthy food choices, 
if they exist. Home and community gardens within UGAs should be encouraged 
and supported through design and permitting processes.  

 
6. Access to affordable housing influences, and is influenced by, residents’ health. 

Housing services should be planned with collaboration of health and economic 
development expertise. Development of multi-family affordable housing should 
be encouraged near major employment opportunities, public services including 
healthcare, public transportation, retail providing healthy food options, and open 
spaces such as parks and trails.   
 

3.11 Economic Development & Employment 
 
To ensure future economic vitality, broaden employment opportunities, and meet the 
needs of projected growth while retaining a high-quality environment, the County and 
the Municipalities have determined that the following policies shall should guide local 
economic development planning efforts:   
 

1. Economic growth should be encouraged within the capacities of the County’s 
natural resources, public services and public facilities; 
 

2. The Economic Development Element of the Island County Comprehensive Plan 
and the comprehensive plans of the Municipalities should,  at a minimum: 
 

a. Consider the goods, services and employment requirements of existing 
and projected population: 
 

b. Identify the land use, infrastructure, transportation, and labor market 
requirements of businesses which have the highest probability of 

Comment [p20]: City staff recommends this 
revision to maintain consistency with the remainder 
of statements in this section. 

131



ATTACHMENT 6 

22 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

economic success in Island County and the least negative impact on the 
quality of life; 

 
c. Based on citizen input, existing land use patterns and local capacity 

(geographic environmental and other considerations), determine areas 
suitable for retail, commercial and industrial uses; and 

 
d. Encourage expansion of the tax base to support the infrastructure and 

services required to support a growing or changing population. 
 

3. Future retail, commercial, and industrial development should be encouraged in 
UGAs and RAIDs as identified in the comprehensive plans adopted by the 
County and Municipalities. 
 

4. Land use regulations and infrastructure plans of the County and Municipalities 
should be amended or developed in a manner that supports economic 
development elements of locally adopted comprehensive plans.  
 

5. Economic development in each of Island County’s Planning Areas should 
proceed in a coordinated fashion consistent with locally adopted comprehensive 
plans and development regulations.  
 

6. The County, Municipalities and Port Districts should work collaboratively to 
address issues of intergovernmental coordination and overlapping responsibility. 

 
4. Administration and Implementation  
 
The purpose of this section is to ensure that the Countywide Planning Policies are 
administered jointly in a collaborative fashion by the County and Municipalities.  
 
4.1 Countywide Planning Group 
 

1. A Countywide Planning Group (CPG) shall be formed for the purpose of 
discussing and coordinating countywide planning issues. This group shall be 
comprised of representatives from the planning departments of Coupeville, Island 
County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.  
 

2. The CPG shall meet at least two times each year or more frequently as needed.  
 

3. Matters of overlapping concern or jurisdiction should be discussed by the CPG 
before being advanced for legislative approval by the County or Municipalities. 

 
4.2 Procedures for Adopting or Amending Countywide Planning Policies 

 
1. The Countywide Planning Policies shall be reviewed, updated, or amended as 

needed during the periodic update and review cycle required by RCW 

132



ATTACHMENT 6 

23 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

36.70A.130, provided that any amendments or updates are consistent with the 
requirements of the GMA.  
 

2. Amendments to the Countywide Planning Policies may be made outside of the 
normal periodic update cycle if necessary to address unforeseen or unanticipated 
events which must be addressed prior to the next periodic update cycle. In such 
instances, revisions may be proposed by a Municipality or the County and should 
be drafted jointly by the CPG prior to being advanced to the legislative bodies 
representing Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor. 
 

3. At least two years before the periodic review deadline established by RCW 
36.70A.130 the CPG shall begin a series of meetings to discuss planning issues 
of countywide importance that may affect the periodic updates of the 
Municipalities or the County.  
 

4. If necessary amendments or updates are identified during the CPG meetings 
they shall be forwarded to the BOCC for consideration. If the BOCC makes a 
decision to adopt the proposed revisions, they shall only become effective when 
ratified by the majority of legislative bodies representing Coupeville, Island 
County, Langley, and Oak Harbor. 

 
4.3 Population Projections and Land Capacity Analysis  
 

1. As part of the periodic review process required by RCW 36.70A.130, the CPG 
shall review, and if necessary, revise the 20 year population projection. The 
County should lead this effort in cooperation with the Municipalities.  
 

2. In reviewing the 20 year population projection, the CPG shall utilize the medium 
series projection range issued by the Washington State Office of Financial 
Management (OFM) as a base, or starting point. The CPG shall then analyze the 
assumptions used in the development of OFM’s forecasting model. In those 
instances where OFMs assumptions differ from locally observed conditions or 
trends, adjustments shall be made to the medium series projection.  
 

3. Once a general consensus has been reached by the members of the CPG, the 
CPG’s population projection recommendation shall be forwarded to the Island 
County Planning Commission and the Board of Island County Commissioners 
(BOCC) for consideration. Based on the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation, the BOCC shall either adopt the 20 year population projection 
developed by the CPG or refer the matter back to the CPG for further work.  
 

4. BOCC adoption of a population projection shall include a resolution identifying 
the population projection to be used. The population projection decision shall 
only become final when ratified by the majority of legislative bodies representing 
Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.  
 

133



ATTACHMENT 6 

24 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

5. After the BOCC has adopted a population projection, the CPG shall develop a 
plan for allocating the projected population growth to each of Island County’s 
Planning Areas. This regional allocation process should be based on past growth 
trends, demographic characteristics, economic conditions, and housing market 
data.  
 

6. After the regional allocation process described above is completed, the CPG 
shall divide each regional allocation into an urban component and a rural 
component; the urban component of each regional allocation shall then be 
assigned to the UGAs. 
 

7. For each UGA, a land capacity analysis shall be performed to determine if the 
UGA has sufficient capacity to accommodate the projected growth in population 
and jobs. The land capacity analysis should be conducted by the jurisdiction 
responsible for the UGA and shall utilize the procedures described in Appendix 
A. 
 

8. If, based on the results of the land capacity analysis described above, it is 
determined that a UGA does not have sufficient capacity to accommodate 20 
years of population and job growth, the UGA may be expanded as necessary to 
accommodate the anticipated growth, provided that any proposed expansion 
shall be consistent with the applicable criteria contained in section 3.3 of these 
policies. 
 

9. If, based on the results of the land capacity analysis described above, it is 
determined that a UGA has significantly more capacity than is required to 
accommodate 20 years of population and job growth, the UGA may be reduced 
in size if requested by the jurisdiction responsible for the UGA, provided that any 
proposed reduction shall be consistent with the criteria enumerated in sections 
3.3.8 and 3.3.10.  

 
4.4 Monitoring and Reporting Procedures 

 
1. In order to facilitate future analysis, the County and Municipalities will maintain 

development records which include: 
 

a. The number of housing units permitted and constructed annually. This 
information shall be collected and maintained in a manner which makes it 
possible to differentiate between new “additional” units and replacement 
units.  
 

b. The number of land divisions approved, the size of the parcel divided, the 
number of new or additional lots created through each division, the gross 
and net density achieved by each division, and the quantity of land used 
for public purposes within each division. 

 

134



ATTACHMENT 6 

25 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

c. The number of multi-family development projects approved, the number of 
units contained within each development, the gross and net density 
achieved by each development, and the maximum density permitted in the 
zone where each project is located. 

 
d. The square footage of new commercial or industrial buildings permitted 

and constructed. This information should be collected and maintained so 
that it is possible to calculate the floor area or site coverage ratios of each 
development.  
 

2. The data described above should be provided to Island County Planning 
Department by the end of January each year for the purpose of maintaining an 
accurate buildable lands inventory. Following the receipt of this information the 
County should produce an annual report summarizing development trends in 
Island County and distribute this report to the Municipalities and Special Service 
Districts as appropriate.  
 

3. Arc GIS data should be provided to Island County by the end of January each 
year to reflect any changes made to Municipal land use or zoning maps.  
Additionally, Island County should provide updated parcel information to the 
Municipalities.  
 

 
5. Fiscal Impact Statement 
 
It is the opinion of the Planning Officials of the Municipalities and the County that the 
Countywide Planning Policies, in themselves, have no fiscal impact and are an agreed 
upon method of guiding the planning activities required by the Growth Management Act.  
As the Growth Management Act and these policies are implemented to their maximum 
extent, County Government may lose some tax base needed to operate essential 
services which serve both the County and Municipalities.  To compensate for this, 
legislation may be required to provide tax base sharing. Neither the fiscal impacts of 
implementing the Growth Management Act itself, nor the development of land use plans 
and Development Regulations necessary to implement the GMA, are addressed herein.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

135



ATTACHMENT 6 

26 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

Appendix A: Buildable Lands Procedures 
 
Abbreviations & Definitions: 
 

1. Critical Area Constraint Factor (CF): A number representing the percentage of 
RAID or UGA land which is presumed to be constrained by critical areas, and 
therefore less likely to be available for development.  
 

2. Development Potential (DP), Non-Residential & Multi-Family Residential: The 
number of acres available for non-residential and multi-family residential 
development in each industrial, commercial, mixed use, and multi-family zone. In 
this analysis, DP is used as a subtotal to express the gross capacity of vacant or 
re-developable parcels before the Total Development Potential is calculated. 
 

3. Development Potential (DP), Single-Family Residential: The potential number of 
lots or dwelling units which can be created by dividing or developing vacant or 
partially vacant parcels in zones which permit single-family residential 
development. In this analysis, DP is used as a subtotal to express the gross 
capacity of vacant or partially vacant parcels before the Total Development 
Potential is calculated.  
 

4. Partially Vacant Parcel (PVP): A partially vacant parcel is a parcel which contains 
an existing dwelling unit but which is large enough to be divided. 
 

5. Public Purpose Land (PPL): Includes land required for such things as streets, 
drainage facilities, and parks/open space.  
 

6. Re-Developable Parcel (RP): A parcel zoned for non-residential uses or multi-
family residential uses that has the potential to be redeveloped and used more 
intensively.  
 

7. Total Development Potential, Non-Residential & Multi-Family Residential (TDP): 
The total gross quantity of land available for multi-family or non-residential 
development before land is subtracted to account for public purposes and critical 
areas.  
 

8. Total Net Capacity (TNC): The total net capacity of each single-family, multi-
family, industrial, commercial, and mixed use zone after land is subtracted for 
public purposes and critical areas. Total Net Capacity is expressed in acres for 
multi-family and non-residential zones, and dwelling units or lots for single-family 
zones. 

 
9. Total Development Potential, Single-Family Residential (TDP): The total gross 

number of lots or dwelling units which could be created by dividing and/or 
developing all vacant and partially vacant parcels available for single-family 

136



ATTACHMENT 6 

27 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

development before land is subtracted to account for public purposes and critical 
areas.   

 
10. Undevelopable Parcel (UP): Parcels which are not likely to be available for 

development because they are owned by a charitable organization, institution, or 
governmental entity. Undevelopable parcels shall be identified based on 
Assessor’s parcel data. Parcels which are tax exempt based on Assessor’s 
parcel data shall be considered undevelopable.  

 
11. Vacant Parcel (VP): A parcel which is either vacant or has an improved value of 

less than $4,000 based on Assessor’s parcel data. Parcels which contain a 
mobile or manufacture home shall not be considered vacant even if they have an 
improved value of less than $4,000. 

 
Assumptions:  
 

1. Employment Density: For commercial and industrial lands the following 
assumptions should be used:   
 

a. Commercial, UGA: 17 employees per acre 
 

b. Industrial: 8 employees per acres 
 

2. In RAIDs and UGAs, 15% of available land will be needed for public purposes. 
 

3. Re-Development Factor: It is assumed that 50% of multi-family, commercial, and 
industrial parcels with an improvement to land value of less than 1:2 will be 
available for redevelopment during the planning period (20 years from the date of 
the most recent periodic update). 
 

4. Household Size: For the 2016 periodic update an average household size for 
Island County of 2.36 was employed. This figure was based on data from the 
2010 census. For each subsequent periodic update, the most current census 
data should be employed.  
 

5. Partially Vacant Parcels: A parcel shall be considered Partially Vacant if it is at 
least twice the minimum lot size required by the zone in which it is located. 

 
Rural Analysis Steps:  
 

1. Identify all parcels within a RAID or UGA and exclude these parcels from further 
analysis. 
 

2. Separate parcels by zoning category and identify lands zoned park/open space, 
special review district, airport, or any other designation which does not allow for 
residential development. These parcels should be excluded from further analysis. 

137



ATTACHMENT 6 

28 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

 
3. For each zoning designation, identify all undevelopable parcels (UP) based on 

tax classification. Parcels which are publicly owned or tax exempt (parks, 
schools, churches etc.) should be considered undevelopable and excluded from 
further analysis. 
 

4. For each zoning designation, calculate the development potential of all vacant 
parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels is determined by 
dividing the parcel area required by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and 
rounding down. For example, a 17 acre parcel in the Rural zone could be divided 
into three five acre parcels (17/5 = 3.4) and accommodate three dwelling units.  
 

5. For each zoning designation calculate the development potential of all partially 
vacant parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size, 
rounding down and subtracting one to account for the existing dwelling unit. For 
example a 17 acre parcel in the Rural zone with an existing home on it could be 
divided into three five acre parcels and two additional homes could be 
constructed on the resulting parcels. [(17/5 = 3.4) -1 = 2.4]. 

 
6. For each zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by 

adding the results from steps four and five together. This step allows the total 
build-out capacity for each, non-RAID, rural zoning designation to be determined 
(in dwelling units). 

 
7. As a final step, add the resulting TDP figures for each zoning designation 

together to determine the total development potential for areas outside of RAIDs 
and UGAs. This step will allow the total build-out capacity of the rural area 
(excluding RAIDs) to be determined (in number of dwelling units). 
 

8. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated, the 
dwelling unit totals from steps six or seven can be multiplied by the average 
household size for Island County. The average household size should be 
determined using the most recent census data available.    

 
RAID Analysis Steps:  

General Steps 

1. Identify all parcels which are either located within a UGA or outside of a RAID. 
Exclude these parcels from further analysis.  

 
2. For each zoning designation, identify all undevelopable parcels (UP) based on 

tax classification. Parcels which are publicly owned or tax exempt (parks, 
schools, churches etc.) should be considered undevelopable and excluded from 
further analysis. 
 

138



ATTACHMENT 6 

29 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3. Separate residential RAIDs from nonresidential RAIDs by zoning designation. 
Residential RAID parcels should be analyzed separately from non-residential 
RAID parcels as described below. 
 

4. Determine the critical area constraint factor for each RAID by combining all 
critical area GIS layers, calculating the number of acres constrained by critical 
areas within each RAID. The result is a critical area constraint factor for each 
RAID.    

 
Determining the Capacity of Residential RAID Zones 

 
1. For each residential RAID zoning designation calculate the development 

potential of all vacant parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels 
is determined by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the 
zone and rounding down. 
 

2. For each residential RAID zoning designation calculate the development 
potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP). For purposes of this analysis, a 
partially vacant parcel is a parcel that is at least two times as large as the 
minimum lot size allowed by the zone. Calculate the development potential of all 
partially vacant parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size 
allowed in the zone and rounding down and subtracting one in order to account 
for the existing dwelling unit. 
 

3. For each residential RAID zoning designation determine the total development 
potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next 
determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an 
appropriate amount of land. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor and 
deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity 
(TNC) for each residential RAID zoning designation to be determined (in dwelling 
units). 
 

4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each residential RAID zoning designation 
together to determine the total development potential for all residential RAID 
zones. This step will allow the total combined net capacity of residential RAID 
zones to be determined (in number dwelling units). 
 

5. In order to determine the number of people which can be accommodated, the 
dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average 
household size for Island County. The average household size should be 
determined using the most recent census data available.    

 
Determining Capacity of Non-Residential RAID Zones 

 
1. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation identify all vacant parcels 

(VP). Once all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the total 

139



ATTACHMENT 6 

30 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the non-residential 
development potential of all vacant parcels (in acres) for each non-residential 
RAID zoning designation.  
 

2. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation identify all re-developable 
parcels (RP). A parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data 
indicates that the improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all 
of the re-developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined 
acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the non-residential 
development potential of all re-developable parcels (in acres) for each non-
residential RAID zoning designation. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to 
account for the re-development factor.  

 
3. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation determine the total 

development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together.  
Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an 
appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and 
deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for 
each non-residential RAID zoning designation to be determined (in acres). 

 
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each non-residential RAID zoning designation 

together to determine the total development potential for all non-residential RAID 
zones. This step will allow the total combined build-out capacity of non-residential 
RAID zones to be determined (in acres). 

 
UGA Analysis Steps: 

General Steps 

1. Sort parcels by zoning or comprehensive plan designation using Assessor’s 
parcel data and/or any other applicable information.  Zoning or comprehensive 
plan designation should be obtained from the jurisdiction to ensure the accuracy 
of information before beginning the analysis.  

 
2. For each UGA, identify all the undevelopable parcels in each zoning designation. 

Undevelopable parcels should include land which is tax exempt (parks, schools, 
churches and public facilities).  Parcels, located in developed tracts, used for 
stormwater drainage and landscaping should be identified and removed from the 
analysis. These parcels typically are a requirement of the site plan and are not 
available for redevelopment. Remove all condominiums and gas stations from 
the results.  Condominiums may show up in the results due to the relatively low 
improvement to land value of any one unit, however, the aggregate improvement 
to land value generally makes condominiums unlikely to redevelopment.  Gas 
stations often have a low improvement to property value because they generally 
have very limited facilities and expensive real estate; however they are highly 
unlikely to redevelop. These parcels should be excluded from further analysis. 

 

140



ATTACHMENT 6 

31 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

3. For each UGA, compile all available critical area mapping information and merge 
these layers into a single layer to determine the total quantity of constrained 
acreage in each zoning designation. Calculate the percentage of land area within 
each UGA that is constrained by critical areas by comparing number of acres 
constrained by critical areas to the total number of acres in each UGA. This 
calculation will result in a critical area constraint factor for each UGA. 

 
4. Based on available zoning or comprehensive plan information, sort all parcels 

into four groups as follows: (a) parcels zoned for single family home development 
(freestanding homes, townhomes, or other forms of individual lot development); 
(b) parcels zoned for multifamily development (apartments, condominiums, 
mobile home parks, and other forms of multi-unit per parcel development); (c) 
commercial and mixed use zones; and (d) industrial zones. Each of these groups 
should then be analyzed separately as described below. 
 

UGA Capacity - Single Family Zones 
 

1. For each single-family zoning designation calculate the development potential of 
all vacant parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels is 
determined by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the 
zone and rounding down. When Planning Policies or Development Regulations 
specify both a minimum and maximum density, both should be calculated to 
produce a range. Developments since the adoption of the most recent 
Development Regulations should be used to select the most likely density for 
expected development to achieve within this potential range. 

 
2. For each single-family zoning designation calculate the development potential of 

all partially vacant parcels (PVP). For purposes of this analysis, a partially vacant 
parcel is a parcel that is at least two times as large as the minimum lot size 
allowed by the zone. Calculate the development potential of all partially vacant 
parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the 
zone and rounding down and subtracting one in order to account for the existing 
dwelling unit. Additionally, identify all the parcels that fall within 2 and 2.5 times 
the minimum lot size; remove 50% of these additional units to account for parcels 
which are physically large enough to be subdivided, but which cannot be 
subdivided because of the placement of the existing housing unit on the parcel or 
other limiting factor.  When Planning Policies or Development Regulations 
specify both a minimum and maximum density, both should be calculated to 
produce a range. 

 
3. For each single-family zoning designation determine the total development 

potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next, 
determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct this 
percentage from the TDP. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor for the 
UGA and deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net 

Comment [p21]: The use of the 50% reduction 
for parcels between 2 and 2.5 times the minimum 
lot size is a good first step in determining a practical 
number of partially vacant parcels to include in the 
capacity analysis.  At the time this language was 
introduced, City staff believed it was written in such 
a fashion as to exclude 50% of all parcels above the 
2 times the minimum lot size – not just those 
parcels between 2 and 2.5 times the size.  
Subsequent conversation with County staff 
determined that was not their intent.  Including 
100% of parcels above 2.5 times the minimum size 
in the capacity analysis sets an unreasonable 
expectation as to the development potential for 
many of these lots within the 20 year planning 
horizon.  City staff recommends the City Council 
request additional study of this language. 
 
NOTE: This comment added for the City Council’s 
consideration after the PC’s recommendation of 
4/28/15. 

141



ATTACHMENT 6 

32 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

capacity for each single-family zoning designation in the UGA to be determined 
(in dwelling units). 
 

4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each residential single-family zoning 
designation in the UGA together to determine the total development potential for 
all single-family zones in the UGA. The result of this step will be the total 
combined capacity of all single-family zones in the UGA (in number dwelling 
units). 
 

5. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated in the 
UGA’s single-family zones the dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be 
multiplied by the average household size for Island County. The average 
household size should be determined using the most recent census data 
available.    
 

UGA Capacity – Multi-Family Zones 
 

1. Identify all vacant parcels zoned for multi-family residential development. 
Determine the development potential of these parcels by multiplying the acreage 
of the parcels by the density permitted in the zone. For zones with both a 
minimum and a maximum density, calculate the development potential at both 
the minimum allowed density and the maximum permitted density. Developments 
since the adoption of the most recent Development Regulations should be used 
to select the most likely density for expected development to achieve within this 
potential range. 
 

2. For all areas designated for multi-family residential identify the parcels which can 
be redeveloped. In order to be re-developable, a parcel should have an 
improvement to land value ratio of less than 1:2. Determine the development 
potential of these parcels by multiplying the acreage of the parcels by the density 
permitted in the zone. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the 
redevelopment factor. For zones with both a minimum and a maximum density 
calculate the development potential at both the minimum allowed density and the 
maximum permitted density.  

 
3. For each multi-family zoning designation determine the total development 

potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next 
determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an 
appropriate amount of land. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor for the 
UGA and deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net 
capacity for each multi-family zoning designation in the UGA to be determined (in 
dwelling units). 
 

4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each multi-family residential zoning designation 
in the UGA together to determine the total development potential for all multi-

142



ATTACHMENT 6 

33 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

family zones in the UGA. The result of this step will be the total combined 
capacity of all multi-family zones in the UGA (in dwelling units). 
 

5. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated in the 
UGA’s multi-family zones, the dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be 
multiplied by the average household size for Island County. The average 
household size should be determined using the most recent census data 
available.    

 
UGA Capacity – Commercial & Mixed Use Zones 
 

1. For each commercial or mixed use UGA zoning designation identify all vacant 
parcels (VP). Once all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the 
total combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the commercial 
and mixed used development potential of all vacant parcels (in acres) for each 
non-residential commercial and mixed use zoning designation.  
 

2. For each commercial or mixed use UGA designation identify all re-developable 
parcels (RP). A parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data 
indicates that the improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all 
of the re-developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined 
acreage of these parcels. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the 
redevelopment factor. The result, is the development potential of all re-
developable parcels (in acres) for each commercial or mixed use UGA zoning 
designation. 

 
3. For each commercial or mixed use UGA zoning designation determine the total 

development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together.  
Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an 
appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and 
deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for 
each commercial or mixed use UGA zoning designation to be determined (in 
acres). 

 
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each commercial or mixed use UGA zoning 

designation together to determine the total development potential for all 
commercial or mixed use UGA zones. This step will allow the total combined 
build-out capacity of commercial or mixed use UGA zones to be determined (in 
acres). 
 

5. In order to determine the number of jobs which can be accommodated in 
commercial or mixed use UGA, the acreage totals from steps three or four can 
be multiplied by the average commercial employment density.  

 
UGA Capacity – Industrial Zones 
 

143



ATTACHMENT 6 

34 | P a g e  
 

Island County Planning & Community Development  
Countywide Planning Policies  

1. For each industrial UGA zoning designation identify all vacant parcels (VP). Once 
all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined 
acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the development potential of 
all vacant parcels (in acres) for each industrial UGA zoning designation.  
 

2. For each industrial UGA designation identify all re-developable parcels (RP). A 
parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data indicates that the 
improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all of the re-
developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage 
of these parcels. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the 
redevelopment factor. The result is the development potential of all re-
developable parcels (in acres) for each industrial UGA zoning designation. 

 
3. For each industrial UGA zoning designation determine the total development 

potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together.  Next 
determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an 
appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and 
deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for 
each industrial UGA zoning designation to be determined (in acres). 

 
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each industrial UGA zoning designation 

together to determine the total development potential for all industrial UGA 
zones. This step will allow the total combined build-out capacity of industrial UGA 
zones to be determined (in acres). 
 

5. In order to determine the number of jobs which can be accommodated in 
commercial or mixed use UGA, the acreage totals from steps three or four can 
be multiplied by the average industrial employment density.  

 

144



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1735: 
 Transportation Impact Fee 
Code Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1735

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents amendments to the transportation impact fee code, providing for exemption 
from payment under certain circumstances.

State law (RCW 82.020.050) allows counties, cities or towns to collect transportation impact fees to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.c
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Ordinance No. 1735: 
 Transportation Impact Fee 
Code Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Adopt Ordinance No. 1735

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents amendments to the transportation impact fee code, providing for exemption 
from payment under certain circumstances.

State law (RCW 82.020.050) allows counties, cities or towns to collect transportation impact fees to State law (RCW 82.020.050) allows counties, cities or towns to collect transportation impact fees to 
help fund necessary transportation projects.  It also allows the county, city, or town imposing the impact
fees to adjust the standard impact fee at the time the fee is imposed to consider unusual circumstances in
specific cases to ensure that impact fees are imposed fairly (RCW 82.020.060).

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter (OHMC) 3.63, Impact Fees, establishes the impact fees charged 
by the City, the circumstances under which they apply and provides exemptions or reductions for low-
income housing.  A review of this chapter finds that it is desirable to amend the Municipal Code to 
provide relief from the collection of transportation impact fees for unusual circumstances and in certain 
instances for the use of existing structures.  It is also desirable to provide fee relief for specific geographic 
areas for economic development purposes.

The Comprehensive Plan supports this concept from a broad policy perspective.  Goal 14 of the Land 
Use Element and Goal 2 of the Economic Development Element encourage the City to provide economic 
development support to the central business district of Oak Harbor in a variety of ways.

            Land Use Element, Goal 14:  To strengthen and enlarge the commercial economic base of the 
community by promoting the development of facilities that provide a competitive and stimulating business
environment.

State law (RCW 82.020.050) allows counties, cities or towns to collect transportation impact fees to 
help fund necessary transportation projects.  It also allows the county, city, or town imposing the impact 
fees to adjust the standard impact fee at the time the fee is imposed to consider unusual circumstances in 
specific cases to ensure that impact fees are imposed fairly (RCW 82.020.060).

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter (OHMC) 3.63, Impact Fees, establishes the impact fees charged 
by the City, the circumstances under which they apply and provides exemptions or reductions for low-
income housing.  A review of this chapter finds that it is desirable to amend the Municipal Code to 
provide relief from the collection of transportation impact fees for unusual circumstances and in certain 
instances for the use of existing structures.  It is also desirable to provide fee relief for specific geographic 
areas for economic development purposes.

The Comprehensive Plan supports this concept from a broad policy perspective.  Goal 14 of the Land 
Use Element and Goal 2 of the Economic Development Element encourage the City to provide economic 
development support to the central business district of Oak Harbor in a variety of ways.

            Land Use Element, Goal 14:  To strengthen and enlarge the commercial economic base of the 
community by promoting the development of facilities that provide a competitive and stimulating business 
environment.

145



            Policy 14.e:  Support and maintain the central business district of Oak Harbor…

            Policy 14.g:  Promote commercial infill development.

            Economic Development Element, Goal 2:  Implement the Waterfront Redevelopment, Branding 
and Marketing Program [aka the Windjammer Plan] to increase visitor spending and enhance the quality 
of life and economic vitality of Oak Harbor.

           

            Policy 2.d:  The City should support and assist private property owners in the [central business 
district] area with planning projects in conformance with the Waterfront Redevelopment, Branding and 
Marketing Program.

The City wishes to encourage economic development in its downtown area and decrease the number of 
vacant businesses in the historic portion of the city.  One method of support is to exempt this area from 
the payment of transportation impact fees. 

Taking the above into account, Ordinance No. 1735 amends OHMC Chapter 3.63, Impact Fees, in 
three ways:

1. It exempts the replacement, alteration, etc. of certain existing structures from the need to pay 
transportation impact fees. 

2. It exempts commercial development activity from those properties with Central Business District 
zoning from paying the fee. 

3. It provides for the adjustment of the fee amount under certain, other unique circumstances. 

            Policy 14.e:  Support and maintain the central business district of Oak Harbor…

            Policy 14.g:  Promote commercial infill development.

            Economic Development Element, Goal 2:  Implement the Waterfront Redevelopment, Branding 
and Marketing Program [aka the Windjammer Plan] to increase visitor spending and enhance the quality 
of life and economic vitality of Oak Harbor.

           

            Policy 2.d:  The City should support and assist private property owners in the [central business 
district] area with planning projects in conformance with the Waterfront Redevelopment, Branding and 
Marketing Program.

The City wishes to encourage economic development in its downtown area and decrease the number of 
vacant businesses in the historic portion of the city.  One method of support is to exempt this area from 
the payment of transportation impact fees. 

Taking the above into account, Ordinance No. 1735 amends OHMC Chapter 3.63, Impact Fees, in 
three ways:

1. It exempts the replacement, alteration, etc. of certain existing structures from the need to pay 
transportation impact fees. 

2. It exempts commercial development activity from those properties with Central Business District 
zoning from paying the fee. 

3. It provides for the adjustment of the fee amount under certain, other unique circumstances. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 82.020.050
RCW 82.020.060

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1735

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 82.020.050
RCW 82.020.060

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance 1735

146

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433779095_at.pdf


Transportation Impact Fees Ordinance - 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1735 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK HARBOR 

MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 3.63.065 ENTITLED "PAYMENT AND AMOUNT OF 

TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES" PROVIDING 

REFLIEF FROM PAYMENT FOR UNUSUAL CIRCUMSTANCES AND EXEMPTING 

COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY WITHIN THE CENTRAL BUSINESS 

DISTRICT FROM PAYING SAID FEES. 

WHEREAS, RCW 82.02.050 allows counties, cities or towns to collect transportation impact 

fees to help fund necessary transportation projects; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 82.020.060 allows the county, city, or town imposing the impact fees to 

adjust the standard impact fee at the time the fee is imposed to consider unusual circumstances in 

specific cases to ensure that impact fees are imposed fairly; and 

WHEREAS, while Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.63, Impact Fees, provides exemptions 

or reductions for low-income housing; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to amend the Municipal Code to provide transportation impact fee 

relief for unusual circumstances and in certain instances for use of existing structures; and 

WHEREAS, it is also desirable to provide relief for specific geographic areas for economic 

development purposes; and  

WHEREAS, Goal 14 of the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element and Goal 2 of the Economic 

Development Element encourage the City to provide economic development support to the 

central business district of Oak Harbor in a variety of ways; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to encourage economic development in its downtown area and 

decrease the number of vacant businesses in the historic portion of the city; and  

WHEREAS, one method of support is to exempt this area from the payment of transportation 

impact fees; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 3.63.065 entitled "Payment and amount of 

transportation impact fees for development activities" last amended by Section 5 of Ordinance 

1696 in 2014 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

3.63.065 Payment and amount of transportation impact fees for development activities. 

147



 

 

Transportation Impact Fees Ordinance - 2 

 

(1)  The owners of property in which development activity takes place shall pay a 

transportation impact fee set out hereinafter in accordance with this chapter. Such 

transportation impact fee shall be deposited with the city prior to written approval from 

the city which authorizes commencement of such development activity. 

 

(2) “Development activity at the time the building permit is issued according to RCW 

82.02.090 (1)” means any construction or expansion of a building, structure or use, any 

change in use of a building or structure, or any changes in the use of land that create 

additional demand and need for transportation facilities. Transportation impact fees shall 

be collected at the time the building permit is issued. 

 

(3) The transportation impact fees imposed in this section per peak hour trip generated for 

nonresidential activities and per residential unit developed shall be in the master fee 

schedule adopted by resolution of the city council. Peak hour trip generation shall be 

determined as per Chapter 11.32 OHMC. 

 

(4) The following development activities are exempt from imposition of transportation 

impact fees: 

 

a. Replacement of a structure with a new structure of the same gross floor area and use 

at the same site or lot when such replacement occurs within five years of the 

demolition or destruction of the prior structure. 

 

b. Replacement, alteration, expansion, enlargement, remodeling, rehabilitation or 

conversion of an existing dwelling unit where no additional units are created and the 

use is not changed. 

 

c. Any building permit for a legal accessory dwelling unit approved under Title 19 of 

this code (Zoning Code) as it is considered part of the single-family use associated 

with this fee. 

 

d. Alteration of an existing nonresidential structure that does not expand the usable 

space or change the use. 

 

5. All commercial development activity occurring within the area zoned Central Business 

District (CBD, CBD-1 and CBD-2) is exempt from imposition of transportation impact 

fees.  

 

6. The public works director is authorized to adjust the impact fees to be calculated under 

this chapter where the developer demonstrates that unusual circumstances make the 

standard impact fee applied to such development unfair or unjust. The circumstances that 

form the basis for the adjustment shall not be circumstances that are generally applicable 

to similar land uses or to all development activity in the vicinity. Unusual circumstances 

may include that the development activity will have substantially less impact on the 

system improvements than other development activities in the same land use category. 

Any request for an adjustment shall be made no later than the time of the application 

148

http://www.codepublishing.com/wa/kirkland/mobile/index.pl?path=../html/Kirkland23/Kirkland23.html#23


 

 

Transportation Impact Fees Ordinance - 3 

 

triggering imposition of impact fees. Adjustments granted under this section shall not be 

transferable from one property, project or development activity to another. 

 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 

after publication. 

 

PASSED by the City Council this 16
th

 day of June, 2015. 

 

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

   Veto   (     ) 

   Approve (     ) 

       By       

        Scott Dudley, Mayor 

 

       Dated:        

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

       

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

Published:        

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

149



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Sign Code Amendment - Banner 
Program Ordinance 1733: Public 
Hearing

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing and accept public testimony on Ordinance No. 1733
 Adopt Findings of Fact

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide for a public hearing on the interim sign code amendment 
ordinance adopted by the City Council on June 2, 2015 (Ordinance No. 1733, Attachment 1) which

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 9.a
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Sign Code Amendment - Banner 
Program Ordinance 1733: Public 
Hearing

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
 Conduct public hearing and accept public testimony on Ordinance No. 1733
 Adopt Findings of Fact

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide for a public hearing on the interim sign code amendment 
ordinance adopted by the City Council on June 2, 2015 (Ordinance No. 1733, Attachment 1) whichordinance adopted by the City Council on June 2, 2015 (Ordinance No. 1733, Attachment 1) which 
established regulations allowing for a banner program.  It is necessary for the Council to adopt Findings 
of Fact in support of their previous action.

The City was approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide program that
honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their commemorative banners in the 
community on utility or light poles.  The existing sign code did not allow private party banners and signs to 
be placed on utility and light poles within the City.  In order to permit this activity a new signage program
must be created.  On June 2, 2015 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1733, amending the sign 
code regulations as required on an interim basis to establish a banner program.

RCW 36.70A.390 allows cities to adopt an interim zoning ordinance without first conducting a public 
hearing so long as one is conducted within 60 days of the adoption of the interim ordinance.  Tonight’s 
public hearing falls within the 60-day timeframe.  State law also requires that Findings of Fact justifying 
the interim ordinance must be adopted by the City Council.  Findings of Fact supporting the Council’s 
previous action are included as Attachment 2 to this agenda bill.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.390 

FISCAL IMPACT

ordinance adopted by the City Council on June 2, 2015 (Ordinance No. 1733, Attachment 1) which 
established regulations allowing for a banner program.  It is necessary for the Council to adopt Findings 
of Fact in support of their previous action.

The City was approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state wide program that 
honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their commemorative banners in the 
community on utility or light poles.  The existing sign code did not allow private party banners and signs to 
be placed on utility and light poles within the City.  In order to permit this activity a new signage program 
must be created.  On June 2, 2015 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1733, amending the sign 
code regulations as required on an interim basis to establish a banner program.

RCW 36.70A.390 allows cities to adopt an interim zoning ordinance without first conducting a public 
hearing so long as one is conducted within 60 days of the adoption of the interim ordinance.  Tonight’s 
public hearing falls within the 60-day timeframe.  State law also requires that Findings of Fact justifying 
the interim ordinance must be adopted by the City Council.  Findings of Fact supporting the Council’s 
previous action are included as Attachment 2 to this agenda bill.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70A.390 

FISCAL IMPACT

150



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
June 2, 2015 - City Council adopted interim Ordinance No. 1733

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No 1733
2. Findings of Fact

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
June 2, 2015 - City Council adopted interim Ordinance No. 1733

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No 1733
2. Findings of Fact

151

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433521673_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433521773_at.pdf


152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



Sign Code Amend Banner FoF.docx 

Page 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In Re Ordinance No.1733   ) FINDINGS OF FACT, 

) CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

) AND DECISION OF 

) CITY COUNCIL 

Sign Code Amendment – Banner Program ) 

THIS MATTER came before the City Council upon the recommendation of staff to adopt an 

ordinance approving interim sign code regulations for a period of six-months to allow for the 

establishment and implementation of a civic event and recognition banner program.  Having 

considered the evidence in the record, heard the arguments of the parties and any public 

comment, and being fully advised in the premises, the City Council hereby enters the following 

findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decision: 

Findings of Fact 

1. The City of Oak Harbor desires to implement a new sign program that promotes the public

interest.

2. The City desires to recognize the service and sacrifice of community members in the armed

services.

3. The City code does not currently allow banners and signs to be placed on utility and light

poles within the City.

4. The new signage program allows for the display of banners for non-profit community

festivals and/or events, or commemorative signage for the members of the armed services, or

other similar uses.

5. The City has been approached by representatives of the Blue Star Banner program, a state

wide program that honors members of the armed services, who wish to place their

commemorative banners in the community in the very near future.

6. In order to capitalize on current community interest in and momentum for the program, the

City Council deems it appropriate to adopt the proposed revisions to the sign code as interim

regulations.

7. In adopting the interim regulations the City intends to follow the provisions of RCW

36.70A.390.

8. The foregoing findings were incorporated as “WHEREAS” statements in Ordinance No.

1733, said ordinance adopted by the Oak Harbor City Council on June 2, 2015 and which

established an interim sign code for banners for a period of six-months.

161



Sign Code Amend Banner FoF.docx 

Page 2 

9. Ordinance No. 1733 was published in the Whidbey News Times on June 6, 2015.

10. RCW 36.70A.390 allows cities to adopt an interim ordinance without first conducting a

public hearing so long as one is conducted within 60 days of the adoption of the interim

ordinance.

11. A public hearing was held on June 16, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. before Oak Harbor City Council for

the purposes of accepting public testimony on Ordinance No. 1733 and to consider the

adoption of additional findings of fact if necessary.

Conclusions of Law 

A.  The City Council has jurisdiction over this matter as established by RCW 36.70A.390. 

B.  The City Council conducted a public hearing on this matter and proper notice of this hearing 

was given. 

C.  The required public hearing was conducted within the 60-day timeframe as required by RCW 

36.70A.390. 

Decision 

The City Council hereby adopts the above Findings of Fact in support of the approval of 

Ordinance No. 1733 which established interim sign code regulations for a civic event and 

recognition program for a period of six-months. 

162



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Goldie Road LLC Annexation 
Agreement Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve amendment to Goldie Road, LLC annexation agreement, as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an amendment to the Goldie Road, LLC annexation agreement. 

In 2010, Goldie Road, LLC (the Owners) petitioned the City of Oak Harbor to annex their property 
th

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Goldie Road LLC Annexation 
Agreement Amendment

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve amendment to Goldie Road, LLC annexation agreement, as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an amendment to the Goldie Road, LLC annexation agreement. 

In 2010, Goldie Road, LLC (the Owners) petitioned the City of Oak Harbor to annex their property 
thlocated on the west side of Goldie Road, at approximately the NE 16th Avenue alignment.  Their 

property plus three adjoining properties were annexed into the City by Ordinance No. 1574 on April 21, 
2010 (please see Attachment 1).  As part of that annexation, the Owners and the City executed an 
Annexation Agreement containing covenants to run with the land (please see Attachment 2). 

Certain provisions of the Agreement (Nos. 5 and 6) require the Owners to apply for development 
permits and put in necessary improvements and extensions of City infrastructure within 5 years from the 
date of annexation.  The Owners have not met the requirements of these provisions and are requesting 
that the Annexation Agreement be amended to allow for completion of the contemplated infrastructure 
improvements when development of the properties occurs.

The annexation occurred at a time of a much different economic climate.  At the time of annexation the 
length and seriousness of the impending economic recession could not have been foresee.  Without 
development of the project anticipated with the annexation or other significant development in the 
surrounding area, the need to install the required infrastructure improvements within the timeframe 
required by the annexation agreement is greatly diminished.  While the economy is showing signs of 
improving, said improvement may not be sufficient enough to support substantial infrastructure 
improvements occurring in advance of a site specific project.  In recognition of the past and current 
economic conditions it is acceptable for the required public improvements to be installed concurrent with
development.  It is important to note that amending the agreement as requested will not relieve the 
Owners, or any subsequent owners, of the responsibility to install any required infrastructure 

located on the west side of Goldie Road, at approximately the NE 16th Avenue alignment.  Their 
property plus three adjoining properties were annexed into the City by Ordinance No. 1574 on April 21, 
2010 (please see Attachment 1).  As part of that annexation, the Owners and the City executed an 
Annexation Agreement containing covenants to run with the land (please see Attachment 2). 

Certain provisions of the Agreement (Nos. 5 and 6) require the Owners to apply for development 
permits and put in necessary improvements and extensions of City infrastructure within 5 years from the 
date of annexation.  The Owners have not met the requirements of these provisions and are requesting 
that the Annexation Agreement be amended to allow for completion of the contemplated infrastructure 
improvements when development of the properties occurs.

The annexation occurred at a time of a much different economic climate.  At the time of annexation the 
length and seriousness of the impending economic recession could not have been foresee.  Without 
development of the project anticipated with the annexation or other significant development in the 
surrounding area, the need to install the required infrastructure improvements within the timeframe 
required by the annexation agreement is greatly diminished.  While the economy is showing signs of 
improving, said improvement may not be sufficient enough to support substantial infrastructure 
improvements occurring in advance of a site specific project.  In recognition of the past and current 
economic conditions it is acceptable for the required public improvements to be installed concurrent with 
development.  It is important to note that amending the agreement as requested will not relieve the 
Owners, or any subsequent owners, of the responsibility to install any required infrastructure 

163



Owners, or any subsequent owners, of the responsibility to install any required infrastructure 
improvements.

The necessary amendment to the annexation agreement to execute the Owners’ request is included as 
Attachment 3 to this agenda bill.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the May 27, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1574
2. Annexation Agreement, dated April 13, 2010
3. Amendment to Annexation Agreement Covenants to Run with the Land

Owners, or any subsequent owners, of the responsibility to install any required infrastructure 
improvements.

The necessary amendment to the annexation agreement to execute the Owners’ request is included as 
Attachment 3 to this agenda bill.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A
Appropriation Source: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented at the May 27, 2015 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1574
2. Annexation Agreement, dated April 13, 2010
3. Amendment to Annexation Agreement Covenants to Run with the Land

164

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433453058_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433453089_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433452598_at.pdf


165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



Amendment to Annexation Agreement 

Covenants to Run With the Land - 1 

Return to: 

City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AMENDMENT TO ANNEXATION AGREEMENT 

COVENANTS TO RUN WITH THE LAND 

 

Grantors: Goldie Road LLC 

 

Grantee: City of Oak Harbor 

 

Property Legal Description:  That portion of the northeast quarter of Section 35, Township 33 North, Range 1 

East (See Exhibit "A" for full legal description) 

 

Property Auditor’s Parcel Numbers:   R13335-454-3220; R13335-487-3100 and  

                                                                  R13335-519-3090 

 

THIS AMENDMENT TO THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _____ day of  

   , 2015, by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a non-charter code city, organized 

and existing under the law of the State of Washington (the “City”), and Goldie Road LLC, a limited liability 

company in the State of Washington (the “Owners”),  

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Owners petitioned the City to annex their property described in  Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

into the City of Oak Harbor in 2010; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property described in Exhibit “A” was annexed into the City by Ordinance    No. 1574 on April 

21, 2010; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Owners and the City executed an Annexation Agreement, attached as Exhibit "B", containing 

covenants to run with the land described under Exhibit “A”, which was subsequently recorded under Island 

County recording number 4272613; and  

178



Amendment to Annexation Agreement 

Covenants to Run With the Land - 2 

 

WHEREAS, the provisions numbered 5 & 6 in the Annexation Agreement require the Owners to apply for 

development permits and put in necessary improvements and extensions of City infrastructure within 5 years 

from the date of annexation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Owners have not met the requirements of provisions 5 & 6 and have approached the City for 

an extension of the timeframe for development and installation of infrastructure and improvements; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Owners are requesting that the Annexation Agreement be amended to allow for completion of 

provisions 5 & 6 when development of the properties occurs; and  

 

WHEREAS, the annexation occurred at a time of a much different economic climate; and  

 

WHEREAS, at the time of annexation the length and seriousness of the impending economic recession could 

not have been foreseen; and 

 

WHEREAS, without development of the project anticipated with the annexation or other significant 

development in the surrounding area, the need to install the required infrastructure improvements within the 

timeframe required by the annexation agreement is greatly diminished; and 

 

WHEREAS, while the economy is showing signs of improving, said improvement may not be sufficient enough 

to support substantial infrastructure improvements occurring in advance of a site specific project, and  

 

WHEREAS, in recognition of the past and current economic conditions it is acceptable for the required public 

improvements to be installed concurrent with development; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE TO AMEND THE ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The following changes will be made to provision 5 in the Annexation Agreement:  "The Owners agree 

to apply for development permits for the Property consistent with applicable City ordinances. ..." 

 

2. The following changes will be made to provision 6 of the Annexation Agreement: "…the Owners agree 

to completely perform the obligations set forth in this Section  upon development of the Property:" 

 

3. No other changes shall be made to the Annexation Agreement.  All other provisions remain in full force 

and effect.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals the day and year first written above.   

179



Amendment to Annexation Agreement 

Covenants to Run With the Land - 3 

       GRANTORS 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Sean Byrne, Managing Member 

       Goldie Road LLC 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Theresa Byrne, Managing Member 

       Goldie Road LLC 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

    ) ss: 

COUNTY OF ISLAND ) 

 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ______ day of _____________________, 2015, before me, the undersigned, 

a notary public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared Sean 

Byrne, who on oath stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as a managing 

member of Goldie Road LLC to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned 

in the instrument. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 

 

              

      Print:         

      NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

      Washington, residing in      

      Commission expires:        

 

 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

    ) ss: 

COUNTY OF ISLAND ) 

 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ______ day of _____________________, 2015, before me, the undersigned, 

a notary public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared Theresa 

Byrne, who on oath stated that she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as a managing 

member of Goldie Road LLC to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned 

in the instrument. 

 

180



Amendment to Annexation Agreement 

Covenants to Run With the Land - 4 

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 

 

              

      Print:         

      NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

      Washington, residing in      

      Commission expires:        

 

 

 

      GRANTEE 

 

 

              

      Scott Dudley, Mayor 

      City of Oak Harbor 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

    ) ss: 

COUNTY OF ISLAND ) 

 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ______ day of _____________________, 2015, before me, the undersigned, 

a notary public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared Scott 

Dudley, to me known to be the Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, that executed the attached Amendment to 

Annexation Agreement Covenants to Run With the Land, and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and 

voluntary act and deed of the City, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he was 

authorized to execute said instrument. 

 

 

  

181



Amendment to Annexation Agreement 

Covenants to Run With the Land - 5 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

 

 

 

              

      Print:         

      NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

      Washington, residing in      

      Commission expires:        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

182



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
General Contractor/Construction 
Manager GMP Amendment #3

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #3) in the amount of 
$836,130 plus Sales Tax ($72,743) with Hoffman Construction for construction of Site Preparation A-
Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the wastewater treatment plant involves extensive excavations on the selected site.   With
the cultural resource sensitivity of the location, the City’s construction activities are governed by a Section

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.b
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
General Contractor/Construction 
Manager GMP Amendment #3

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #3) in the amount of 
$836,130 plus Sales Tax ($72,743) with Hoffman Construction for construction of Site Preparation A-
Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the wastewater treatment plant involves extensive excavations on the selected site.   With 
the cultural resource sensitivity of the location, the City’s construction activities are governed by a Section the cultural resource sensitivity of the location, the City’s construction activities are governed by a Section
106 Memorandum of Agreement which specify slow mitigation processes in the event of an 
archaeological discovery.  Incorporating these mitigation processes during the major construction 
activities could result in significant costs due to delays.  In order to avoid these potential risks, an initial 
site excavation contract was established to excavate the site 5 to 8 feet to get below the archaeological 
zones of concern.  This approach allows for mitigating concerns prior to initiating costly deep foundation
activities. 

Due to complexity of the work and the potential for significant contractual deviations, Hoffman proposed 
to self-perform this portion of the work.  This allows for significant changes in quantities, production rates 
or effort without the potential for change orders.  Hoffman will be utilizing subcontractors for the work. 

In accordance with state law, an independent cost estimate was performed by KBA to validate the 
negotiated amount. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #3) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment E.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.  In the future, staff will identify sales tax amounts as different than the GMP cost.

GMP #3 totals to $836,130 plus $72,743 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 

the cultural resource sensitivity of the location, the City’s construction activities are governed by a Section 
106 Memorandum of Agreement which specify slow mitigation processes in the event of an 
archaeological discovery.  Incorporating these mitigation processes during the major construction 
activities could result in significant costs due to delays.  In order to avoid these potential risks, an initial 
site excavation contract was established to excavate the site 5 to 8 feet to get below the archaeological 
zones of concern.  This approach allows for mitigating concerns prior to initiating costly deep foundation 
activities. 

Due to complexity of the work and the potential for significant contractual deviations, Hoffman proposed 
to self-perform this portion of the work.  This allows for significant changes in quantities, production rates 
or effort without the potential for change orders.  Hoffman will be utilizing subcontractors for the work. 

In accordance with state law, an independent cost estimate was performed by KBA to validate the 
negotiated amount. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #3) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project.  This 
GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, contingency, GC/CM 
fee, Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment E.  At the advice of 
Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those amounts are 
included in the contract.  In the future, staff will identify sales tax amounts as different than the GMP cost.

GMP #3 totals to $836,130 plus $72,743 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 

183



GMP #3 totals to $836,130 plus $72,743 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council 
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work. 
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services. 
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317. 
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687.  
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP: 
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.) 
 Deep excavation (sheet piling, excavation, shoring, dewatering, etc.) 
 WWTP construction 
 Site work improvements (landscape, Bayshore, parking, etc.) 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $836,130+Sales Tax ($72,743)          

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

GMP #3 totals to $836,130 plus $72,743 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council 
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work. 
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services. 
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317. 
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687.  
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP: 
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.) 
 Deep excavation (sheet piling, excavation, shoring, dewatering, etc.) 
 WWTP construction 
 Site work improvements (landscape, Bayshore, parking, etc.) 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $836,130+Sales Tax ($72,743)          

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 
for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 – Adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery method for the 
new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 - Adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include a provision 
for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 - Authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a General 
Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant project.

2-18-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project Approval – GC/CM 
Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of Washington Capital 
Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 - Authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman Construction in connection 
with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

184



12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A133 Agreement (base agreement)
2. Attachment B - GMP #1
3. Attachment C - GMP #2

12-2-14 - Authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) 
equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00

4-21-15 - Authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of $2,337,687

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A133 Agreement (base agreement)
2. Attachment B - GMP #1
3. Attachment C - GMP #23. Attachment C - GMP #2
4. Attachment D - GMP #3
5. Attachment E - GMP #3 Summary of Amendment Costs

3. Attachment C - GMP #2
4. Attachment D - GMP #3
5. Attachment E - GMP #3 Summary of Amendment Costs

185

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433884795_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433884828_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433884852_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433884874_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433884917_at.pdf


WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 186



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 187



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 188



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 189



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 190



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 191



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 192



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 193



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 194



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 195



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 196



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 197



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 198



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 199



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 200



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 201



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 202



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 203



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 204



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 205



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 206



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 207



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 208



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 209



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 210



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 211



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 212



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 213



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 214



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 215



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 216



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 217



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 218



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 219



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 220



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 221



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 222



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 223



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 224



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 225



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 226



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 227



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 228



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 229



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 230



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 231



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 232



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 233



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 234



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 235



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 236



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 237



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 238



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 239



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 240



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 241



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 242



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 243



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 244



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 245



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 246



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 247



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 248



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 249



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 250



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 251



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 252



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 253



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 254



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 255



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 256



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 257



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 258



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 259



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 260



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 261



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 262



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 263



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 264



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 265



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 266



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 267



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 268



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 269



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 270



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 271



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 272



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 273



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 274



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 275



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 276



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 277



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 278



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 279



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 280



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 281



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 282



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 283



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 284



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 285



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 286



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 287



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 288



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 289



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 290



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 291



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 292



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 293



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 294



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 295



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 296



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 297



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 298



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 299



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 300



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 301



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 302



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 303



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 304



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 305



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 306



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 307



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 308



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 309



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 310



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 311



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 312



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 313



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 314



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 315



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 316



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 317



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 318



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 319



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 320



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 321



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 322



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 323



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 324



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 325



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 326



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 327



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 328



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 329



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 330



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 331



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 332



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 333



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment A 334



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment B 335



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment B 336



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment B 337



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment B 338



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment C 339



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment C 340



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment C 341



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment C 342



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment D 343



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment D 344



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment D 345



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment D 346



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 347



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 348



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 349



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 350



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 351



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 352



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 353



WWTP - GC/CM GMP Amend #3 - Attachment E 354



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 5

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount from $288,546.08 to 
$504,079.08.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.c
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Professional Services Agreement 
with ERCI - Amendment No. 5

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 5 to the Professional Services Agreement with Equinox 
Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant in the amount of $215,533.00, increasing the total contract amount from $288,546.08 to 
$504,079.08.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

During construction Site Preparation A-Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey, archaeological 
monitoring is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This monitoring involves site 
observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  The attached 
amendments describe the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major site excavation activities. 

ERCI provided a scope of services with assuming archaeological discoveries would be made.  The time 
and materials not to exceed amount of $215,533 could be lower if significant cultural resources are not 
encountered.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $215,533.00

The City of Oak Harbor is actively pursuing the replacement of two aging wastewater treatment plants 
with a new, state of the art, membrane bioreactor treatment plant.

One of the many critical components of the project is permitting.  Staff has been working with Equinox 
Research and Consulting International (ERCI) since May 2013 to address cultural resource permitting for 
the project.  On April 21, 2015 the Council approved a Memorandum of Agreement for the Section 106 
aspects of the project. 

During construction Site Preparation A-Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey, archaeological 
monitoring is required in accordance with the Memorandum of Agreement.  This monitoring involves site 
observation, contractor training, documentation, and consultation with the tribes.  The attached 
amendments describe the necessary ERCI Scope of Work for the major site excavation activities. 

ERCI provided a scope of services with assuming archaeological discoveries would be made.  The time 
and materials not to exceed amount of $215,533 could be lower if significant cultural resources are not 
encountered.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $215,533.00

355



Appropriation Source:                        Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was included in the Site Preparation A discussion at the City Council Workshop on May 27, 
2015.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 
$264,587.73.

 October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 

Appropriation Source:                        Wastewater Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This item was included in the Site Preparation A discussion at the City Council Workshop on May 27, 
2015.

 CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 4 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Equinox Research Consulting International (ERCI) for Archaeological Services 
related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $23,958.35, increasing the total contract 
amount from $264,587.73 to $288,546.08.

April 21, 2015 – City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign the Memorandum of Agreement with EPA, 
DOE, DAHP, Samish Indian Nation, the Stillaguamish Tribe of Indians, the Suquamish Tribe, the 
Swinomish Indian Tribal Community, the Snoqualmie Tribe, the Tulalip Tribes, and the Upper Skagit 
Indian Tribe.

February 3, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 3 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $28,074.25, increasing the total contract amount from $236,513.48 to 
$264,587.73.

 October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional  October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Amendment No. 5
2. Attachment B - Scope of Work
3. Attachment C - No. 4, No. 3, No. 2, No. 1, and Original PSA (combined document)

 October 7, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 2 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $21,660.50, increasing the total contract amount from $214,852.98 to 
$236,513.48.

 December 17, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with ERCI for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $198,520, increasing the total contract amount from $16,332.98 to $214,852.98.

May 7, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of $14,332.98 
and a management reserve of $2,000.00.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Amendment No. 5
2. Attachment B - Scope of Work
3. Attachment C - No. 4, No. 3, No. 2, No. 1, and Original PSA (combined document)

356

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433871341_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433871377_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433871427_at.pdf


Professional Services Agreement 
Amendment Number:  5 

Organization and Address: 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 

Phone: (360) 279-4521 

Original Agreement Title:   

WWTP Archaeological Services 
Project Number:  Eng-15-02 
(previously ENG-13-05) 

Execution Date 
06/16/2013 

Completion Date 
12/31/2015 

Project Title:  
City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

New Maximum Amount Payable 

 $504,079.08 
Description of Work:   
Provide Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant. 

The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Equinox Research and Consulting International, (ERCI)    and executed on    May 7, 2013  
and identified as Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and 
Consulting International, (ERCI).  

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
See attached Scope of Works and Fees 

TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
 Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary for archaeological monitoring of the 
Site Preparation A-Archaeological Survey on the proposed wastewater treatment plant 
property.  The consultant is authorized to begin work on the initial $140,978.50 scope 
amount with work past that scope requiring city authorization.  The maximum amount 
payable under the contract is increased by $215,533.00; from $288,546.08 to 
$504,079.08.  

If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

By: Equinox Research Consulting International By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor  

Consultant Signature Approving Authority Signature 

Date 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment A 357



City of Oak Harbor – WWTP initial preliminary digging with intact deposits Project 1 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

1229 Cleveland Avenue Mt. Vernon, WA 98273  Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com 

June 8, 2015 

Brett Arvidson 

City of Oak Harbor Public Works 

1400 NE 16
th
 Avenue 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Re: Professional Archaeological Monitoring for Preliminary excavations including a contingency for 

14 days of archaeological data recovery for the WWTP replacement project, Windjammer Park, Oak 

Harbor, Washington 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) for your 

cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management 

program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting.  

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 

requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with 

others in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of 

RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by.  In providing 

cultural resource management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting International 

Inc. (ERCI) works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

This project currently has a Department of Ecology nexus and we will be operating under the 

Archaeological Work Plan (April 2015) as mandated by the Memorandum of Agreement (June 2015). 

We are providing this scope and budget for the following tasks: 

 Project Management including planning, administration, logistics

 Coordination with SHPO, Ecology, and Tribes

 Document Control, transcriptions and report production

 Reporting including weekly interim reports, research and final report

 Documentation, analysis, and preparation for curation on historic and pre contact artifacts

 Graphics including field maps, profiles and report ready maps, field and lab photos

 Field and lab supplies

 Documentation, analysis, and preparation for curation human and faunal (animal) remains

 Professional archaeological monitoring on the removal and management of the sediments

associated with the preliminary digging for the WWTP replacement project.

 Accommodations and travel for all archaeologists for this project

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment B 358

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP initial preliminary digging with intact deposits Project 2 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 Prepare historic and pre contact artifacts, faunal remains, samples and documents for curation

at the Burke Museum. This includes up to 2 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes of documents

including faunal remains.

 Provide weekly interim reports to stakeholders

 Provide final report to state and federal standards this includes one draft and one final report

with appendices

 Contingency for 14 days of data recovery associated with encountering intact archaeological

deposits during the exploratory excavations.

We expect that 2 machines will be operating at one time, that we will dig down to just above the 

water table to remove the deposits with the highest likelihood of encountering archaeological material 

early before the deep time sensitive excavations for the treatment plant begin in earnest. 

Assumptions: 

 Human remains will be encountered only once during this field work.

 14 days of data recovery will be sufficient for any intact archaeological deposits that are

encountered.

 No more than 2 boxes of artifacts, faunal material and 4 boxes of documents will be curated

from this phase of the project

 ERCI will not supply safety fencing, trench safety management or information signs

 ERCI will not supply any heavy equipment such as excavators or dump trucks

Qualifications: 

 Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems

and infrastructure.

 Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interior’s professional qualification standards for

archaeology

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington

 Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains.

 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project

area and experience in tribal consultation.

 Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs

 Strong record of completing work on time within budget

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 

themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a 

timely fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak 

Harbor. 

Regards, 

Kelly R. Bush 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment B 359

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – WWTP initial preliminary digging with intact deposits Project 3 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Field and Administration Units Rate/Hr Sub Total 

Ongoing administrative work 4 hrs/week 6 weeks 24.00 143.75 3,450.00 

Ongoing consultation with SHPO and Ecology  (1 hrs/week 6 

weeks)  

6.00 143.75 862.50 

Ongoing consultation with affected Tribes (1 hrs/week) 6.00 143.75 862.50 

Logistical Planning for field work (1 hours per week) 6.00 143.75 862.50 

Document control and transcriptions (16 hrs/week) 96.00 63.25 6,072.00 

Site Inventory Forms 12.00 63.25 759.00 

Research 30.00 97.75 2,932.50 

Interim (weekly) Report writing (4 hrs/week) 68.00 97.75 6,647.00 

Interim (weekly) Report editing (1 hr/week) 17.00 143.75 2,443.75 

Graphics (weekly) Report (1 hr/week) 34.00 97.75 3,323.50 

Report production interim (1 hr per week) 17.00 63.25 1,075.25 

Physical (Biological) Anthropologist (all skeletal material and 

lab management) 

96.00 115.00 11,040.00 

Lab technician photo, metrics and characterization of objects 

and samples; documentation and analysis of both precontact 

and historic (45 minutes per artifact) 

240.00 74.75 17,940.00 

Analysis and management of precontact and historic artifact 

data from disturbed deposits 

32.00 97.75 3,128.00 

Draft and Final Report writing 120.00 97.75 11,730.00 

Draft and Final Report editing 12.00 143.75 1,725.00 

Graphics and layout (field and lab photos, additional hand 

drawing for profiles and report ready graphics for final reports 

80.00 97.75 7,820.00 

Report production draft and final reports 8.00 63.25 506.00 

Report production Appendices 8.00 63.25 506.00 

Field and Lab Supplies: paper bags, plastic bags, field and 

archive paper, storage boxes, other lab supplies 

1.00 833.00 833.00 

Two Archaeological Monitors for the initial exploratory 

excavations  

480.00 74.75 35,880.00 

Equipment maintenance on-going 1 hours per week when all 

equipment is working 

6.00 74.75 448.50 

Subtotal for field and administration 120,847.00 

Travel and Accommodations for Archaeologists 

local travel time (not charging) 0.00 40.00 0.00 

Mileage for monitor 15 trips from Mt. Vernon 1200.00 0.575 690.00 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 

day  

40.00 40.00 1,600.00 

Accommodations - for 3 crew members 1.50 2,500.00 3,750.00 

SUB TOTAL of accommodations and travel 6,040.00 

SUB TOTALS for work without 

encountering intact deposits 

126,887.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment B 360



City of Oak Harbor – WWTP initial preliminary digging with intact deposits Project 4 

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Contingency work should we encounter intact deposits or 

human remains and need 2 weeks of mitigative data 

recovery 

Physical (Biological) Anthropologist/lab director 80.00 115.00 9,200.00 

Lab technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Office  Technician 80.00 63.25 5,060.00 

Field Director 80.00 97.75 7,820.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Archaeological Field  Technician 80.00 74.75 5,980.00 

Reassociation of Ancestral Remains (Physical Anthropologist) 16.00 115.00 1,840.00 

Lab technician and assistant to the Physical Anthropologist 16.00 74.75 1,196.00 

Travel time for crew members not staying in town 1.5 hours per 

day  

42.00 40.00 1,680.00 

Mileage for crew members not staying in town 1800.00 0.575 1,035.00 

Housing and per diem - for crew members 1.50 2,500.00 3,750.00 

SUB TOTAL for additional field work 

should we encountering intact deposits 66,976.00 
Curation for 4 boxes of artifacts and 4 boxes of documents 

this is an estimate that depends on how many artifacts we 

encounter 

Oversight of curation process-Lab Director 40.00 115.00 4,600.00 

Curation preparation of artifacts and documents Lab Technician 120.00 74.75 8,970.00 

Archive supplies for Curation 1.00 1,100.00 1,100.00 

Costs for curation of object and samples at the Burke 1500.00 

per box 

4.00 1,500.00 6,000.00 

Costs for curation of documents at the Burke 250.00 per box 4.00 250.00 1,000.00 

Subtotal for Curation 21,670.00 

Totals for all work including 14 days of 

data recovery 

215,533.00 

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment B 361



Professional Services Agreement Organization and Address
Amendment Number 1

City of Oak Harbor
Original Agreement Title 865 SE Barrington Drive

Oak Harbor WA 98239
WWTP Archaeological Services

Phone 3602794539

Project Number Execution Date Completion Date Prior

ENG13 05 572013 12312013

Project Title New Maximum Amount Payable

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 21485298
Plant

Description of Work
Provide archaeological services related to the new wastewater treatment plant

The City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Equinox
Research and Consulting International and executed on 572013 and identified as

Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research and Consulting International

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this
supplement

The changes to the agreement are described as follows

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following
See attached scope of work and fee

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following
NO CHANGE

Amendment No 1 12302013 Page 1 of 2WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 362



PROJECT COMPLETION DATEAMENDED 10 December 31 014

PAYMENT shall he amended as follows

Amendment reflects the additional effort necessary to perforrn due diligence on the proposed
wastewater treatment plant property The maximum amount payable under the contract is
increased h 19832001from 51633298 to 521483298 as outlined in theattachcd slope of
vork

Payment shall he made in accordanceqtth the terms and conditions described in the original
contract

It you concur Nyith this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above please sign in the
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action

Consult arn Llnature iii Autho y Sin re

Ainendnmmt N 1 I 31211 Idg

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 363



I1
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 3608264830 wwweguinoxercicom

November 21 2013

Joe Stowell City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Intensive Field Survey for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for your
cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource management program
and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 05 05
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with others
in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of RCWs and
associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing cultural resource
management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI works in
accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

This project currently has no Federal nexus and so we expect that we will require a permit from the State
Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation to carry out this survey work as we expect to
encounter disturbed shell midden deposits and we may encounter intact shell midden deposits and will
want to test and evaluate these deposits

This scope doesnt include safety fencing and we believe that during the testing in Windjammer Park that
will be a significant issue Although fewer people use the park in winter it is still difficult to keep people
back from our testing trenches We hope the City will provide some assistance with this challenge

We are providing this scope and budget for approximately 2000 feet of machine testing and
approximately 75 shovel test holes in the attached APE We understand that you are in the buysell phase
of land acquisition and that this is the final site selection for the new WWTP facility The data we collect
during this intensive testing will be used as the identification and evaluation phase of the project for
cultural resources Should any cultural material be encountered our permit application would allow us to
test and evaluate that material and collect data useful in adding to a mitigation data recovery plan and to
evaluate and cultural resources for eligibility to the National Register

The Scope activities include

Write a permit application for the Washington State DAHP
Carry out machine testing with approximately 2000 feet of machine testing as per the attached
map

Carry out supplementary shovel testing up to 75 shovel test holes

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 364



Provide a preliminary analysis of all historic and precontact artifacts and prepare them for
curation at the Burke Museum This includes up to 5 boxes of artifacts including any faunalremains

Provide report to state and federal standards

Provide a backhoe and operator for the machine trenching
Assumptions

Human remains will be encountered only once during the testing program
Only 5 boxes of artifacts and faunal material will be encountered during the testing
No additional plans or protocols are included in this scope Should we need to file an amended
permit for additional data recovery that would be outside this scope
Costs associated will completing an HPIF historic property inventory form for the existingfacilities is outside this scope

Qualifications

Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works systems andinfrastructure

Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification standards for
archaeology

Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 0505 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains
Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the project areaand experience in tribal consultation

Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

We expect the field work to take approximately 5 weeks from start to finish We will need 3 days to set
up the testing area Then we will have a full crew for 20 days and then a smaller crew for an additional 5
days that includes final mapping and clean up We will not be working weekends unless weather becomes
the critical successfailure element and we have windows of clear weather that allows us to proceedBased on our experience last year weather is a critical player in visibility and will certainly be an issuefor this more precise work

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a timelyfashion Please check out our web site for additional details wwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak Harbor
Regards

Kelly R Bush

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey ZEquinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI
WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 365



i a is f

fzk

mow

fia
3

n fib

d 441
yu

h

X19 4
n

i

40 iiHt
lottllt

042P14Fii e424z i
de j

l 9

y

4i4S mss

101114
r y

aFryi aY

4L

4i1 41r471h

ms

t ycfi

Figure 1 Proposedapproximate testing trench locations in yellow

3City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 366



Description Units RateHR Sub Total
Project Orientation meetings and project management 1200 14325 171900
Historic geoarch and archival background research 600 9775 58650
Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes 800 14325 114600
Detennine Eligibility of identified historic properties
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places 200 14375 28750

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 1200 14375 172500how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Write Permit for survey 1800 9775 175950
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 1200 14325 171900
Document controlfield forms transcriptions site forms 9600 6375 612000lab data management 2400 6375 153000
Report editing 400 14325 57300
Report writing 3200 9775 312800
Graphics layout 4800 9775 469200Curation Preparation 8000 6375 510000Curation Per box costs 1000 150000 1500000
SUB TOTAL

Field Work
4508550

DESCRIPTION
Units Rates Sub Total

Principal Investigator 3000 14375 431250
Senior Archaeologist Field Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Senior Archaeologist LabField Supervisor 20000 9775 1955000
Physical Anthropologist 4000 11500 460000
Archaeological Labfield Technician 20000 7475 1495000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Archaeological Field Technician 16000 7475 1196000
Equipment Rental Backhoe and operator 1500 90000 1350000
Travel time

20000 4000 800000
Accommodation weekly 400 62500 250000
Per Diem daily 8000 6100 488000
Mileage 320000 056 179200
SUB TOTAL

15343450

GRAND TOTAL
19852000

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Intensive Field Survey 4
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 367



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 368



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 369



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 370



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 371



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 372



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 373



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this 7 day of L

2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal core tion

hereinafter referred to as the CITY and Equinox Research and Consulting International
hereinafter referred to as the SERVICE PROVIDER

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on May 7 2013 and shall be completed no later than December
31 2013 unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows1433298

4 Reports and Inspections

Professional Services Agreement 1WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 374



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 375



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 376



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 377



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into in duplicate this day of Mgiivh
2013 by and between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR a Washington municipal corporation
hereinafter referred to as the CITY and 41n psi ReSetsa t Cons0 hereinafter referred

to as the SERVICE PROVIDER i n 4net Inc

WHEREAS the CITY desires to have certain services andor tasks performed as set forth below
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities and

WHEREAS sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services and

WHEREAS the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities including technical and professional
expertise where required to perform the services andor tasks set forth in this Agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the terms conditions covenants and performance
contained herein the parties hereto agree as follows

1 Scope of Services

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance
thereof as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit A attached hereto and
incorporated herein the Project

2 Term

The Project shall begin on nor 1 113 and shall be

completed no later than nti Ma 1 I 13 unless sooner terminated according

to the provisions herein

3 Compensation and Method of Payment

31 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the
performance of such services unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in
writing by the CITY

32 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER
except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement

33 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this
Agreement as follows

Professional Services Agreement 1

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 378



4 Reports and Inspections

41 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may

require shall furnish to the CITY such statements records reports data and
information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this
Agreement

42 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as
often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary make available for
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered directly
or indirectly by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities The
CITY may at its discretion conduct an audit at its expense using its own or
outside auditors of the SERVICE PROVIDERSactivities that relate directly or
indirectly to this Agreement

5 Independent Contractor Relationship

51 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDERCITY relationship
will be created by this Agreement The CITY is interested primarily in the results
to be achieved subject to paragraphs herein the implementation of services will
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER No agent employee
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an
employee agent servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose and the
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the
CITY provides for its employees The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents employees servants
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement

52 In the performance of the services herein contemplated the SERVICE
PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct
the performance of the details of the work however the results of the work
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to
the CITYS general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory
completion thereof

6 Service Provider Employeesagents

The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove an
employeesagents or servantsfrom employment on this Project The SERVICE
PROVIDER may however employ that those individualson other nonCITY related
projects

Professional Services Agreement 2

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 379



7 Hold HarmlessIndemnification

71 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend indemnify and hold the CITY its officers
officials employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims injuries
damages losses or suits including attorney fees arising out of or resulting from
the acts errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City

72 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement the Contractor
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State
Industrial Insurance Act Title 51 RCW The parties expressly agree that this
waiver of workers compensation immunity has been negotiated

73 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement
except as expressly provided herein

8 Insurance

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the
Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the
SERVICE PROVIDER its agents representatives or employees

81 Minimum Scope of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of
the types described below

a Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned non owned hired and
leased vehicles Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office
ISO form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability
coverage If necessary the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual
liability coverage

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises
operations independent contractors and personal injury and advertising
injury The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE
PROVIDERSCommercial General Liability insurance policy with respect
to the work performed for the City

c Workers Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington

d Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE
PROVIDERSprofession

Professional Services Agreement 3

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 380



82 Minimum Amounts of Insurance SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the

following insurance limits

a Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars1000000
per accident

b Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no
less than One Million Dollars1000000 each occurrence Two Million
Dollars2000000 general aggregate

c Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than
One Million Dollars1000000 per claim and One Million Dollars
1000000 policy aggregate limit

83 Other Insurance Provisions The insurance policies are to contain or be endorsed
to contain the following provisions for Automobile Liability Professional
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance

a The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance coverage shall be primary
insurance with respect to the City Any insurance self insurance or
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the
SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance and shall not contribute with it

b The SERVICE PROVIDERSinsurance shall be endorsed to state that

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party except after thirty 30
days prior written notice by certified mail return receipt requested has
been given to the City

84 Acceptability of Insurers Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
AM Best rating of not less thanAVII

85 Verification of Coverage SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with
original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including but not
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement evidencing the
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of
the work

9 Treatment of Assets

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents if any prepared
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement

Professional Services Agreement 4

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 381



10 Compliance with Laws

101 The SERVICE PROVIDER in the performance of this Agreement shall comply
with all applicable federal state or local laws and ordinances including
regulations for licensing certification and operation of facilities programs and
accreditation and licensing of individuals and any other standards or criteria as
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services

102 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and
occupation BO taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement

11 Nondiscrimination

111 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer

112 Nondiscrimination in Employment In the performance of this Agreement the
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment on the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability provided that the
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability or the use
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability shall not
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular
worker involved The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are
employed and that employees are treated during employment without
discrimination because of their race creed color national origin sex marital
status sexual orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or
the presence of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability Such action shall
include but not be limited to employment upgrading demotion or transfers
recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination rates of pay or other
forms of compensation and programs for training including apprenticeships The
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as
may be required to ensure full compliance with local state and federal laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment

113 Nondiscrimination in Services The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on
the grounds of race creed color national origin sex marital status sexual
orientation age honorably discharged veteran or military status or the presence
of any sensory mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or
service animal by a person with a disability

114 If any assignment andor subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY said
assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against

Professional Services Agreement 5

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 382



discrimination The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately
preceding paragraphs herein

12 Assignmentsubcontracting

121 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the
CITY and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty 30 days prior to the date of any
proposed assignment The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any
such assignment

122 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this
Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local
state andor federal statutes ordinances and guidelines

123 Any technicalprofessional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement must
have express advance approval by the CITY

13 Changes

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided
hereunder however no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement

14 Maintenance and Inspection of Records

141 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books records and documents which
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid
pursuant to this Agreement These records shall be subject at all reasonable times
to inspection review or audit by the CITY its authorized representative the
State Auditor or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this
Agreement

142 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books records documents and other
material relevant to this Agreement for six 6 years after its expiration The
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said
period

Professional Services Agreement 6

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 383



15 Other Provisions

The following additional terms shall apply It is agreed between the parties that pursuant
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded the parties shall
negotiate an appropriate amendment If after thirty 30 days of negotiation agreement
cannot be reached the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty 60
days thereafter

16 Termination

161 Termination for Convenience The CITY may terminate this Agreement in
whole or in part at any time by giving at least thirty 30 days written notice to
the SERVICE PROVIDER Upon such termination for convenience the City
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this
Agreement through the date of termination

162 Termination for Cause If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the
manner called for in this Agreement or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such
noncompliance within five 5 days written notice thereof the CITY may
terminate this Agreement for cause Termination shall be effected by serving a
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default The SERVICE PROVIDER will

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination

17 Notice

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement

18 Attorneys Fees and Costs

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement or because of a
dispute breach default or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of
this Agreement the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party in
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled reasonable attorneysfees
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding

19 Jurisdiction and Venue

191 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington both as to
interpretation and performance

Professional Services Agreement 7

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 384



192 Any action of law suit in equity or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of
this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County Washington

20 Severability

201 If for any reason any part term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court
of the United States to be illegal void or unenforceable the validity of the
remaining provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations of the
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the
particular provision held to be invalid

202 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory
provision of the State of Washington said provision that may conflict therewith
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions

21 Entire Agreement

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded Further
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material
breach of contract and be cause for termination Both parties recognize time is of the
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement It is also agreed by the
parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day
and year first hereinabove written

CITY SERVICE PROVIDER

CITY OF OAK HARBOR

865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Dud ey ayo L

Attest

Valerie Loffle ity Cle

Professional Services Agreement 8

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 385



EXHIBIT A

ERCI
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete WA 98237 Te13608264930 Fax 360 8264830wwwequinoxercicom

March 17 2013

Joe Stowell

City of Oak Harbor Public Works
1400 NE 16 Avenue
Oak Harbor WA 98277

Re Survey for alternate outfall corridor Windjammer Park Oak Harbor Washington

Dear Mr Stowell

Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI for
your cultural resource management needs ERCI provides a full service cultural resource
management program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork
and reporting

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act NHPA SEPA and Executive Order 0505
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with
others in carrying out historic preservation activities The State of Washington also has a series of
RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by In providing
cultural resource management services for clients Equinox Research and Consulting
International Inc ERCI works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations

We are providing this scope and budget for sub surface testing in a single well defined 20 foot
wide corridor over the existing western outfall in Windjammer Park south of the previous testing
area and 45IS298 This scope presumes that no permit from DAHP will be required to carry out
this testing as we are outside of the recorded site

Scope

Design and implement field survey with shovel testing along alternate corridor for outfall
in Windjammer Park
Provide report to state federal and tribal standards

Qualifications
Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works
systems and infrastructure
Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interiors professional qualification
standards for archaeology
Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington
Experience in Executive Order 05 05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with
additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains

WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 386



Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the
project area and experience in tribal consultation
Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs
Strong record of completing work on time within budget

The following estimate covers the identification and evaluation for historic properties in this
project area The following costs are not included in this estimate

Costs associated with encountering human remains during this fieldwork
Costs associated with completing Historic Property Inventory Forms HPIFs for any
buildings older than 50 years
Costs associated with developing any additional agreements plans protocols or permits
should they be required

The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride
themselves on efficiency performance and integrity We provide the highest quality product in a
timely fashion Please check out our web site for additional detailswwwequinoxercicom

Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak
Harbor

Regards

7

Kelly R Bush
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCI

Description Units RateHR Sub Total

Project Orientation meetings and project management 100 14325 14325

Archival background research 050 9775 4888

Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes

regarding cultural resource issues including the cultural
heritage value of sites within the vicinity of the Area of 100 14325 14325

Potential Effect APE

Determine eligibility of identified historic properties for
050 14375 7188

listing in the National Register of Historic Places
Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 400 14375 57500

how to avoid minimize or mitigate the adverse effect
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 100 14325 14325

Document control transcriptions site forms 400 6375 25500

Report editing 200 14325 28650

Report writing 600 9775 58650

Report Production 000 6375 000

Report printing and postage 000 2300 000

City of Oak Harbor Outfall Corridor Windjammer Park 2

Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc ERCIWWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 387



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 388



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 389



WWTP - PSA with ERCI Amendment No. 5 - Attachment C 390



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Special Event Permit for Oak 
Harbor Chamber of Commerce 
- 4th of July Beer Garden

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The City Council review the enclosed documents, accept or amend the proposed conditions and 
conditionally authorize the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the permit (providing the Washington 
State Liquor Control Board approves the permit prior to the event date).  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On May 15, 2015 the Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce submitted an Event permit for a beer garden

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.d
Date: June 16, 2015

Subject: Special Event Permit for Oak 
Harbor Chamber of Commerce 
- 4th of July Beer Garden

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
The City Council review the enclosed documents, accept or amend the proposed conditions and 
conditionally authorize the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the permit (providing the Washington 
State Liquor Control Board approves the permit prior to the event date).  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On May 15, 2015 the Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce submitted an Event permit for a beer gardenOn May 15, 2015 the Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce submitted an Event permit for a beer garden
at the 4th of July event in Windjammer Park. 

The beer garden hours will be 10:00 AM to Midnight. 

The beer garden will be enclosed and staffed as required by the Washington State Liquor Control 
Board. 

On June 5, 2015 the Washington State Liquor Control Board sent the Special Occasion License inquiry
letter to the Mayor. 

On June 9, 2015 the Mayor approved the applicants submissions regarding the configuration and the 
application for a temporary license and returned it to the Washington State Liquor Control Board. 

It is anticipated that the permit will be approved, but as of the completion of the agenda bill the City had 
not received a final permit from the Washington State Liquor Control Board. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be approved by the City 
Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT

On May 15, 2015 the Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce submitted an Event permit for a beer garden 
at the 4th of July event in Windjammer Park. 

The beer garden hours will be 10:00 AM to Midnight. 

The beer garden will be enclosed and staffed as required by the Washington State Liquor Control 
Board. 

On June 5, 2015 the Washington State Liquor Control Board sent the Special Occasion License inquiry 
letter to the Mayor. 

On June 9, 2015 the Mayor approved the applicants submissions regarding the configuration and the 
application for a temporary license and returned it to the Washington State Liquor Control Board. 

It is anticipated that the permit will be approved, but as of the completion of the agenda bill the City had 
not received a final permit from the Washington State Liquor Control Board. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be approved by the City 
Council. 

FISCAL IMPACT

391



FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. 4th of July Beer Garden Permit 
2. 4th of July WSLCB Application for Permit/License 
3. 4th of July Beer Garden Permit Conditions 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. 4th of July Beer Garden Permit 
2. 4th of July WSLCB Application for Permit/License 
3. 4th of July Beer Garden Permit Conditions 

392

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433977260_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433977296_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=26c196256f496e4ff35ec49c7093d3b6&aName=1433977327_at.pdf


393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406


	Agenda for June 16, 2015 City Council Meeting
	Proclamation for Pride Month
	C/A 6.a Minutes for the Regular and Special Meetings held 6/02/2015
	C/A 6.b Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
	Voucher Listings

	C/A 6.c Ordinance No. 1736
	Ordinance No. 1736

	C/A 6.d Request to Authorize Intern for Storm Drain Position
	8.a Ordinance 1737: LOCAL Series 2015B - Authorization Ordinance
	Ordinance 1737 and Annexes 1-3

	8.b Resolution 15-20: Countywide Planning Policies
	RCW 36.70A.210
	RCW 36.70A.110
	Planning Commission report and minutes - 3/24/15
	Planning Commission report and minutes - 4/28/15
	Island County, CWPP 60-day comment period letter and attachments - 4/28/15
	Resolution 15-20 with attached CWPP

	8.c Ordinance 1735: Transportation Impact Fee Code Amendment
	Ordinance No. 1735

	9.a Sign Code Amendment - Public Hearing on Ordinance 1733
	Ordinance 1733
	Findings of Fact

	11.a Goldie Road LLC Annexation Amendment
	Ordinance 1574
	Annexation Agreement, 4/13/2010
	Amendment to Annexation Agreement - Covenants to Run with the Land

	11.b WWTP - GC/CM Manager GMP Amendment No. 3
	AIA Document A133 (Base Agreement)
	GMP #1
	GMP #2
	GMP #3
	GMP #3 Summary of Amendment Costs

	11.c WWTP - PSA with ERCI, Amendment No. 5
	Amendment No. 5
	Scope of Work
	Amendment Numbers 1 - 4 and Original PSA

	11.d Special Event Permit for OH Chamber of Commerce - 4th of July Beer Garden
	Beer Garden Permit
	WA State Liquor Control Board Application
	Permit Conditions




